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Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director HAND  DELIVER^ 0-1 

4 CI Division of Records & Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Application by Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. for an original 
certificates for water and wastewater in Marion County, 
Florida. 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed on behalf of Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. are an 
original and twelve (12) copies of: 

1. Application by Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. for an 
original certificates for water and wastewater in Marion 
County, 

2. Pettion for Temporary Variance from or Temporary Waiver 
of Rules 25-30.033(1) (h), (j), (m), ( 0 1 ,  (r), (t), (u), 
(v), (W); (2); and (3) and 25-30.433(10), Florida 
Administrative Code;o+<m%- 0 cc -- 

I c )  

3. Affidavit of Kathryn G.W. Cowdery.o? 767 - '';-y 
Also enclosed is a check in the amount of $3,000.00 as payment 

of the filing fee. 

Please open a docket for processing this application. 

Please acknowledge receipt of the foregoing by stamping the 
enclosed extra copy of this letter and returning same to my 
attention. t I  - . .  . 



Thank you for your assistance. 

B. Kenneth Gatlin V 

BKG/ldv 
Enclosures 

cc: Administrative Procedures Committee 
(w/Application and Petition only) 
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APPLICATION FOR ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE 
FOR A PROPOSED OR EXISTING SYSTEM REQUESTING 

(Pursuant to Section 367.045, Florida Statutes) 

To: Director, Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

The undersigned hereby makes application for original 

Marion County, Florida, and 
certificate(s) to operate a water X and/or wastewater X 
utility in 
submits the following information: 1 

PART I 1 A 

A) The full name (as it appears on the certificate), 
address and telephone number of the applicant: 

(941) 924-7203 (941) 925-3088 
Phone No. Fax No. 

4837 Swjft Road. Suite 100 
Office street address 

N.A. 
Mailing address if different from street address 

N.A. 
Internet address if applicable 

B) The name, address and telephone number of the person to 
contact concerning this application: 

Gerald S. Allen. President (941 1 925-3088 
Name Phone No. 

4837 Swift Road. Suite 1 0 0  
Street address 

Sara s o t. a FJI 34231 
City State Zip Code 

'This is an application for Original Certificates &. The application for Initial Rates and 
Charges and the financial, engineering and operating information supporting same will be 
submitted at a later date as a separate application. 

Application Form 



C) Indicate the organizational character of the applicant: 
(circle one) 

Partnership Sole Proprietorship 

Other 
( Specify ) 

D) If the applicant is a corporation, indicate whether it 
has made an election under Internal Revenue Code Section 
1362 to be an S Corporation: 

Yes No X 

E) If the applicant is a corporation, list names, titles 
and addresses of corporate officers, directors, 
partners, or any other person(s) or entities owning an 
interest in the applicant's business organization. (Use 
additional sheet if necessary). 

Gerald S. Allen. C I i d e n t / C E O  

4837 Swift Road Suite 100. Sarasota. FL 3 4231 

hy.VP/Treas/Asst Secy/Director 

4837 Swift Road Suite 100. Sarasota. FJI 34231 

4837 Swift Road Suite 100. Sarasota. FJI 343.31 

s. FL 33134 

les J , .  McNairy. Director 

255  Alhambra Circle. C o ~ l  Gables. FL 33134 

Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Avatar Utilities Inc. which is a wholly- 
owned subsidiary of Avatar Holdings Inc. 

F) If the applicant i s  not a corporation, list names and 
addresses of all persons or entities owning an interest 
in the organization. (Use additional sheet if 
necessary. ) 

2 Application Form 



E PART I1 

A )  

PART I11 

A )  

Exhibit A - A statement regarding the need for 
service in the proposed territory, such as anticipated 
(or actual) development in the area. Identify any other 
utilities within the area proposed to be served which 
could potentially provide such service in the area and 
the steps the applicant took to ascertain whether such 
other service is available. 

Exhibit B - A statement that to the best of 
the applicant's knowledge, the provision of service will 
be consistent with the water and wastewater sections of 
the local comprehensive plan, as approved by the 
Department of Community Affairs at the time the 
application is filed. If the provision of service is 
inconsistent with such plan, provide a statement 
demonstrating why granting the certificate would be in 
the public interest. 

WATER 

Exhibit C - A statement describing the 
proposed type(s) of water service to be provided 
(i.e. , potable, non-potable or both) . 
Exhibit See Footnote Z.Pase 1 - The number of 
equivalent residential connections (ERCs) proposed 
to be served, by meter size and customer class. If 
development will be in phases, separate this 
information by phase. In addition, if the utility 
is in operation, provide the current number of ERCs 
by meter size and customer class. 

Description of the types of customers anticipated 
(i.e., single family, mobile homes, clubhouse, 
commercial, etc. ) : 

Fommerical adustrial, recreati onal , clubhouse 

In the case of an existing utility, provide the 
permit number and the date of approval of 
facilities by the Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) or the agency designated by DEP to 
issue permits: 

N.A. 

Indicate the design capacity of the treatment plant 
in terms of equivalent residential connections 
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(ERCS) and gallons per day (gpd). If development 
will be in phases, separate this information by 
phase. 

(6) Indicate the type of treatment: 

ae 1 

( 7 )  Indicate the design capacity of the transmission 
and distribution lines in terms of ERCs and gpd. 
If development will be in phases, separate this 
information by phase. 

See Footnote 1. Pacre 1 

(8) Provide the date the applicant began or plans tb 
begin serving customers: December 2000 

(9) Exhibit D - Evidence, in the form of a 
warranty deed, that the utility owns the land where 
the water facilities are or will be located. If 
the utility does not own the land, a copy of the 
agreement which provides for the long term 
continuous use of the land, such as a 99-year 
lease. The Commission may consider a written 
easement or other cost-effective alternative. 

The applicant may submit a contract for the 
purchase and sale of land with an unexecuted copy 
of the warranty deed provided the applicant files 
an executed and recorded copy of the deed, or 
executed copy of the lease, within thirty days 
after the order granting the certificate. 

(1) Exhibit See Footnote 1. Paae L - The number of 
equivalent residential connections (ERCs) proposed 
to be served, by meter size and customer class. If 
development will be in phases, separate this 
information by phase. In addition, if the utility 
is in operation, provide the current number of ERCs 
by meter size and customer class. 

( 2 )  Description of the types of customers anticipated 
(i.e., single family, mobile' homes, clubhouse, 
commercial, etc. : 

cl-e 
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(3) In the case of an existing utility, provide the 
permit number and the date of approval of 
facilities by the Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) or the agency designated by DEP to 
issue permits: 

(4) Indicate separately the design capacity of the 
treatment plant and effluent disposal system in 
terms of equivalent residential connections (ERCs) 
and gallons per day (gpd). If development will be 
in phases, separate this information by phase. 

See Footnote 1. Page 1 

( 5 )  Indicate the method of treatment and disposal 
(percolation pond, spray field, etc. ) : 

(6) Exhibit C - If the applicant does not 
propose to use reuse as a means of effluent 
disposal, provide a statement that describes, with 
particularity, the reasons for not using reuse. 

( 7 )  Indicate the design capacity of the collection 
lines in terms of ERCs and gpd. If development 
will be in phases, separate this information by 
phase. 

(8) Provide the date the applicant began or plans to 
begin serving customers: June 2000 

(9) Exhibit D - Evidence, in the form of a 
warranty deed, that the utility owns the land where 
the utility treatment facilities are or will be 
located. If the utility does not own the land, a 
copy of the agreement which provides for the long 
term continuous use of the land, such as a 99-year 
lease. 

The Commission may consider a written easement or 
other cost-effective alternative. The applicant 
may submit a contract for the purchase and sale of 
land with an unexecuted copy of the warranty deed, 
provided the applicant files an executed and 
recorded copy of the deed, or executed copy of the 
lease, within thirty days after the order granting 
the certificate. 

PART IV FINANCIAL AND T E C H N X U  INFORMATION 
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A) Exhibit E - A statement regarding the financial 
and technical ability of the applicant to provide 
reasonably sufficient and efficient service. 

B) Exhibit F - A detailed financial statement 
(balance sheet and income statement) , certified if 
available, of the financial condition of the applicant, 
showing all assets and liabilities of every kind and 
character. The income statement shall be for the 
preceding calendar or fiscal year. If an applicant has 
not operated for a full year, then the income statement 
shall be for the lesser period. The financial statement 
shall be prepared in accordance with Rule 2 5 - 3 0 . 1 1 5 ,  
Florida Administrative Code. If available, a statement 
of the source and application of funds shall also be 
provided. 

C) Exhibit C, - A list of all entities, including 
affiliates, upon which the applicant is relying to 
provide funding to the utility , and an explanation of 
the manner and amount of such funding, which shall 
include their financial statements and any financial 
agreements with the utility. This requirement shall not 
apply to any person or entity holding less than 10 
percent ownership interest in the utility. 

D) Exhibit See Footnote 1. Paae 1 - A schedule showing the 
projected cost of the proposed system (or actual cost of 
the existing system) by uniform system of accounts 
(USOA) account numbers pursuant to Rule 2 5 - 3 0 . 1 1 5 ,  
F.A.C. In addition, provide the capacity of each 
component of the system in ERCs and gallons per day. If 
the utility will be built in phases, this schedule shall 
apply to the design capacity of the first phase only. 
Provide a separate exhibit for the water and sewer 
systems. 

E) Exhibit See Footnote 1. Paae 1 - A schedule showing the 
projected operating expenses of the proposed system by 
USOA account numbers when 80 percent of the designed 
capacity of the system is being utilized. If the 
utility will be built in phases, this schedule shall 
apply to the design capacity of the first phase only. 
In addition, if the utility has been in existence for at 
least one year, provide actual operating expenses for 
the most recent twelve months. Provide a separate 
exhibit for the water and sewer systems. 

F) Exhibit - A schedule showing the 
projected capital structure, including the methods of 
financing the construction and operation of the utility 
until the utility reaches 80 percent of the designed 
capacity of the system(s). 

G )  Exhibit S . 5  - A cost study, including 
customer growth projections, which supports the proposed 
rates, miscellaneous service charges, customer deposits 
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PART V 

and service availability charges. A sample cost study 
is enclosed with the application package. Provide a 
separate cost study for the water and sewer systems. 

H) Exhibit See Footnote 1. Pase 1 - If the base facility 
and usage rate structure (as defined in Rule 25- 
30.437(6), F.A.C.) is not utilized for metered service, 
provide an alternative rate structure and a statement 
supporting why the alternative is appropriate. 

I) Exhibit See Footnote 1, Paze 1 - If a different return 
on common equity other than the current equity leverage 
formula established by order of the Public Service 
Commission pursuant to Section 367.081 (4) , F. S. is 
utilized, provide competent substantial evidence 
supporting the use of a different return on common 
equity. Information on the current equity leverage 
formula may be obtained by contacting the accounting 
section at the listed number. 

ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONS TRUCTION ( AFTJDC 1 

Please note the following: 

C) 

PART VI 

A) 

B) 

Utilities obtaining initial certificates pursuant to 
Rule 25-30.033, F.A.C., are authorized to accrue AFUDC 
for projects found eligible pursuant to Rule 25- 
30.116(1), F.A.C. 

A discounted monthly AFUDC rate calculated in accordance 
with Rule 25-30.116(3), F.A.C., shall be used to insure 
that the annual AFUDC charged does not exceed authorized 
levels. 

The date the utility shall begin to charge the AFUDC 
rate shall be the date the certificate of authorization 
is issued to the utility so that such rate can apply to 
initial construction of the utility facilities. 

TION 

T I N  

Exhibit H - An accurate description, using 
township, range and section references as specified in 
Rule 25-30.030(2), Florida Administrative Code. If the 
water and wastewater service territories are different, 
provide separate descriptions. 

Exhibit I - One copy of an official county tax 
assessment map or other map showing township, range and 
section with a scale such as l1I=20O1 or l1I=40O1 on which 
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C) 

the proposed territory is plotted by use of metes and 
bounds or quarter sections and with a defined reference 
point of beginning. If the water and wastewater service 
territories are different, provide separate maps. 

SYSTEM WW3 
I ,  Exhibit free Flxhibi t D) - One copy of detailed map(s) 

showing proposed lines, facilities and the territory 
proposed. Additionally, identify any existing lines and 
facilities. Map(s) should be of sufficient scale and 
detail to enable correlation with a description of the 
territory to be served. Provide separate maps for water 
and wastewater systems. 

PART VI1 ION 

A) Exhibit J - An affidavit that the notice of 
actual application was given in accordance with Section 
3 6 7 . 0 4 5 ( 1 )  (a) , Florida Statutes, and Rule 2 5 - 3 0 . 0 3 0 ,  
Florida Administrative Code, by regular mail to the 
following: 

(1) the governing body of the municipality, county, or 
counties in which the system or the territory 
proposed to be served is located; 

( 2 )  the privately owned water and wastewater utilities 
that hold a certificate granted by the Public 
Service Commission and that are located within the 
county in which the utility or the territory 
proposed to be served is located; 

(3) if any portion of the proposed territory is within 
one mile of a county boundary, the utility shall 
notice the privately owned utilities located in the 
bordering counties and holding a certificate 
granted by the Commission; 

(4) the regional planning council; 

(5) the Office of Public Counsel; 

(6) the Public Service Commission's Director of Records 
and Reporting; 

( 7 )  the appropriate regional office of the Department 
of Environmental Protection; 

(8) and the appropriate water management district. 

Copies of the Notice and a list of entities noticed 
shall accompany the affidavit. THIS MAY BE A JATE -FILED 
EXHIBIT 
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B) Exhibit N.A. - An affidavit that the notice of 
actual application was given in accordance with Rule 25- 
30 .030 ,  Florida Administrative Code, by regular mail or 
personal delivery to each customer of the system. A 
copy of the notice shall accompany the affidavit. THIS 
MAY BE A JIATE-FILED EXHI BIT. 

C) Exhibit K - Immediately upon completion of 
publication, an affidavit that the notice of actual 
application was published once in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the territory in accordance with Rule 25- 
3 0 . 0 3 0 ,  Florida Administrative Code. A copy of the 
proof of publication shall accompany the affidavit. 

IS MAY BE A JIATE-FIJIED E W R I T .  

PART VI11 FILING FEE 

Indicate the filing fee enclosed with the application: 

s3.ooo (for water) and $3,000 (for 
wastewater) . 
Note: Pursuant to Rule 25-30.020, Florida 
Administrative Code, the amount of the filing fee as 
follows: 

(1) For applications in which the utility has the 
capacity to serve up to 500 ERC's, the filing fee 
shall be $750 .  

(2) For applications in which the utility has the 
capacity to serve from 501 to 2,000 ERC's the 
filing fee shall be $1,500. 

(3) For applications in which the utility has the 
capacity to serve from 2,001 ERCIs to 4 , 0 0 0  ERC's 
the filing fee shall be $ 2 , 2 5 0 .  

(4) For applications in which the utility has the 
capacity to serve more than 4,000 ERCIs the filing 
fee shall be $3,000. 

PART IX TARIFF 

Exhibit See Footnote 1. Pacre 1 - The original and two copies 
of water and/or wastewater tariff(s) containing all rates, 
classifications, charges, rules and regulations. Sample 
tariffs are enclosed with the application package. 
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I PART X BPPIDA VIT 

I Gerald S. Allen (applicant) do 
solemnly swear or affirm that the facts stated in the 
foregoing application and all exhibits attached thereto are 
true and correct and that said statements of fact thereto 
constitutes a complete statement of the matter / 

to which it 
7 

relates. / 

BY: d 
..- 

Applicant? Signatcre 

Gerald S. Allen 
Applicant's Name (Typed) 

Chairman/President/CEO 
Applicant's Title * 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1st day of June, 1998. 

* If applicant is a corporation, the affidavit must be made by the 
president or other officer authorized by the by-laws of the 
corporation to act for it. If applicant is a partnership or 
association, a member of the organization authorized to make such 
affidavit shall execute same. 
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ATTACHMENT 4, EXHlBIT A 

CITY OF OCALNMARION COUNTY 
WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE 

TERRITORIAL AGREEMENT 
COUNTY CONTRACT NO. 96-2 

THIS XGF.EilM&W is made and entsred into this 74th day of 
September, 1996, by and between the CITY OF OCALA, a municipal 
corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "OCALA" )  , and MARION 
COU" (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), a political 
subdivision of the State of Florida. 

R E C I T A L S  
1. 4s provided by law and pursuant to the City Charter of 

OCALq, and Chapters 166 and 180, Florida Statutes, OCALA is 
authorized to provide water and wastewater service, and pursuant to 
such authority, presently furnishes water and wastewater service to 
its customers both within and beyond the corporate limits of OCALA.  

2. As provided by law and pursuant to Chapters 1 2 5  and 1 5 3 ,  
Florida Statutes, COUNTY is authorized to provide water and 
wastewater service, and pursuant to such authority, presently 
furnishes water and wastewater service to customers within and 
throughout Marion County, Florida. 

3. O C X A  and the COUNTY both recognize the desirability and 
the need to effectively provide water and wastewater service in a 
manner which is both economical and consistent with the water 
conservation and management policy of the State of Florida. 

4. The duplication of water and wastewater service 
facilities by the parties would result in needless and wasteful 
expenditures and wasted resources. 

5. It is the intent of OCALA and the COUNTY to conserve and 
protect water resources in the interest of public health, safety 
and welfare, and to avoid and eliminate the circumstances giving 
rise to the aforesaid duplications and resulting uneconomical and 
wasteful operations. To that end, the parties have agreed to an 

1 
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allocation of water and wastewater service areas for the period 
hereinafter fixed and set forth. 

0 .  r In order to accorrplish said area allocation, the Parties 
have agreed upon a boundary line (hereinafter "Territorial 
Boundary") I encompassing an area hereinafter referred to as the 
"OCL4 Territorial Area. " The Territorial Boundary and OCALX's 
Territorial .-ea are described and generally depicted in Composite 
Exhibit "A" attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. 

ACCORDINGLY, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and 
mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The above recitals are true and 
correct, and by this reference are incorporated in this Agreement. 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. The COUNTY and 0 C . U  agree that in 
construing this Agrement, the following words, phrases, and terms 
shall have the following meanings: 

2.1 "Territorial Boundary" means the boundary line - 
described and depicted in Composite Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

2 . 2  "Ocala Territorial Area" means all lands lying - 
within and encompassed by the Territorial Boundary. 

2.3 "Adjacent Territorial kea" means the lands lying in 
Marion County, Florida, and outside of the 0CAL.A Territorial Area. 

- 
2 . 4  "Agreement" means this City of Ocala/Marion County 

Water and Wastewater Service Territorial Agreement, as it may from 
- 

- 

time to time be modified. 

2 . 5  " F P S C  Certificated Area" shall mean an area for 
water or wastewater service that has been certificated by the 
Florida Public Service Commission. 

- 

2 . 6  "Customers" means water and/or wastewater customers 
of either party hereto subject to transfer or exchange hereunder, 

- 
and shall include all such customers whether presently or hereafter 
connected. 

2 . 7  'Water and Wastewater Facilities" means any potable 
water or wastewater plant, system, facility or property and 

- 

2 .  
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additions, extensions, and improvements thereto at any future time 
constructed and acquired as part thereof, useful or necessary or 
having the present capacity for future use in connection with the 
dwslopment of sources, treatment, or purification and distribution 
of water for domestic, commercial, or industrial use, including the 
provision of fire protection, and/or treatment and disposal of 
wastewater from the same, and without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing, shall include wells, treatment plants, storage 
tanks, mains, lines, valves, pumping stations, reclamation and 
disposal facilities, sewage treatment plants, laterals and pipes 
for the purposes of carrying water to and wastewater from the 
premises connected with such system, wastewater reuse facilities, 
aerators, chemical feed equipment, motors, engines, reservoirs, 
tanks, buildings, all associated piping, lines, conduit, valves, 
headers and other appurtenances required to pump, treat and 
transmit water, wastewater and wastewater reuse, the pipes, lines 
and conduits required to connect such Water and Wastewater 
Facilities to the water and wastewater transmission lines, and 
shall include all real and personal property and any interests 
therein, rights, easz-nents and franchises of any nature whatsoever 
relating to any such system &rid necessary or convenient for the 
operation thereof. 

2 . 8  "Service Area" shall mean the territory in which a 
party is entitled hereunder to provide water and/or wastewater 

- 
service to Customers. 

2 . 9  "Contiguous Area" shall mean the Parcels located 
along and on either side of the Territorial Boundary, or, where the 
Territorial Boundary is adjacent to a street, road or highway, on 
either side of the street, road or highway. 

- 

2.10 'Parcel" shall mean a parcel of real property and 
shall be the larger of: a parcel having a unique tax parcel 
identification number; a platted subdivision; a development of 
regional impact; or a planned unit development. The size of a 
Parcel shall be determined based upon the applicant's development 
plans at the time application for water or wastewater serrice is 
made. 

SECTION 3 .  SERVICE AREAS AND NEW CUSTOMERS. 

- 3.1 Service Areas. Subject to the provisions of 
this Agreement concerning changes to the Territorial Boundary and 
Service Areas: OCALA's Territorial Area is hereby designated as 
OC.9LA's Service Area for the period of time hereinafter specified; 

3 
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and the 
COUNTY ' s 

Adjacent Territorial Area is hereby designated as the 
Service Area for the same period. 

3.2 New Customers. - 
3.2.1 Generally. The COUNTY shall not 

hereafter serve or offer to s2rve any Customer in OCALA'S 
Service -*ea, on a tmqorary o r  Termanent basis, unless OCU 
requests the C O W  in writing ta do so and the COUNTY agrees 
to do so; and O C L A  shall not '?.ereafter serve o r  offer to 
serve any Customer lxated in t3.2 COUNTY'S Service Area, on a 
temporary or permar.ent basis, unless the COUNTY likewise 
requests O C U ,  in writing, to do so and OCALA agrees to do 
so. 

3.2.2 FPSC Certificated Area. Notwith- 
standing Section 3.2.1, if the COUNTY or OCALA hereafter 
purchases a private utility serving Customers in FPSC 
Certificated Areas, the COUXi or OC- may serve such 
Customers. 0 C . U  shall first ntgatiate with the said private 
utility(ies1 within O C - U ' s  Ser;ice Area. Only after OClzw 
has terminated negotiations may the COUNTY begin negotiations. 
Similarly the COUNTY shall first negotiate with the said 
private utility(ies) within its Service Area. Only after the 
COUNTY has terminated negotiations may OC-2w begin 
negotiations. In the event of such purchase, the party 
acquiring the private utility and the other party shall 
negotiate in good faith in an eff3rt to reach an agreement to 
sell to the other parEy the facilities of the private utility 
located entirely within the Serg-ice Area of the other party. 

3.2.3 Contiguous Areas. Notwithstanding 
Section 3.2.1, service may be offered or provided to Customers 
in Contiguous Areas as follows. If the owner of, or a person 
or entity with a contract to buy, a Parcel located in the 
Contiguous Area makes a written request for water or 
wastewater service, the party in whose Territorial Area the 
Parcel is located (the "first party") shall have the initial 
right to provide the requested service to the Parcel; the 
written request for service must contain, at a minimum, the 
applicant's agreement to pay all wastewater or water capacity 
charges, or their equivalent, charged by the first party, and 
shall comply with all other reasonable rules and regulations 
customarily inrposed by the first party concerning applications 
for service. If the first party is unable to provide the 
requested service within one year of the date of the request, 
either party to this agreement shall be entitled to provide 
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the requested service. The Parcel shall thereafter be 
considered to be within the Service Area of the party entitled 
to provide and first providing the service hereunder. 

3.2.4 Divided Parcels. Notwithstanding 
Section 3.2.1, if a Parcel is bisected by the Territorial 
Boundary, then at t h s  property owner's option either party may 
serve or offer to serve Customers located within such Parcel 
(eyjen if they are located within the Service k e a  of the other 
party), and the entirety of such Parcel shall, following such 
service, be considered to be xithin the Service Area of the 
party providing the service. 

3.2.5 Reuse Facilities. Nothing set forth 
in this Agreement shall restrict the operation or expansion of 
a party's existing or future wastewater reuse facilities or 
wastewater residuals (i.e., sludge) disposal sites located in 
the Service Area of the other party; provided, however, that 
the operation or expansion of new wastewater reuse facilities 
outside of a party's Service Area shall be subject to existing 
and future regulations applicable within the other party's 
Service Area. 

3.3 Effect of AMexation on Service Areas. The - 
Service Areas shall be unaffected by annexation. 

3.4 Conditions of Service. Nothing set forth herein 
shall preclude either party from imposing conditions in return for 
providing water or wastewater service including, without 
limitation, requiring adherence to appropriate criteria, standards 
and regulations (including a party's land development regulations 
adopted in accordance with state law) relating to design and 
construction of project infrastructure. Further, 0C.U may, as a 
condition of providing service to Customers or property within the 
OCALA Service Area but outside of the OCALA city limits, require 
that the Customer or owner of the property request that the 
property be voluntarily annexed into OCALA either immediately or, 
if the property is not then contiguous to the City limits, when it 
becomes contiguous. The COUNTY shall provide notice to developers 
seeking to develop land located in the unincorporated portion of 
O C A L A ' s  Service Area that such land is located in 0C.U's Service 
Area and that OCALA may condition service as set forth herein. 
OC.9LA shall provide notice to developers seeking to develop land 
located in the incorporated portion of the COUNTY'S Service Area 
that such land is located in the COuNn's Service Area and that the 
COUNTY may condition service as set forth herein. 

- 
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SECTION 4. T W S F E R  OF CUSTOMERS h SERVICE DISTRIBUTION 
FACILITIES. 

4.1 Alteration of Territorial Boundary. Recognizing 
that future circumstances coupled with good engineering practice 
and economical operation may necessitate alterations to the 
Territorial Bouadary as herein described, the parties hereby ar;ree 
that such may be altered by mutual consent. The Party desiring 
such alteration of the Territorial Boundary shall prepare documents 
fully describing such alteration, which documents must be approved 
by the governing boards of each party as amendments to tnis 
Agreement. All such letter agreements shall be in accordance with 
Section 5 herein, and any applicable interconnection agreements 
between the parties. The documents shall provide a map or legal 
description of the proposed new Territorial Boundary to amend 
Composite Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

- 

4.2 Transfer of customers. Should the Territorial 
Boundary be altered in accordance with Section 4.1 herein, the 
COUNTY shall transfer to OCALA, and/or OCAU shall transfer to 
COUNTY, by direct transfer, all Customers now or hereafter serged 
by either which are not in their respective service areas; and all 
such transfers shall be made on a basis conformable to sound and 
economical engineering and operating practices. The transfer of 
Customers hereunder shall be effectuated when the party acquiring 
the Customers advises the other party of its ability to provide the 
required service. 

- 

4.3 Connection Charges and Fees. Unless the party 
acquiring the Customers is required to upgrade its Water or 
Wastewater Facilities as a result of the transfer, no additional 
physical connection fees or their equivalent will be charged to the 
Customers receiving service at the time of the transfer. For 
undeveloped portions of the transferred property or new Customers, 
all appropriate connection fees or their equivalent will be due in 
accordance with the receiving party's rules and regulations. 

- 

SECTION 5. OCALA AND COUNTY SYSTEMS LETTER AGREEMENTS. 
The following provisions shall govern the alteration of the 
Territorial Boundary and the provision of Wholesale Service: 

5.1 Application for Wholesale Service. Either 
party to this Agreement may submit a letter to the other party 
requesting wholesale service in accordance with Section 5 . 2  hereof 
and, if applicable, said letter agreement shall: (a) request an 
interconnection with the other party's system, (b) designate on a 
map the point(s) of connection to the other party's system, (c) 
specify the term or duration of connection and the quantity of 
water (expressed as average daily and peak hourly flows in g p m  

- 
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including fire protection), or the capacity of wastewater 
(expressed as average daily flow in gpd) requested, (d) designate 
the property (ies) to be served by sucn interconnection ( s )  , (e) 
~rovide preliminary plans and specifications for installation of 
any interconnection(s), and (f) if the wholesale service is to be 
provided on a tenporary basis, provide assurances for the 
discontinuation of such wholesale service at the conclusion of the 
service period. 

- 5 . 2  L e t t e r  Acrreements. Within sixty (60) days 
after the date a party receives a letter application pursuant to 
Subsection 5.1, it: shall indicate its acceptance in a writing 
containing a proposed letter agreement outlining the terms and 
conditions of the wholesale service; or may indicate its rejection 
in writing. A party may reject or accept the application in its 
sole discretion. Failure to respond in writing within sixty (60) 
days shall be deemed a rejection of the offer. 

- 5.3 Accentance of L e t t e r  Aqreements. The party 
a?plying shall signify ics acceptance of any such letter agreement 
submitted pursuant to Section 5 .2  by submitting, in accordance with 
Section 5.1 hereof, a letter of acceptance, along with final 
written plans and specifications for installation of any 
interconnection(s). Said letter and plans and specifications shall 
be submitted within sixty (60) days of the date of receipt of a 
letter agreement issued pursuant to subsection 5.2. The plans and 
specifications shall be subject to the review and approval of the 
party providing wholesale service (hereinafter “provider”) which 
approval is s u b j e c t  to tne terms herein and shall not be 
c 3 re a s o na b 1 y w i t hhe Id 

7 5.4 Connect ion Costs. The party requesting the 
change to a Territorial Boundary or the wholesale service 
(hereinafter “purchaser”) shall be responsible for paying in 
advance the costs of physically connecting to the provider’s system 
and the provider shall then be responsible for making said 
connection(s) . The provider shall also provide reasonable and 
necessary metering equipment and appurtenant fixtures for billing 
purposes at the expense of the purchaser. Responsibility of 
strvice shall pass from the provider to the purchaser at the outlet 
flange of the provider’s meter. 

SECTION 6. CONSTRUCTION OF WATER AND WASTEWATER 
FACILITIES. AND RELATED FEES. 

- 6.1 Construction and Ricrht of Wav. OCALA is 
exempted from obtaining a Utility Facility Permit from the COUNTY 

7 
A-4-7 ATTACHMENT 4, EXHIBIT A 



for construction of Water or Wastewater Facilities within 0 ~ ~ ’ s  
Service Area. If necessary or desirable in order to provide the 
services contemplated by this Agreement, the party ha;-ing 
jurisdiction shall not unreasonably withhold right-of-way 
utilization permits over, upon, and under any lands within area 
where the party has jurisdictional authority for the purpose of 
permitting the othez party to install, maintain, repair, alter and 
operate wastewater lines, water lines, waterworks, wastewater 
works, force mains, lift stations, water mains, wastewater mains, 
water distribution systems, pipes, valves, gates, pipelines, and 
all machinery and aparatus appurtenant to all of the foregoizg. 

6 . 2  Condit ional  Consent for U s e  of Parties‘ R i a h t s  
of Wav. either party may 
utilize the other party’s right-of-way for water and wastewater 
transmission and collection facilities subject to the following 
conditions: (1) the party seeking to utilize the other party’s 
right-of-way (the ”User”) notifies that other party of the intended 
use in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to any installation, 
( 2 )  the User sends copies of plans and specifications for the 
installation of facilities to be constructed within the said right- 
of-way, (3) the User hereby assumes all liability and obligation 
for payment of any damages, claims, or penalties that occur by 
reason of the installation or operation of said facilities, ( 4 )  the 
User pays the applicable right-of-way utilization fee to that other 
party, and ( 5 )  the User does not unreasonably interfere with pre- 
existing uses within that other party‘s right-of-way. 

- 
Both parties agree and consent that 

- -  6.3 F e e s .  Neither party shall charge the other 
party a franchise fee for the right to provide water or wastewater 
service but either party may charge a right-of-way utilization fee 
for the use of right of way by the other party. 

SECTION 7 .  ASSIGM.IENTS. The COUNTY and OCALA shall 
both have the right to independently assign or transfer all or any 
part of this Agreement, and the rights, duties, and obligations 
hereunder to any properly authorized commission, authority, or 
other public agency or private entity empowered by law and 
financially able to effect the purposes of this Agreement, which 
must assume, and thereafter be exclusively responsible for the 
performance of the terms of this Agreement to be performed by the 
COUNTY or OCALA hereunder. Such assignment shall not occur without 
the consent of the nonassigning party. 
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SECTION 8. NOTICE; PROPER RXM. Any notice 
required or allowed to be delivered hereunder shall be in writing 
and be deemed to be delivered when (a) hand delivered to the 
official hereinafter designated, or ( b )  upon receipt of such notice 
when deposited in United States mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to a party at the address 
set forth opposite the party's name below, or at such other address 
as the party shall have specified by written notice to the other 
party delivered in accordance herewith: 

COUNTY: Marion County 
601 S . E .  25th Avenue 
Ocala, FL 34471-2690 
Attention: COUNTY Administrator 

OCALA : City of Ocala 
151 Southeast Osceola Avenue 
Ocala, Florida 34471 
Attention: City Manager 

SECTION 9. INDEMNIFICATION. T o  the extent allowed 
by Florida law, including Chapter 768, Florida Statutes, the COUNTY 
and OCALA agree to indemnify and (a) to hold the other harmless 
from the negligent acts or omissions of itself, its officers, 
employees, or agents, arising out of this agreement and (b) to hold 
the other harmless from third-party suits which result from the 
discontinuance of water or wastewater service for failure of the 
third party o r  purchaser to pay for water or wastewater service or 
other causes. Neither the COUNTY nor OCALA shall, by virtue of 
entering into this agreement, waive the sovereign immunity limits 
established by Florida law. 

SECTION 10. SERVICE STANDARDS. Each of the parties 
hereto agrees to comply with all state, regional, and federal 
requirements and rules applicable to the provision of water and 
wastewater service to the public. Under any interconnection 
accomplished hereunder, however, the provider does not guarantee 
any special service, pressure, quality, capacity, availability or 
other facility other than that which is required to fulfill the 
provider's duty of reasonable care to those to whom it provides 
water and wastewater service. 

SECTION 11. SEVERABILITY. If any part of this 
Agreement is found invalid or unenforceable by any court, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the other parts of 
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this Agreement if the rights and obligations of the parties 
contained therein are not materially prejudiced and if the 
intentions of the parties can continue to be effected. To that 
end, this Agreement is declared severable. 

SECTION 12. TERM OF AGREEME;NT. The term of this 
Agreement shall commence on the date OCALA formally approves this 
Agreement or the date of approval by the COUNTY, whichever is 
later, and shall continue in full force and effect for an initial 
period of twenty (20) years. This Agreement shall thereafter be 
automatically renewed for consecutive periods of five ( 5 )  years 
unless either party gives notice, at least one year before the 
expiration of the initial period or of any renewal period, that the 
agreement shall not be renewed at the conclusion of the then 
current period. 

SECTION 13. TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is hereby 
declared of the essence to the lawful performance o,f the duties and 
obligations contained in this Agreement. 

SECTION 14. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement and the 
provisions contained herein shall be construed, controlled, and 
interpreted according to the laws of the State of Florida. 

SECTION 15. NOTICES; DEFAULT. Each of the parties 
hereto shall give the other party written notice of any material 
breach or default hereunder and shall allow the defaulting party 
thirty (30) days fram the date of receipt to cure such defaults. 
Upon expiration of the thirty (30) day period, the party not in 
default shall have the right to pursue any remedy now or hereafter 
existing at law or in equity including a decree compelling specific 
performance and restraining by injunction any actual or threatened 
breach or default of any material obligation in this agreement. 
The COUNTY and OCALA agree that money damages are insufficient to 
compensate for damages resulting from a breach or default of any 
material obligation hereunder, and that the non-defaulting party 
will lack an adequate remedy at law for such breach or default. 

SECTION 16. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT; INTENT AND 

INTERPRETATION. In construing this Agreement, it is herebv - 
declared by the parties to be the purpose and the intent of this 
Agreement to effectively provide water and wastewater service and 
to prevent the needless and wasteful expenditures and harm to water 
conservation and management which would result from unrestrained 
competition between two government utilities operating in 
overlapping Service Areas. Nothing contained herein is intended to 
prohibit persons, corporations or governments other than the 
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parties hereto from lawfully providing water and wastewater service 
within Marion County, Florida, subject to applicable state law. 
OCALA and the COUNTY do not intend and are not by this Agreement: 
(a) placing undue o r  unreasonable restrictions upon free 
competition; (b) fixip-c; prices; or (c) unreasonably limiting the 
availability of water and wastewater service capacity. This 
Agreement shall not be  construed as forming any basis of any 
understanding for the mcdifications or alteration of the powers of 
OCALA or the COUNTY as they now exist or may be modified in the 
future, except as are lawfully and expressly modified by the terms 
of this Agreement. 

SECTION 17. COVENANT OF MUTUX, COOPERATION. O c a  
and COUNTY shall each use its best efforts to assist each other in 
obtaining and retaining permits, easements, rights of way, and 
other approvals necessary hereunder and in the adoption and 
approval of any implementing laws, ordinances, resolutions or 
comprehensive plan provisions. Within one year of the date hereof, 
OCALA and the COUNTY shall adopt any laws, ordinances, resolutions, 
or comprehensive plan prmisions reasonably necessary to implement 
this agreement, and shall repeal and/or, on a continuing basis, 
refrain from adopting any laws, ordinances, resolutions, or 
comprehensive plan provisions which are inconsistent with or impede 
the implementation of this agreement. 

SECTION 18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes 
all previous discussions, understandings and agreements between the 
parties relating to tht subject matter of this Agreement. 

SECTION 19. DISCLAIMER OR THIRD-PARTY 
BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue - 
upon or by reason hereof, to or for the benefit of any third party 
not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or give 
any person, corporation or governmental entity other than the 
parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of 
this Agreement or any pr3visions or conditions hereof; and all of 
the provisions, representations, covenants and conditions herein 
contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding 
upon the parties hereco and their respective representatives, 
successors and assigns. 

SECTION 20. VALIDITY OF AGREEMENT. Each party 
represents and covenants t o  the other its respective authority to 
enter into this Agreer .?nt ,  and acknowledge the validity and 
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enforceability of this Agreement and that this is a valid 
interlocal agreement adopted pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida 
Statutes. OCALA hereby represents, warrants and covenants to and 
with the COUNTY that this Agreement has been validly approved, that 
it has been fully executed and delivered by OCALA, that it 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding contract enforceable by the 
COUNTY against OCALA in accordance with its terms, and that the 
enforceability hereof is not subject to any impairment by the 
applicability of any public policy o r  police powers. The COUNTY 
hereby represents, warrants and covenants to and with OCALA that 
this Agreement has been validly approved by the Marion Couzty Board 
of County Commissioners, that it has been duly executed and 
delivered by the COUNTY, that it constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding contract enforceable by OCALA against the COUNTY in 
accordance with its terms, and that the enforceability hereof is 
not subject to any impairment by the applicability of any public 
policy or police powers. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have 
hereunder executed this Agreement on the date and year first above 
written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA 
in the presence of: 

d. 
/ By: 

Steve F. Henning, Chairma6 
Board of Cow.ty 
Commi s s ione z s  

Nane : Gordon B. Johns ton 

%flE (XI 

Attest: - 
Name: Janet B. McNeal Thomas P. %linker, Clerk 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MARION 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me 
this afi day of , 1996, by Steve E'. Hennang, 
Chairman of The Board bf County Commissioners of Marion County, 
Florida, on behalf of MARION COUNTY. He is personally known to me 
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C U  . .  
.I-&- e&Am and * (did n o t )  t a k e  an o a t h .  

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE 
OF MARION COUNTY ONLY. 
APPROVED AS TO FORM. 

J h I E 7 -  A. m=rclwL 
Name of Acknowlcdger Typed, Priated or Stamped 

sel 

Signed, sealed and delivered CITY OF OCALA 
in the presence of: 

Coun c i 1 P re s i der. t / 
By: Valerie J. Forster 

ATTEST : 
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FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE 
OF GITYAF, 0,CALA ONLY. 

S TO FORM AND LEGALITY. 

Attorney P tr' 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MARION 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me 

this 9 4  day of S Z ~ C ~ ~ ~ C ,  , 1996, by Michael A. Finn, President of Ocala City Council, on behalf of the CITY OF OCALA. 
He is personally known to me 
\ fication and 

I S i ~ a C u r e o f  P e r s o n T a k i n g ~ c l m o w l t d ~ n t  

N a m e  of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or  Stamped 
- . .  Patrick G. G i l l i f f a n  

City Attorney 
T i t l e  or Rank 

Ser ia l  Number, i f  any. 

F:\WSR\LDITRUN\402OO-l\CLEAH-10.AGR 
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EXHIBIT A 
Need for Service 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. 
(OSUI) in Marion County 

Avatar Properties Inc. (MI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avatar Holdings Inc., owns all of the 
land, consisting of approximately 4,666 acres, included within the boundary of the proposed original 
certificates (hereinafter called Ocala Springs). API or its predecessor company, GAC Properties Inc. 
have owned Ocala Springs since 1970 and have prepared development plans, including platting. 
However, actual development has been limited to a 15-acre campground at Indian Lake (see History 
of Ocala Springs, Attachment 1, Exhibit B). API now intends to commence development of Ocala 
Springs (residential, mixed use and limited commercial and industrial) as an active adult community 
(age restricted) within two years. The development plans, which have not been completed, are 
predicated on the assurances and economic feasibility of water and wastewater service which can only 
be achieved through the creation of a utility entity and the construction of the required water and 
wastewater infrastructure to serve the development. 

The annual reports filed with the Commission for all water and wastewater utilities having service 
areas within two miles of some part of the proposed original certificates were analyzed (see 
Attachment 1). It was concluded that none of these utilities has the economic or physical f d i t y  
capability to provide water and wastewater service for the proposed active adult community. 

Ocala Springs is not within the service area of the City of Ocala and the Marion County Water and 
Wastewater Utility Planning and Service Areas as prescribed by Marion County Ordinance 98-10 , 
Section 3(3) (see Attachment 2). Attachment 3 depicts Ocala Springs, relative to said Planning and 
Service Areas. Attachment 4 is the City of Ocala/Marion County Water and Wastewater Service 
Territory Agreement. 
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Attachment 1, Exhibit A 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates in Marion County for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. (OSUI) 

Utility Companies having some part of service areas within two miles of Ocala Springs (See Note 1) 

UTILITY 
~~ 

Marion Utilities, Inc. 
A.P. Utilities, Inc. 
Ocala Oaks Utilities, Inc. 
Tradewinds Utilities, Inc. 
Sunshine Utilities of Central FI., Inc 
C.F.A.T. H20, Inc. 

UTILITY 
lASS(2) 

A 
B 
B 
C 
B 
C 

NO. ERCS 
SERVED 

4,382 
1,173 
1,037 

260 
1,612 

27 

_____ 
NO. 

iREAS(3) 
23 
6 
11 
1 

22 
1 

______~ 

AADF 

(MGD) 
1.306 
0.452 
0.379 
0.094 
0.661 
0.012 

ZAPACITY 

(ERC) 
6,000 
1,740 
2,135 
1,600 
5,162 

400 

LES. CAP 

(ERC) 
1,618 

567 
1,098 
1,340 
3,550 

373 

~~ 

NO ERCs 
SERVED 

163 
None 
None 
142 
None 
35 

-~ - 
NO. 

iREAS( 3) 
1 

None 
None 

1 
None 

1 

NOTES: 
(1) Information extracted from annual reports filed with the Public Service Commission for year-end 1997 unless otherwise noted 
(2) Class A - Gross Revenues over $750,000. 

Class B - Gross Revenues of $150,000 or more but less than $750,000. 
Class C - Gross Revenues of less than $150,000. 

(3) Areas are primarily residential subdivisions. 
(4) Remark in annual report indicates owner is attempting to sell utility. 
(5) Annual report for year-end 1996. 
(6) Manager is President of Tradewinds Utilities, Inc. 

AADF 

(MGD) 
0.027 
None 
None 
0.041 
None 
0.01 1 

~~ ~ 

STEM 
.APAC ITY 
~~ ~~ 

(ERC) 
163 
None 
None 
400 
None 
353 

!ES CAP 
(ERC) 

0 

None 
None 
258 
None 
31 8 
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ATTACHMENT 2, EXHBIT A 

ORDINANCE NO. 98-10 

AN ORDlNANCe OF MARION COUN'R, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 9645 RELATING TO UTILITIES; AMENDING SECTION 
1 OF ORDINANCE NO. 96-36 BY MODIFYING THE SHORT TITLE; 
AMENDING SECTION 2 OF ORDINANCE NO. 9635 BY W I N G  
ADDITIONAL FINDINGS; AMENDING SECTION 4 OF ORDINANCE NO. 

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS; AMEND SECTION 24 OF ORDlNANCe 
NO. 96-35 REGARDING EXISTING AGREEMENTS; ADDRESSING 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERWCE COMMISSION MATTERS; PROVIDING FOR 

96-35 BY MODlMlNG THE SERVICE AREA DESIGNATION AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF MARION COUNTY HEREBY 
ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Sectjan 1 of Ordinance No. 96-35 is hereby repealed and a new Sechon 
1 is created to read as follows: 

"Sectlon 7. Short Title. This Ordinance shall be known and 
maybe cited as the "Marion County Utility Service Territory 
Availability, Concurrency, and Extension Rules." 

Section 2. Amendment to Sectron 2 of Marfon County Ordinance No. 96-35. 
Section 2 of Ordinance No. 96-35 is repealed and a new Section 2 is created to read as 
follows: 

"Section 2. Commksion Findings. in adopting this 
Ordinance, the Board of County Commissioners of Marion 
County, Florida, hereby makes the following findings: 

Based on the projections set forth in their 
respective Comprehensive Plana, the County and adjacent 
neighboring cauntles are expected to experience population 
increases within the next twenty years. 

(1 )  

(2) As this population increases, the demand 
far centraJ water and wastewater services will increase. 

(3) Pursuant to Section Article VIII, 
Florida Constitution, and Section 125.01 (l)(k), Florida Statutes, 
and other applicable general and special acts, but excluding 
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specifically Chapter 153, Florida statutes, the B a r d  is 
authorized to provide, regulate, purchase, canstnrct, imprwe, 
extend, enlarge and reconstruct water and wastewater 
facilities; and operate, manage and control water and 
wastewater facilities Mhm the County. 

(4) The Board has previously rscognired in 'ita 
support documents, objectives and policies of the Marion 
County Camprehensive Plan (the "Plan") that It must utjlire its 
police power in order to protect water resources located in 
Marion County. 

(5) In 4.7.1.6 on page 1-74 of the Part 1 
Support Document for the Future Land Use Element, t h e  
County has recognized the necessity of providing central water 
and wastewater semi- to its residents. 

(6) Specific pallcies within Part If ofthe Future 
Land Use EIement call for the protection of well fields and 
aquifer recharge areas within Marion County. 

(7) Future Land Use Element Policy 1.4 and 
other policies of the Comprehensive Plan authorize the Board 
to adopt certain rules and performance standards related to the 
provision of central water and wastewater services within 
Marion County. 

(8) Policy 1.9 of the Future Land Use Element 
requires that publlc facflltles and utilities shall be located to 
maximize the efficiency of services provided, minimize their 
casts, minimize their impacts on the natural environment, and 
minimize their impact on adjacent land uses. 

(9) Demands for potable water are increasing 
inside Marion County, just as demands for potable water are 
Increasing outside Marion County. 

(10) Stringent state and federal water and 
wastewater treatment and operatian standards have been 
promulgated, and with these Increasing costs of mnstructing 
central water and wastewater facilities, the County's ability to 
provide central water end mattwater service within Marian 
County may be limited. 
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(11) Marion County has already determined in 
its Comprehensive Plan that there has been a proliferetion of 
small, ineffiaent water and Wastewater treatment plants. 

(12) I f  the County does not provide adequate 
central water and wastewater sewice within its designated 
service area to meet increased demand, it will be faced wlth 
private sector pressure to aUow the continued construction and 
installation of substandard, prhzateiy financed, and operated 
water and wastewater treatment plants and septic tanks. 

(13) The proliferation of privately financed and 
operated water and wastewater treatment plants will antnbute 
to higher user mtes. 

(14) The potential for the County to have to 
assume operadon af these privately flnanced and operated 
facilities in the future is great. 

(15) Furthermore, the unique water resources 
of Marion County have prevlously been determined to be 
susceptible to ham through cantamination from the 
proliferation of package treatment plants and over-exploitation 
of the  water msources. 

(16) The proliferation of such package water 
and sewer treatment plants where there is no provision for the 
later transfer of customers and ffows from such plants to a 
regional, subregional or area-wlde plant is hereby declared to 
be a public h a m  detrimental to the Citizens of Marion County. 

(17) Policy 1.5 of the Sanitary Sewer 
Subelement of the Infrastructure Element of the Marion County 
Comprehens'm Plan requlres the County to develop guidelines 
for requiring existing, interim or package sewage treatment 
plants to connect to a regional or subregional sewer system 
when these systems are available and to require such plants 
to treat wastewater to a standard no less than that established 
pursuant to the F Iorida Department of Environmental 
Protection. 

(18) Objective 2 of the Sanitary Sewer 
Subelement, and Objective 1 of the Pokble Water 
Subelement, both of the Infrastructure Element of the Marion 
County Comprehensive Plan provide for the County to update 
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its Water and Wastewater Maste r  Plan from Ume to time as 
deemed necessary by the Board. 

(19) Policy 2.2 and 2.3 of the Potable Water 
Subelement of the Infrastructure Element of the Marion 
County Comprehensive Plan require the County to develop 
guidelines for requiring existing water treatment plants ta 
connect to a regional or subregional system when these 
systems are available and are economically feasible. 

(20) Objective 5 of the Capital Improvements 
Element of t h e  Marion County Comprehensive Plan provides 
for the  County to manage the land development process so 
that public facility needs created by previously h u e d  
development orders and future development do not exceed the 
ablllty of focal govemment 10 fund and provide or require 
provision of needed facility capital improvements and to 
maintain the adopted facility level of service standards. 

(21) Policy 5.1 of the Capital Improvements 
Element of the Marion County Comprehensive Plan requires 
t h e  County to adopt a concurrency management system in 
accordance with and authorized by Section 163.31 80, FIarida 
Statutee, in order to imurc that the public facilities and services 
needed to support new development are available concurrent 
with t h e  impacts of such development 

(22) Policy 1.1 of the Future Land Use Element 
of the Marion County Comprehensive Plan requires the County 
to adapt land development regulations that contain specific and 
detalled provisions to prevent harm to the levels of service of 
public facilities and to prevent harm to the water resources of 
Marion County. 

(23) The County has previously accepted in 
June of 1993 a Water Suppfy and Wastewater Master Plan for 
Marion County, Florida. 

(24) The County adopted the Marion County 
Water Resource and Protection Plan, dated May 21, 1996, 
which has been incorporated into its Comprehensive Plan and 
which calls for. among other things. the  p m t e i a n  of the public 
health, safety, and welfare, the protection of Marion County 
water resources, the unification of fragmented utility services, 
the establishment of fair and cost effective rates for utility 
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sen/ice, the promotion of cansenation of water resou-, the 
adoption of rules gowning the construction, operation, and 
transfer of pri\ntdy finanad "3ubregional" systems to the 
County as part of the County system, and the development and 
impkmentation of varlous subregional service area programs, 
including without limitation the State Road 200 Conidor 
Subregional Program. 

(25) Implementing these policies will enable the 
County to discourage urban sprawl as required by the Marion 
County Comprehensive Plan and applicable Rules of the 
Florida Department of Community Affairs. 

(26) The financing of subregional water and 
wastewater facilities is complex, requires extensive planning 
and engineering, and calls for advanced participatlan by the 
development community so that adequate public facilities can 
be pravidcd to meet the impacts of that development. 

(27) Therefore, to protect groundwater 
resources, prevent sprawl, implement water and wastewater 
sefvice concunency, enable financing of County facilities, and 
provide for the most cost effectfve and environmentally 
acceptable central water and wastewater facilities. the County 
has determined the need to establish a just and equitable 
system for financing and selling water and wastewater service 
capacities in its subregional systems and to establish and 
d86igMtO its aem'cc area so that public lunds are Rot wasted. 

(28) The County, then deems it necessary to 
establish its setvice area rules so that water and wastewater 
service may be made inmilable from the County and extended 
to new customers on an equitable basis. 

(29) The County declares that these service 
territory, availability, and extension rules have, as their goal, 
the establishment d a uniform method of determining 
contributions in aid of constwcdon such that all such 
contributions shall be nondiscriminatory against consumets in 
the service area of the utility and shall be applied as nearly as 
possible with uniformity to all consumers and prospective 
consumers in the semice area of the County. 

(30) The County has full and exclusive authority 
over the management, operation, and control of all of the 
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County's utiriffes and the authortty to prescribe rules and 
regulations governing the use of such fadities whenever such 
are pmvlded by the County, and to make such changes from 
time to time in such rules and regulations a3 it deerns 
necessary. 

(31) The construction of water and wastewater 
system improvements and extensions is an essential utility 
senn'ce. 

(32) The County has provided the required 
public n o t i  and held the necessary public hearing@) in order 
to adopt these rules. 

Section 3. Amendment to Section 4 of Ordinance No. 9635. Seetion 4 of 
Ordinance No. 9635 is hereby repealed and a new Section 4 is created to read as folIws: 

"Section 4. Application for Seivtce, 

(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to use 
County water andlor wastewater services without first making 
application in writing for a water permit and/or wastewater 
permit and paying all charges incident to said application. 
Application shall be made on forms furnished by the County, 
shall constitute an agreement by the customer to abide by the 
utility rules in regard to its sewice, and shall be in accord with 
the County's Rate Ordinance. Applications for services 
requested by fims, partnerships, associations and carpora- 
tions shall be tendenad only by their duly authorized agents, 
and the official title of the agent shall be shown on the 
application. 

(2) A11 applications for an extension of the 
County's Water and/or Wastewater System shall be addressed 
to the County statjng the location, beginning and termination 
thereof, with plans and specMcations in triplicate attached 
where such plans and specificatl ons are required. 

(3) The Board of County Commissioners 
hereby establishes its exclusive water and wastewater service 
area as that area described in Exhibit "A' attached to and 
incorporated in this ordinance exclusive of those areas 
certificated by Public SeMce Commission, those areas served 
by existing water or wastewater systems, those areas served 
or planned to be served within existing lawfully created 
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communtty development districts, or those  areas setved or to 
be served pursuant to territorial agreement by a muniapality as 
of April 21, 1998. The Board of County Commissioners may 
enlarge or reduce this area by amendment to this Ordinance. 

(4) The County may designate a period of 
time (hereinafter referred to as an "allocation period'') when all 
those persons or entities who own land within all or a portion 
of the County's Water and Wastewater System service area 
shall appty and pay applicable fees to the County for water and 
wastewater service capaclty In the County's Water and 
Wastewater System. The Board of County Commissioners by 
resolution may offer water and/or wastewater service capacity 
to certain portions of said service area in advance of or at 
differing times than other portions. The Board of County 
Commissioners may by resolution deslgnate all or any portion 
of its service area and offer water and/or wastewater service 
capacrty to certain portions of said semice area in advance of 
other portions. The County shall publish notice of the times 
and location for acceptance of applications and payment of 
applicable fees in a newspaper of general clrculation fn Marion 
County, Florida at least fwe (5j days prior to the beginning af 
an allocation period. The County may require all information 
an said application that it deem reasonable and necessary, 
and may reject applications it determines are incomplete. Any 
application for a permit shall contain a legal description of the 
land constituting the service area for which such permit is to be 
issued. The legal description shall include only those lands 
owned by t h e  applicant far which the permit is to EBNB. The 
County shall permit applicants to purchase water and 
wastewater senn'ce capacities by phases of development If the 
applicant's development has been approved for more than one 
phase, but applicants must purchase a minimum of water and 
wastewater capacities necessary to accommodate one phase 
or 50 ERCs of their respective development, whichever is less. 
Once that applicant's phase of development has been 
completed, then water and wastewater capacities for any 
additional remaining phases must be purchased on a phase- 
by-phase basis until water and wastewater sewice capacities 
have been purchased for the entire development. If.any such 
person described hereinabove fails to apply for and purchase 
water and wastewater service capacity in the minimum 
capacities set forth above under these rules, the County may 
consider such failure in debmining whether or not to grant or 
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deny any development or construction permit or approval or 
rezoning appl-kab'on filed by such parson. 

(5) If an appllcatlon is approved, a written 
agreement in duplicate containing all terms and conditions 
relating to such system exbensions, approved by the County or 
its designee, shall be made and executed by and behveen the 
applicant property owner and County. 

(6) If any property owner. its successors or 
assigns within an area designated by the County pursuant to 
subsection 4(4) hereof fails to appiy for and purchase water 
and wastewater service capadty under these rules, the County 
may deny any land use, development, or construction order, 
permit, or approval or any comprehensive pian amendment or 
rezoning application filed by said person based upon said 
failure to purchase. 

(7) When cost effective, consistent with the 
Marion County Comprthensive Plan, and in the best interests 
of the customers, the County may at any time negotiate with 
other utilities that meet County standards to enlarge, expand, 
or modify the County's service area." 

Sectron 4. Amendment to Section 23 of Ordnance No. 96-35. Sectim 24 of 
Ordinance No. 96-35 is hereby repealed and a new Section 24 is created to read as 
follow6: 

"Section 24. Prior Agreements. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary cantained in this Policy, all those 
parties who claim wafer andlor wastewater capacity pursuant 
to any developers agreement or service agreement between 
Marion County and other parties, predating the effective date 
of this Ordlnance (hereafter "said agreements") shall be 
entitled to receive service pursuant to the terms of said 
contracts, so long as the party claiming rights under said 
agreement has fully performed all conditions precedent and 
subsequent such that the agreement is binding on all parties. 
The terms of these mles shall be applied and interpreted 
consistent with Florida law. and the provisions of any Marion 
County, Florida agreements. Should any such contract require 
the delivery of a financial commitment in order to invoke or 
effectuate the provisims of the agreement befare the County's 
obligation for servfce Is to arlse, parzies to any such agreement 
shall have thirty (30) days from the date of the effective date of 
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this Ordinance to deliver the financial commitment. Failure by 
all parties ta any such agreement to deliver their respective 
financial commitment in full accordance with the agreement 
shall be deemed tu termhate the agreement and all said 
parties shall be subject to the terms of this Ordinance. Nothing 
contained in this provision shall be constwed, however, to 
contract away the County's ability to otherwlae amend or 
enforce this or any other Ordinance OT Resolution in the same 
manner in which its predecessors In Interest, had the  ability ta 
modify said agreements or the rates, fees, charges, and 
policies, rules, and regulations set forth therein or 
cantemplated thereby in accordance with the resemed Dowers 
doctrine set forth in H H e  - FPSC, 373 S0.2d 913 (Fla. 1979)." 

Section 5. FIorida Public Service Commission Matters. Nothing contained in 
this ordinance or Ordinance No. 9635, is intended to affect existing certificates of 
authorization or the ability of utilities to seek certificates or amend existing certificates 
pursuant to Chapter 367, Florida Statutes, nor shall either ordinance be construed to affect 
the powers granted by the Florida Legislature to the Florida Public Service Commission 
with regard to fairly processing and conducting certification proceedings consistent with 
applicable state law. 

Section 8. Effective Date. Thls ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 
receipt of official acknowledgment from the Department of State of the State of F larida that 
this ordinance has been filed with said Department. 

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting, by the Board 
of County Commissloners of t h e  County of Marfon, Florida, this 2lst day of April, 1998. 

BOARD OF COUNP/ COMMISSIONERS 
MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA 

- 
MAN 

ATTEST: 

A .  

AL@h.!, D.C, 
DAVID R. ELLSPERMA", CLERK 
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APPROXIMATE BOUNDARY DESCRiPTtON OF MARION COUNTY 
WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANNING AND SERWCE hREA 

Begin at  t h G  SE comer of 32-1 7s-ZE 
I 

~ 

North to the State Highway 40 right-of-way 

Generally west and northwest along County line to westan boundary of 14-17s-19E 

Nonh to SW corner of 35-1 6S-19E 

West to the SW corner of SE 114 of34-16S-19E 

North to the N W  corner of the NE 1/4 of34-IbS-19E 

East to SW amer of 26-16s-19E 

Generally northeast along right-of-way to [Ire intersection of State Highway 40 right-of-way and 
northern boundary of 36- 1 SS- 19E 

East to the SW comer of 27- 15s-20E 

North to the NW comer of S 1/2 of 10-14s-20E 

East to the NE corner of S i/2 of 11-14S-22E 

South to the SE corner of 11-14S-22.E 

West to the NE corner of the NW 1/4 of NE 1/4 of 14-14S-221E 

South t o  the SE comer of the NW I/4 of  NE 114 of 14-14S-22E 

West to the SW comer of the NW 114 o f N E  114 of 14-14S-22E 

South to southcrn boundary of 14-14s-22E 

West to the NW mmer of 23- 14s-22E 

South to die northern boundary of the south 1/10 of Z-14S-22E 

Wsst to the western boundary ofthc cast 1/4 of22-14S-22E 

ATW/vg/d~corresp/e~al. a tw 
HA1 M5-539 .4S  - 1 -  
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EXHIBIT A 
(Continued) 

APPROXIMATE BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OF MARION COUNTY 
WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY P L A " M G  ANI) SERVlCE AREA 

North approximately 2,900 feet dong the western boundary of the cast 114 of U-14S-22E 

West 10 the railroad right-of-way 

Generally SE along railroad right-of-way to northem boundary of 35-14S-22E 

East to the NW corner of the NE 1/4 of 36-14S-22E 

South to the SW comcr of the NE I/4 of 36-14S-aE 

East to the TW comer of tho E 112 of the SE 1/4 of 3614S-22E 

South to the southern boundary of 36-14S-ZE 

East to the SE comer of 36-14s-22E 

North to the NW corner of 30-14S-ZE 

East to  the NE comer of 30-14S-ZE 

South to SE corner of 3 1-14S-ZE 

East to  NE corner o f  N W  1/4 ofNW I/4 ofS-15S-23E 

South to State Highway 40 right-of-way 

Generally west along right-of-way to intersection of State Kighway 40 right-of-- and a t e m  
boundary of 6- I 5 S-25 E 

South to SE corner of 6-1 SS-23B 

Generally SE to the NE corner of SW I/4 of 8-15S-ZE 

South to NW corner of SE 114 of 20-1 S13E 

Generally SE to the NE comer of S 112 14-1 6S-23E 

Generdiy SE to the NW comer of SE 114 of SE V4 of 19-16S-24E 

AT W/vgs/dgfco r r a p  Aegal, at w 
HAT #95-539,48 -2- 

A-2- 1 1 

842298 

Attachment 2, Exhibit A 



EXlsTBlTA 
(Continaed) 

APPROXIMATE BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OF MARION C O U "  
WATER AND WA!TIIWATER UTU"Y PLANNING AND SERVICE AREA 

South to railroad riat-af-way 

Generally SE dong railroad right-of-way to intersedon of tight-of'way with the "ern 
boundary of 5-17S-24E 

East to NE comer of 5-1 7s-24E 

South to shore of Lake Weir 

Generally south along shore of Lake Weir to the northenr.boundary of 2 1-17s-24E 

Generally SE to the intersection of CR 25 right-of-way and the northern boundary of the S In QP 
2 1-17S-24E 

Generally SW along CR 25 right-of-way to the Marion County line 

West to the SW comer o f  SE 114 of 34-17s-23E 

North to the NW comer of SE 1/4 of 34-17s-23E 

East to the NE corner of SE 114 of34-17S-23E 

North to the CR 42 right-of-way 

Generally west dong CR 42 right-of-way to U.S. Highway 301 right-of-way 

Generally south along U.S. Highway 301 right-of-way to County lmc 

West to the SE corner of 32-17S-23E 

LESS 

Start ar SW corner of 4-1 7s-23E 

North to NE corner of 32-1 68-23E 

West to SW corner of SE 114 of 29-16S-ZE 

ATW/vgs/d d c o  r rcsp/lepl I atw 
HA1 #95-539.48 - 3  - 
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EXBiBlTA 
(Continued) 

APPROXIMATE BOUNDARY DESCRIFTION OF MARTON COUNTY 
WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANNING AND SERVICE AREA 

North to NE comer of SE 1/4 of 29-1 68-23E 

West to SW corner o f N E  1/4 of29-16S-23E 

North to NE mmer of 29-16S-aE 

East to SW comer of E 1/2 of 20-1 6s-UE 

North to NW corner of SW I/4 of SW 114 of SE 114 of 17-1 6s-UE 

East to NE corner of SE 114 of SW Y4 of SE 1/4 ofl7-16S-23E 

North co railroad right-of-way 

Generally NW along railroad right-of-way to intersection With eastern boundary of 1-1 1S-22E 

North approximateiy 1/2 mile 

West approximately 0.4 miles 

South to northem boundary of S 1/2 of 12-16S-22E 

West to west boundary of 11-16S-22E 

South to intersection with U.S. Highway 301 right-of-way 

Generally southwest to SW corner ofthe SE 1/4 of the SE 114 of 15-16s-22E 

South to northem boundary of S 1/2 of 22-16s-22E 

West to NE comer of SE 114 of22-16S-22E 

South to sourhem boundary of 27-16S-22E 

East to NE corner of 27-1 6s-22E 

South to SE oorner of 3-1 7S-22fi 

East to SE comer of 4-17S-23E 

- 4 -  
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MEIBITA 
(Coat in u ed) 

APPROXIMATE BOUNDARY D E S C m I O N  OF MARION COUNTY 
WATER AND WASTEWATER UTIUTY P t A N ” G  AND SERVlCC AREA 

AND LESS 

The City of Ocala SenAce tenftory 

AND LESS 

The On Top ofthc World Community Developmt DishiCt 

AND LESS 

~ h o s s  areas now certificated by &e ~tori~ia PUMO sewice Commission 

ATWlvgs/d&orresp/legal.atw 
HAT #95-539.48 - 5 -  
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EXHIBIT B 
cv With C-ive Plan 

Re: Application for original Water and Wastewater Certificates in Marion County for Ocda 
Springs Utilities Inc. (OSUI) 

A brief history of previous planning and platting activity pertaining to Ocala Springs is at Attachment 
1. 

The Florida Department of Community AfFairs has issued the following letters pertaining to the 
development of Ocala Springs: 

1. 
2. 

3.  

Binding Letter of Interpretation for Vested Rights, April 29, 1974 (Attachment 2) 
Binding Letter of Interpretation for Modification to a Development of Regional 
Impactwith Vested Rights, June 21, 1985 (Attachment 3) 
Binding Letter of Interpretation for Development of Regional Impact Status, Aupn 
30, 1985 (Attachment 4) 

API intends to replan and replat the property as an Active Adult Community and does not expect that 
same will constitute a substantial deviation with regard to impacts from those previously approved 
by the Florida Department of Community AfFairs. 
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ATTACHMENT 1, EXHIBIT B 
tory of 0 C a " g s  

Ocala Springs was acquired by GAC Properties Inc., the predecessor to API. in 1970 and the 
propeny was zoned for the original Master Land Use Plan in 1971 as follows: 

Platted single-family lots (9756 lots) - 
Other platted residential 

(a) Multi-family (R-3 zone) - 
(b) Multi-family or mobile home park (R-4 zone) - 

(a) Single family or duplex (R-2 zone) - 
(b) Multi-family (R-3 zone) - 
(c) Multi-family or mobile home park (R-4 zone) - 

Unplatted residential 

Total Residential 
Commercial and schools (platted) - 
Industrial and utilities - 
Platted road right-of-ways - 
Platted green ways and drainage retention - 
Golf course (or park) - 
Total contiguous area 
Total platted area - 

1,941 acres 

90 acres 
104 acres 

192 acres 
209 acres 
9iLXEs 

2634 acres 
251 acres 
523 acres 
703 acres 
434 acres 
liLLwX3 

4686 acres 
3560 acres 

On April 29, 1974, the Florida Department of Community Affairs (FDCA), W a  Florida Division of 
State Planning, issued a binding letter (BLFDR-575-138) which acknowledged vested rights under 
subsection 380.06( 18), Florida Statutes (see Attachment 2). 

During the period 1983 - 1985, API was involved in an exercise to re-plan Ocala Springs. This re- 
planning involved interaction with the DCA and various other state and local governments, including 
Marion County. Ultimately, a new concept plan was developed for Ocala Springs which substantially 
reduced the density for the property and the possible environmental impacts associated therewith. 
By letter dated June 21, 1985, the DCA issued a binding letter of interpretation for modification (see 
Attachment 3) after finding that the proposed concept plan for Ocala Springs constituted a substantial 
change to the vested plan of development as such changes would result in reduced regional impacts. 
In July 1985, the DCA reaffirmed its position that API did have the option to develop Ocala Springs 
in accord with the new concept plans and/or in accord with previous platting. The DCA, by letter 
dated August 30, 1985 (see Attachment 4), issued a binding letter of interpretation stating that the 
development of Ocala Springs pursuant to the new concept plan would not be required to comply 
with the review requirements of Section 380.06, Florida Statutes. 

In 1985, API sold approximately 20 acres of the land to the Marion County School Board at a price 
substantially below market value. The School Board constructed a new school on the site at a cost 
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of approximately $5,000,000. 

A 15-acre, 107-unit campground was developed on the property at Indian Lake. The campground 
is situated in an oak hammock adjacent to the lake with recreational facilities including a swimming 
beach, playground and general store. All sites have water and electricity available and 41 sites have 
complete water, wastewater and electric hookups. 

In December 1989, API undertook to replat a portion of Ocala Springs in accord u i rh  the new 
concept plan described above. In early 1990, a substantial amount of road clearing work was 
undertaken for this area; however, there has been no subsequent activity. 

A major portion of the Ocala Springs acreage is currently on agricultural lease agreements which can 
be terminated upon 180 days notice for any reason. 
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, Mr. Rober t  L. W e i n t r a u b  
. CAC P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c o r p o r a t e d  

P o e t  O f f i c e  B O X  3000 
Kiami,  F l o r i d a  33138 

Dear Hr. W e i n t r a u b :  

Eased on t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  you have  p rov ided  and t h e  s p e c i f i c  f a c t u a l ,  
c i r c u m s t a n c e s  r e g a r d i n g  your deve lopmen t  , t h e  D i v i s i o n  o f  S t a t e  P l a n n i n g  has 
e v a l u a t e d  y o u r  r e q u e s t  f o r  a d e t e r m i n a t i o n  of s t a t u s  d a t e d  Harch  22, 1974 ,  and 
h a s  d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  t h e  proposed Oca la  S p r i n g s  r e s i d e n t i a l  d e v e l o p m e n t  i n  ?larim 
County i s  a D e v e l o p s e n t  o f  R e g i o n a l  Inpac :  a s  l e g a l l y  d e f i n e d  i n  C h a p t e r  22F-2.10, 
F l o r i d a  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  Code, and t h a t  your  r i g h t s  have  v e s t e d  p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  
380 .06 (12) ,  F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s  f o r  p l a t t e d  p o r t i o n s  of t h a t  d e v e l o p m e n t .  T h e r e f o r e ,  
you w i l l  n o t  be r e q u i r e d  t o  comply w i t h  t h e  p r o v i s i o n s  o f  S e c t i o n  3 8 0 . 0 6 ,  F l o r i d a  
S t a t u t e s ,  and  C h a p t e r  2 2 F ,  F l o r i d a  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  Code, p e r t a i n i n g  t o  t h i s  type 
o f  development  f o r  t h o s e  a r e a s .  A l l  p r o p e r t y  n o t  p l a t t e d  on A u g u s t  24, 1971 ,  

i f  i t  i s  d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  t h e  n o n - p l a t t e d  p o r t i o n s  vi11 exceed  t he  t h r e s h o l d  
e s t a b l i s h e d  f o r  t h i s  t y p e  of d e v e l o p o e n t  i n  C h a p t e r  22F, F l o r i d a  A d m i n i 6 t r a t i v t  
Code, ' 

.may be r e q u i r e d  t o  comply v i t h  t h e  p r o v i s i o n s  of S e c t i o n  3 8 0 . 0 6 ,  F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s ,  

T h i s  d e t e r m i n a t i o n  does n o t  o b v i a t e  t h e  need t o  comply v i t h  o t h e r  a p p l i c a b l e  
s t a t e  o r  l o c a l  p e r m i t t i n g  p z o c e d u r e s ,  Any q u e s t i o n s  r e g a r d i n g  t h i s  d e t e r m i n a t i o n  
may be d i r e c t e d  t o  HB. Linda F r a r i e r ,  A s s o c i a t e  P l a n n e r ,  Bureau of Land P l a n n i n g .  

I h o p e  t h i e  d e t e r m i n a t i o n  v L l l  be o f  a s s i s t a n c e  t o  YOU. 

S i n c e r e l y ,  

, 
' D i v i s i o n  of S t a t e  P l a n n i n g  

cc: Hr. J o h n  H a s t i n g s  
Ht. Jack S u l l i v a n  
Ht. Al Baker 
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J u n e  2 1 ,  1985  

Mr.  D e n n i s  Getman 
A v a t a r  P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c .  
2 0 1  a h a m b r a  C i r c l e  
C o r a l  Gables ,  F l o r i d a  33134 

Dear Mr. Getman: 

R e :  B i n d i n g  L e t t e c  of I n t e r p r e t a t i o n  f o r  
M o d i f i c a t i o n  t o  a Development o f  
R e g i o n a l  Impact  v i t h  Ves ted  R i g h t s  
F i l e  No. B L I N - 5 8 5 - 0 0 3  . 
O c a l a  S p r i n g s  

We have  e v a l u a t e d  your a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  a B i n d i n g  L e t t e r  
d a t e d  J a n u a r y  2 0 ,  1985,  and r e c e i v e d  F e b r u a r y  I, 1 9 8 5 .  Based o n  
t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  c o n t a i n e d  i n  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  a n d  o t h e r  informa- 
t i o n  o b t a i n e d  d u r i n g  t h e  r ev iew of  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  p r o p o s a l ,  we 
e n t e r  t h e  f o l l o w i n s  F i n d i n g s  of  F a c t ,  C o n c l u s i o n s  of Lav, and 
O r d e r .  

1. Or, A p r i l  2 9 ,  1974,  t h e  Depar tmen t  i s s u e d  a b i n d i n g  
l e t t e r  (BLIVR-575-138) w h i c h  found m a l a  S p r i n g s  t o  have  a c q u i r e d  
v e s t e d  r i g h t s  u n d e r  S u b s e c t i o n  380.06 (18), F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s .  The  
v e s t e d  deve lopmen t  p l a n  p roposed  f o r  t h e  p r o j e c t  i n c l u d e d  9,700 
s i n g l e  f a m i l y  d e t a c h e d  h o m e s i t e s ,  a 4 0 0 - u n i t  mobile home sub-  
d i v i s i o n ,  a 1 , 0 0 0 - u n i t  m u l t i f a m i l y  pod ,  an 8 2 4 , 0 0 0 - s q u a r e - f o o t  
s h o p p i n g  c e n t e r ,  a 5 2 , 0 0 0 - s q u a r e - f o o t  g o l f  c l u b ,  and  8 C h O O l  s i t e s  
c a n t a i n i n g  636,149 s q u a r e  f e e t ,  on a t o t a l  p r o j e c t  s i t e  of 
a p p r o x i i n a t e l y  3 , 6 6 5  a c r e s ,  Now t h e  a p p l i c a n t ,  v i a  a m o d i f i e d  
d e v e l o p m e n t  p l a n ,  i s  p r o p o s i n g  t o  r e d u c e  t h e  number o f  s i n g l e  
f a m i l y  d e t a c h e d  h o n e s i t e s  t o  4,479 u n i t s ,  d e c r e a s e  t h e  mobi le  
home s u b d i v i s i o n  t o  2 5 1  u n i t s ,  reduce t h e  s h o p p i n g  c e n t e r  t o  
2 0 5 , 8 0 0  s q u a r e  f e e t ,  add a 3 1 , 0 0 0 - a q u a r e - f o o t  o f f i c e  complex, and 
r e d u c e  t h e  s c h o o l  s i t e s  t o  259 ,300  s q u a r e  f e e t .  The 52 ,000-  
s q u a r e - f o o t  g o l f  c l u b  and t h e  1 , 0 0 0 - u n i t  m u l t i f a m i l y  pod w i l l  
r ema in  t h e  same as se t  o u t  i n  t h e  o r i g i n a l  v e s t e d  p l a n  ( S e e  T a b l e  -,.. . Table  I compares  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  a l l o w e d  i n  t h e  o r i g i n a l  
v e s t e d  d e v e l o p m e n t  p l a n  t o  t h e  deve lopmen t  p r o p o s e d  by t h e  
-- 1- 
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m o d i f i e d  deve lopmen t  pla:,. 
t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  i s  t o  seek a d e t e r n i n a : i o n  from t h e  D e p a r t m n t  
on w h e t h e r  t h e  mod i f i ed  deve lopmen t  p l a n  w o u l j  d i v e s t  r i g h t s  t o  
c o m p l e t e  t h e  p r o j e c t  w i t h o u t  t h e  impact  r ev iew r e q u i r e m e n t s  of  
S e c t i c n  3 8 0 . 0 6 ,  F l o r i d a  S :a tu t e s  (F.S.), 

The a p p l i c a n t ' s  p u r p o s e  i n  s u b m i t t i n g  

A v a t a r  P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c . ,  owns an a d d i t i o n a l  1,021 a c r e s  of  
a d j a c e n t  p r o p e r t i e s  on w.-.:cn . .  i t  p r o p s e s  t o  d e v e l o p  1 , 1 7 0  r e s i -  
d e n t i a l  uc i t s  a n d  1 , 1 6 4 , 7 2 0  s q u a r e  f e e t  of  f l o o r  a r e a  f o r  non- 
r e s i d e n t i a l  use ,  The dece ropmen t  proposed  f o r  t h e s e  a d j a c e n t  
p r o p e r t i e s  i s  c o n s i d e r e d  b y  t h e  a p p l i c a n t  t o  b e  pa r t  of O c a l a  
S p r i n g s  and i s  c l e a r l y  l i n k e d  t o  t h e  v e s t e d  p o r t i o n  of  Ocala 
S p r i n g s  by s h a r i n g  a tonflon name, common ownersh ip ,  common i n f r a -  
s t r u c t u r e ,  and a common p l a n  o f  deve lopmen t .  
e r t i e s  ( s e e  s h a d e d  p o r t i o n s  o f  F i g u r e  11, however ,  a r e  n o t  v e s t e d  
for t h e  p u r p o s e s  of  S u b s e c t i o n  380.06(18) , F.S., and t h e r e f o r e  
w i l l  n o t  b e  bound by t h e  Z e t e r m i n a t i o n s  made i n  t h i s  b i n d i n g  
l e t t e r ,  
t h e  a d j a c e n t  p r o p e r t i e s  is c u r r e n t l y  b e i n s  e v a l u a t e d  b y  t h e  
D e p a r t m e n t  p u r s u a n t  t o  a: a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  d b i n d i n g  l e t t e r  o f  
d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  r e g i o n a l  i z?ac t  s t a t u s  (aLI9-585-039)  under  
S e c t i o n  3 8 0 . 0 6 ,  F.S, 

The a d j a c e n t  p r o p  

The deve lopmen t  2 r o p o s e d  by Avata: P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c . ,  f o r  

2 .  The p r o j e c t  s i t e  is l o c a t e d  a p p r o x i m a t e l y  t h r e e  miles 
n o r t h  o f  t h e  C i t y  of Ocala i n  n o r t h  c e n t r a !  Har ion  County ( S e e  
F i g u r e  I). The s i t e  i s  a = ? r o r i m a t e l y  t e n  m i l e s  f rom U a c h u a  
C o u n t y ,  t h e  n e a r e s t  a d j a c e n t  c o u n t y .  

? r e s i d e n t  and G e n e r a i  C o c z s e l  f o r  Ava ta r  P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c . ,  which 
F r o p o s e s  t o  d e v e l o p  Oca la  S p r i n g s .  

4 .  S u b s e c t i o n s  380.C6 ( 4 )  (b) and ( c )  , Florida S t a t u t e s ,  
p r o v i d e  g u i d e l i n e s  f o r  r e v i e w i n g  pro-posed c h a n g e s  t o  p r e v i o u s l y  
v e s t e d  d e v e l o p m e n t s  of r e s i o n a l  impact as follows: 

In  d e t e r m i n i n g  w h e t h e r  a proposed  s u b e t a n t i a l  change  

3 .  T h e  a p p l i c a n t  i s  Yr. D e n n i s  Getzan, S e n i o r  Vice 

" ( b )  
t o  a deve lopmen t  o f  r e g i o n a l  impac t  c o n c e r n i n g  which r i g h t s  
had p r e v i o u s l y  v e s t e d  p u r s u a n t  t o  s u b s e c t i o n  (18) would 
d i v e s t  s u c h  r i g h t s ,  t:?e s t a t e  l a n d  p l a n n i n g  agency s h a l l  
r e v i e w  t h e  p r o p o s e d  change  w i t h i n  t h e  c o n t e x t  o f :  

1, 

2 .  

C r i t e r i a  s p e c i f i e d  i n  S u b s e c t i o n  3 8 0 . 0 6 ( 1 7 )  ( b ) ;  

I t ' s  confo rmance  w i t h  a n y  a d o p t e d  s t a t e  comprehens ive  
p l a n  a n d  any r u l e s  of t h e  s t a t e  l a n d  p l a n n i n g  a g e n c y ;  

A l l  r i g h t s  and o b l i g a t i o n s  a r i s i n g  o u t  o f  t h e  v e s t e d  3 .  
'=-+z- s t a t u s  o f  s u c h  d e v e l o p m e n t ;  
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4 .  Permit conditions o r  requirenents imposed by the 
Department of Environmental Regulation, the Department 
of Natural Resources, o r  any water management district 
created by Section 373.069 o r  any of their successor 
asencies o r  by ar. appropriate federai regulatory agency; 
and 

5 .  Any resional impacts arising from the proposed 
change. 

(c) 
regional impact concerning which rights had previously 
vested pursuant to subsection (18) vould result in reduced 
regional impacts, the change shall not divest rights to 
complete the development pursuant to subsection (18): 

If a proposed substantial chan5e to a development of 

Subsection 380.06(17) (b), Florida Statutes, referred to 
above, states the following: 

“ ( b )  In deternining whether a development of regional 
impact previously approved pursuant to this section is 
subject to further review pursuant to this section, 
local government shall consider the folloving changes which 
shall be presumed not to be substantial deviations requiring 
f u r th er r evi ev: 

the 

1. h increase in the number of dwelling units of not more 
than 5 percent or 200 dwelling units, vhichever is less, 

A decrease in the number of dwelling units vhich does 
not require a major redistribution of density. 

A decrease in the area set aside for comon open space 
of not more than 5 percent or 50 acres, whichever is less. 

An increase in the area set aside for common open space. 

An increase in the f l o o r  area proposed for nonresidential 
use of not more than 5 percent o r  10,000 square feet, 
whichever is less, 

2 .  

3 .  

4 .  

5 .  

6. 

5 .  

A decrease in the regional impact of the development,. 

Applying the criteria in Subsection 380.06(17), P . S . I  to 
the proposed changes in the Ocala Springs development of regional. 
impact, the Department finds that: 

A .  There will not be an increase in the number of dwelling 
units. The modified plan reduces the number of . 
residential units by 5,370. -= - 
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B .  

C. 

D. 

E. 

F, 

The:' will not be a dec:ease in the numbe: of dwelling 
~~1:s which would require a major redistribution of 
density. 

There Will be no decrease in CoFmon open space. 

Due to the elimination of a residential pod containing 
5 7 5  dweliing units, o?en space will be increased by 329 
acres. 

There will be no increase in the floor area proposed for 
nonresidential use. 

The modified development will result in a decrease of 
5,370 in the total number of duelling units and a 
reduction of 964,049 square feet in the amount of 
nonresidential floor space. These changes will 
substantially decrease the project's impact on the 
surrounding transportation network. In a letter of 
comment to the Departnent, the Florida Department of 
Transportation states that, based on the decreased 
deveiopmen 
the trans? 
network no 

t propos 
o r  tat ion 
uld be s 

ed in t 
impact 

iqnific 

he modified 
s on the su 
antly reduc 

d ev e 1 o pmen t pl an , 
rrounding roadway 
ed . 

The originai vested development plan contained 
4,700 single family lots for conventional housing and 
400 mbile home lots, with a septic tank proposed f o r  
each lot. In the modified development plan each 1/4- 
acre lot, 1/2-acre lot, and 1 1/2-acre ranchette for 
conventional housing will have a septic tank, while all 
multifamily dwellings and mobile home sites will be 
served by a central wastewater treatment plant. Waste- 
water effluent will be disposed of by land application 
to the golf course. By deleting 5 , 2 2 1  conventional 
housing lots and 1 4 9  mbile home lots from the develop- 
ment plan, the modified plan will eliminate an equiva- 
lent number of septic tanks and vi11 now provide a 
sewage treatment plant for all mobile home lots and 
multifamily dwellings. Therefore, the modified develop- 
ment plan substantially reduces the magnitude of any 
adverse impacts to groundwater quality which may be 
caused by septic tanks. 

Therefore, the Department finds that the proposed plans for 
Ocala Springs constitute,a substantial change to the vested 
plan of development. However, an analysis of the impacts 
resulting from the changes which are proposed to Ocala Springs 
Sinonstrates that these changes will result in reduced regional 
i mnactq - 
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L e t t e r  o f  1n :e r ; r e t a t ion  was y b l i s h e d  i n  t h e  F l o r i d a  A d m i n i s t r a -  
t i v e  Weekly.  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  F a r i o n  County  and t h e  W i t h l a c o o c h e e  
? e s i o n a l  T l a n n i n g  C o c n c i l  we:e n o t i f i e d .  

6 .  On March 8 ,  1 9 8 5 ,  n o t i c e  o f  t h i s  r e q u e s t  f o r  a B i n d i n g  

NS OF L& 

Al though  t h e  m o d i f i e d  2eve:opment p l a n  foc Oca la  
Springs, a s  d e s c r i b e d  i r .  F i i 7 d i n g s  o f  Fac: Nos, 1 t h r o u g h  5 ,  
c o n s t i t u t e s  a s u b s t a n t i a l  change t o  t h e  v e s t e d  deve lopmen t  p l a n  
( s i n c e  t h e  m o d i f i e d  p l a n  w i l l  r e d u c e  t h e  number of  r e s i d e n t i a l  
u n i t s  b y  5 , 3 7 0  u n i t s  a n d  w i l l  r e d u c e  t h e  t o t a l  a m o u n t  o f  n o n r e s i -  
d e n t i a l  deve lopmen t  by 9 6 4 , 0 4 9  s q u a r e  f e e t ) ,  t h e  a p p l i c a n t  h a s  
Suppl i 'ed s u f f i c i e n t  e v i d e n c e  t o  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t h e  p roposed  d e v e l -  
c?snent would r e s u l t  i n  a r e d u c t i o n  o f  r e g i o n a l  i m p a c t s .  There-  
; 'ore,  t h e  Depar tmen t  con.:ludes t h a t  s i n c e  t h e  p roposed  m o d i f i e d  
d e v e l o p m e n t  p l a n ,  a s  s t a t e d  i n  S u b s e c t i o n  380.06(17) ( b ) 6 ,  F.S., 
would r e s u l t  i n  r educed  r e s i o n a l  i m p a c t s ,  t h e  change  t o  t h e  
v e s t e d  deve lopmen t  p l a n  s h a l l  n o t  d i v e s t  any r i g h t s  t h e  d e v e l c p e r  
has  p r e v i o u s l y  a c T u i z e d  under S u b s e c t i o r ,  380.06(18)  , F.S. 

The m o d i f i c a t i o n s  t o  t h e  Gcala S p r i n g s  deve lopmen t  as  
d e s c r i b e d  above w i l l  n o t  be r e q u i r e d  t o  comply v i t h  t h e  r e v i e w  
r e q u i r e m e n t s  o f  S e c t i o n  380.C6, F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s .  h y  f u t u r e  
c h a n g e s  t o  t h e  Oca la  S p r i n g s  2 l a n  o f  deve lopmen t  v i 1 1  be  c o n s i d -  
e:ed c u m u l a t i v e l y  w i t h  t h e  changes c o n s i d e r e d  i n  t h i s  b i n d i n g  
d e t e r m i n a t i o n ,  and w i l l  be czs ;a red  t o  t h e  o r i g i n a l  v e s t e d  p l a n  
and i t s  i m p a c t s .  

T h i s  b i n d i n g  l e t t e r  of i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  h a s  been i s s u e d  pu r -  
s u a n t  t o  t h e  p r o c e d u r a l  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of  S u b s e c t i o n  120.57 ( 2 )  , 
F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s ,  and  c o n s t i t u t e s  f i n a l  agency  a c t i o n  a p p e a l a b l e  
w i t h i n  3 0  d a y s  t o  a D i s t r i c t  C o u r t  o f  A p p e a l  p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  
120 .68 ,  F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s .  I f  you w i s h  t o  p r e s e n t  o r a l  o r  w r i t t e n  
e v i d e n c e ,  o r  a w r i t t e n  s t a t e m e n t  i n  o p p o s i t i o n  t o  t h i s  agency  
a c t i o n ,  you m u s t  f i l e  w i t h  t h e  D e F a r t m e n t  a w r i t t e n  r e q u e s t  f o r  
an o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  do s o  v i t h i r .  30 d a y s  f r o m  t h i s  d a t e .  Such a 
r e q u e s t  f o r  a r e c o n s i d e r a t i o n  s h a l l  be made i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  
R u l e  95-2.16, F l o r i d a  A d m i n i s t c a t i v e  Code, and w i l l  b e  r e sponded  
t o  by t h e  Depar tmen t  p u r s u a n t  t o  S u b s e c t i o n  120.57(2) ( a ) ,  F l o r i d a  
S t a t u t e s .  
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This d e : e r r i n a t i o n  d o e s  no: o b v i a t e  t h e  need  t o  comply w i t ) ,  
other a p p l i c a k l e  s t a t e  o r  l o c a l  p e c m j t t i n g  p r o c e d u r e s ,  ?my qces -  
t i c n s  r e s a r d i r ;  t h i s  d e t e c m i n a t i o p  may be  d i r e c t e d  t o  A l t o  P. 
Thomas i n  t h i s  a i l zeau .  

S i n c e r e l y ,  

. .  
Diana  Sawaya-Crane 
Bureau Chief 

DSC/a t t 

cc: Mr. C h a r l e s  L .  Harwood 
Mr. B r i a n  Whee le r  
~ r .  Wal t e r  S e i l e r  
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F I G U E  1 

T h e  presenc zoning locations ace shovn on the exhibit 
below. 

T h e  proposed zoning is a s  follcws: 

- Zoninq Svmbol Land U s e  

A - 3  
R - 1  
R-2 
M - H  
R - 3  
A - 1 ,  M-2 
A- 1 
B-2 
G-U 
M- 1 
8-1 
B-1 
B-1 
n n.. 

O n e  f a m i l y  d u e l l i n g  
One f a m i l y  d w e l l i n g  
O n e  f a n i l y  d w e l l i n g  
M o b i l e  home s u b d i v i s i o n  
~ u l  t i - f a m i  ly 
Golf C o u r s e  - u t i l i t y  
P r e s e r v e  
N e i g h b o r h o o d  c o m m e r c i a l  
Police-fire 
L i g h t  industrial 
S c h o o l  
R e  1 i gi ous 
Private c l u b  - 
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D E P A R T M E N T  OF C O M I M U N I T Y  A F F A I R S  

August 3C, 1985 

n r .  Gennis Getman 
Senio: Vice Pres ident  and 

General  Counsel 
Avatar P r o p e r t i e s  Inc. 
2 0 1  Alhambra C i r c l e  
Coral Cables, Flor ida  33134 

Dear n r ,  Getman: 

a:nding L e t t e r  o f  I n t e r p r e t a t i o n  f o r  
Development o f  Regional  Impact S t a t u s  
F i l e  No. BLID-585-039 
Pr;PlP-Sprinss,,---------------------- 

We have evall ;ated your  a p p l i c a t i o n  for  a Binding L e t t e r  
da ted  May 0 ,  1 9 8 5 ,  and r e c e i v e d  Hay 9 ,  1985. Based on t h e  
i n f o r E a t i o n  contained i n  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  and o t h e r  information 
obta ined  dur ing  the rev iew of  t h e  development p r o p o s a l ,  ue en ter  
t h e  fo l lowing  F i n d i n g s  of F a c t ,  Conclusions of Law,  and Order. 

1. The por t ion  of  t h e  proposed & a l a  S p r i n g s  development 
under review i n  t h i s  b i n d i n g  l e t t e r  i s  a mixed-use p r o j e c t  
c o n s i s t i n g  of 1,398 s i n g l e  fami ly  dwell ing u n i t s ,  a 1 , 1 0 0 , 0 0 0  
s q u a r e  foot/69-acre i n d u s t r i a l  p a r k ,  a 66,000 square  f o o t  shop- 
p ing  center ,  and a 147-acre  g o l f  c o u r s e  T h e  p r e s e n t  land  use f o r  
t h e  1 ,022-acre  p r o j e c t  s i t e  is 527 a c r e s  of c ropland  and improved 
p a s t u r e  and 4 9 5  acres  o f  mixed and coni fe rous  f o r e s t .  

Avatar  P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c . ,  also owns an a d d i t i o n a l  3,665 acres  
of a d j a c e n t  p r o p e r t i e s  on u h i c h  i t  proposes t o  develop 5,730 
r e s i d e n t i a l  u n i t s  and 548,100 s q u a r e  f e e t  of f l o o r  area f o r  non- 
r e s i d e n t i a l  use.  
p r o p e r t i e s  is cons idered  by t h e  a p p l i c a n t  t o  be p a r t  of t h e  & a l a  
S p r i n g s  development and is c l e a r l y  l i n k e d  t o  t h e  p r o p e r t i e s  
reviewed i n  t h i s  b inding  l e t t e r  by s h a r i n g  a common name, common 
ownership,  common i n f r a s t r u c t u r e ,  and a common p l a n  of develop- 
r c n t .  The a d j a c e n t  p r o p e r t i e s  (See t h e  non-shaded portions of 

The development proposed f o r  t h e s e  a d j a c e n t  
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F:qu:e 1 1 ,  however, a r e  vested i n  accordance w i t h  Subsect ion 
380.26(18), F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s ,  and t h e r e f o r e ,  w i l l  not  be bound by 
t h e  d e t e r m i n a t i o n s  made i n  t h i s  b inding l e t t e r .  Changes t o  the 
6eve:spmen: plan proposed b y  Avatar P r o p e r t i e s ,  I nc . ,  f o r  the 
ad:asent ves t ed  p r o p e r t i e s  were r e c e n t l y  r e v i e v e d  by t h e  Depart- 
zez: ; u r s l ; a n t  to an application f o r  a b i n d i n g  l e t t e r  of i n t e r p r e -  
t d t i c , ?  f o r  mod i f i ca t ion  t o  a development of r e g i o n a l  impact v i t h  
v e s t e l  r i g h t s  ( P i l e  No. BLiN-585-003). T h e  Department concluded 
ir, t he  b i n d i n g  l e t t e r  t h a t ,  s i n c e  t h e  proposed modified develop- 
z d n t  ? l a c  would r e s u l t  i n  reduced r e g i o n a l  impac t s ,  t h e  change t o  
the ves t ed  development plan would not  d i v e s t  a n y  r i g h t s  previous- 
l y  acqu i r ed  by t h e  developer .  

2 .  The Ocala Spr ings  p r o p e r t y  is l o c a t e d  i n  p o r t i o n s  of 
Jec::ans 7 and 18, T c m s h i p  1 4  South,  Range 23 Eas t  and i n  Sec- 
!ions 22-23 and  Sec t ion  3 6 ,  Township 1 4  S o u t h ,  Range 2 2  East ,  
l o s s  t he  p l a t t e d  p a r c e i s  t h a t  comprise  t h e  v e s t e d  p o r t i o n s  of 
GcPiz S p r i n g s .  The p r o j e c t  s i t e  i s  s i t u a t e d  approximately th ree  
z i l e s  n o r t h  of t h e  C i t y  of  @ a l a  i n  n o r t h  c e n t r a l  Marion Coun ty  
( s e e  F i g u r e  1 ) .  The  s i t e  is  l o c a t e d  a p p r o x i m a t e l y  t e n  miles from 
AiachEa County, t h e  n e a r e s t  a d j a c e n t  c o u n t y .  

P r e s i d e n t  and General Counsel f o r  Avatar P r o p e r t i e s ,  I n c . ,  v h i c h  
Fcopcses t o  develop &ala  Spr ings .  

4. The a p p l i c a b l e  presumptive Development o f  Regional 
:rrpac: (DA:) g u i d e l i n e s  f o r  t h e  p r o j e c t  a r e  R u l e  27P-2.05, 
indus:r ia l  P l a n t s  and I n d u s t r i a l  Parks;  Rule  27P-2.10, 
Z e s i d e n t i a l  Developments; and Rule 27P-2.12, Shopping Centers ;  
F l o r i d a  A d n i n i s t r a t i v e  Code ( P . A . C . 1 .  

R u l e  27P-2.05, I n d u s t r i a l  P l a n t s  and I n d u s t r i a l  Parks, 
P . A . C . ,  p r o v i d e s  t h a t  any proposed i n d u s t r i a l ,  manufacturing,,  o r  
p r o c e s s i n g  p l a n t  under common ownership,  o r  any proposed i n d u s -  
t r i a ?  park under common ownership,  vh ich  p r o v i d e s  s i t e s  f o r  
i n d u s t r i a l ,  manufactur ing,  o r  p r o c e s s i n g  a c t i v i t y ,  vhicb: 

3 .  The a p p l i c a n t  i s  Hr. Dennis G e t m a n ,  S e n i o r  Vice 

1) 

2 )  occup ies  a s i t e  g r e a t e r  t han  one  (1) s q u a r e  mile  i s  

p r o v i d e s  parking f o r  more than  o n e  thousand  f i v e  hundred 
( 1 , 5 0 0 )  motor v e h i c l e s ;  o r  

FreSUmed t o  be a D R I .  
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The indust::al component of t h e  development, w i t h  1,100,000 
squa re  f e e t  on 6 3 . 9 0  a c r e s  and 1375 parking s p a c e s ,  does n o t  
exceed t h e  p r e s c z 2 t i v e  i n d u s t r i a l  D R i  threshold.  

Rule 27F-2-12, R e s i d e n t i a l  Deve lcFren t s ,  P.A.C. ,  s t a t e s  t h a t  
any 9roFosed zes : een t i a l  deve:opment t h a t  i s  planned t o  c r e a t e  or  
acco rnodace  mor? :::an 1 , 0 0 0  d w e l l i n g  uriits i n  a coun ty  w i t h  a 
p o p l a t i o n  betiie?: 9 9 , 5 9 9  a n d  200t000 i s  presumed t o  be a O R I .  
The n o s t  r e c e n t ,  c f f i c i a l  p o p u l a t i o n  e s t i m a t e  f o r  Marion County 
i s  1 4 6 , 8 6 4 .  

r e s i d e n t i a l  u n i t s ,  exceeds t h e  p re sumpt ive  D R I  t h r e s h o l d  f o r  
r e s i d e n t i a l  develcpments,  

Rule 27F-2.iit Shopping C e n t e r s ,  FA.C., p r o v i d e s  t h a t  any 
propcsed r e t a i l  0 :  wholesa l e  b u s i n e s s  e s t a b l i s h m e n t  or  group of 
e s t a b l i s h m e n t s  0,-erated under one comrcor: p rope r ty  ownership o r  
manasenent t h a t  ezcompasses nc re  t h a n  40C,OOC s q u a r e  f e e t  of  
g r o s s  f l o o r  a r e a ,  3ccupies  mc:e t h a n  4C a c r e s ,  o r  p r o v i d e s  pa rk -  
i n g  s p a c e s  f o r  more t h a t  2 , 5 0 0  c a r s  is presumed t o  be a D R I .  

T h e  shopping Center component of t h e  development,  w i t h  
6 6 , 0 0 0  s q u a r e  fee:, does  n o t  exceed t h e  presumptive D R I  t h r e s h o l d  
f o r  shopping c e n t e r s .  

The  r e s i d e n t i a l  component of t h e  development, w i t h  1 , 3 9 8  
d v e l l i n g  u n i t s ,  exceeds t h e  p re sumpt ive  D R I  t h r e s h o l d  f o r  
r e s i d e n t i a l  develcpments.  The re fo re ,  t h e  *ala S p r i n g s  
development is presumed t o  be a D R I .  

s u b m i t t e d  by t h e  a p p l i c a n t  i n  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n ,  and a l l  o t h e r  
r e l e v a n t  wr i t t en  m a t e r i a l s  a r e  i n c o r p o r a t e d  h e r e i n  by r e f e r e n c e  
and made a p a r t  hereof .  

t h e  a p p l i c a n t  i n  tSe a p p l i c a t i o n  and has  cons ide red  r e l e v a n t  
comments made by the reviewing a g e n c i e s .  The Department f i n d s  
t h a t  t h e  o n l y  r e g i o n a l  issues i d e n t i f i e d  during t h e  review of t h e  
binding l e t t e r  a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  t h i s  p r o j e c t  i nvo lve  h i s t o r i c a l  
and a r c h a e o l o g i c a l  : e ~ o u r c e s  and t r a n s p o r t a t i o n .  

A .  B i s f a r i ~ a i , u o d , B r c b a ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ a l - E ~ ~ Q u c ~ ~ 6  

T h e  res iden: ia l  component of t h e  development,  w i t h  1 , 3 9 8  

5 .  A l l  commitnents  made by t h e  appLicant,  a l l  m a t e r i a l s  

6 .  The Depa t tnen t  has  reviewed t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  made by 

The a p p l i c a n t ,  i n  t h e  b i n d i n g  l e t t e r  a p p l i c a t i o n ,  
i n c l u d e d  a l e t t e r  i n  w h i c h  t h e  F l o r i d a  D i v i s i o n  of 
Arch ives ,  H i s to ry ,  and Records Management (DAERH) i n d l -  
c a t e d  t h a t  t h e r e  were no a r c h a e o l o g i c a l  or h i s t o r i c a l  --rc 

B-4-3 Attachment 4, Exhibit B 



Mr. Denn i s  Ge tm 

Page  Four  
Augus t  30, 1985 

s i t e s  shown on t h e  FLor ida  Mas:e: S i t e  P i i e  maps v i t h i n  
t h e  pro:ec:. Eovever ,  t h e  DAtLQH a l s o  i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  t h e  
l a c k  of recorded  s i t e s  i s  n o t  c o n s i d e r e d  s i g n i f i c a n t  
b e c a u s e  the  a r e a  hzs :ever been s u c j e c t e d  t o  a sys t em-  
a t i c ,  p r o f e s s i o n a l  s u r v e y  t o  1oca:e s u c h  s i t e s .  I t  v a s  
n o t e d  tha: d a t a  f roo.  e n v i r o n m e n t d i l y  s i m i l a r  a r e a s  i n  
Marion County indica:e t h a t  a r c h a e o l o g i c a l  and h i s t o r i -  
c a l  s i t e s ,  especia1:y :?*e f o r n e r ,  a r e  ' l i k e l y  t o  occur  
v l t h i n  ? a : c e l s  ' B '  a:5 'E' ( s e e  Picjure 2 )  o f  t h e  s u b j e c t  
t r a c t . '  ? a r c e l  'B' b : l l  b e  p r e s e r v d  a s  open s p a c e  i n  
p e r p e t u i t y .  The  DAH...# recomxended t h a t  t h e s e  a r e a s  be  
s u b j e c t e d  t o  a s y s t e m a t i c ,  p r o f e s r i o n a l  a r c h a e o l o g i c a l  
and h i s t o r i c a l  s u r v e y  p r i o r  t o  i n i t i a t i n g  any l a n d  
c l e a r i n g  o r  ground d i s t u r b i n g  a c t i v i t i e s .  

According t o  t h e  a p p l i c a n t ,  a p r e l i m i n a r y  s u r v e y  of 
t h e  t a r g e t  a r e a s  w i l l  be  unde r t aken  b y  a p r o f e s s i o n a l  
a r c h a e o l o g i s t  p r i o r  t o  any land  d i s t u r b a n c e  a c t i v i t i e s .  
If  a r e g i o n a l l y  s i c n i f i c a n t  a r c h a e c l o q i c a l  o r  h i s t o r i c a l  
s i t e  i s  found on t h e  p r o j e c t  s i t e ,  :he a p p l i c a n t  w i l l  
i ~ a k e  every  r e a s o n a b l e  effort, i n  c 3 o p e r a t i o n  v i t h  t h e  
CAD,M, t o  p r o t e c t  and/or  p r e s e c v e  :he d e s i g n a t e d  a r e a .  
~f no s i g n i f i c a n t  a r c h a e o l o g i c a l  o r  h i s t o r i c a l  s i t e s  a r e  
found ,  t h e  a r e a  w i l l  be deve loped  as  one -ha l f  a c r e  
h o m e e i t e s .  

The Department  f i r . d s  t h a t  the:e a r e  p r e s e n t l y  no 
known h i s t o r i c  o r  a c c h a e o l o g i c a l  s i t e s  on  the p r o p e r t y ,  
a l t h o u g h  t h e r e  is  a r e a s o n a b l e  p r o b a b i l i t y  t h a t  
r e g i o n a l l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  a r c h a e o l o s i c a l  and  h i s t o r i c a l  
s i t e s  ex is t  on t h e  p r o j e c t  s i t e .  T h e  D e p a r t a e n t  f u r t h e r  
f i n d s  t h a t  t h e  a p p l i c a z t  has ag:ee6 t o  s u r v e y  t h e  p r o j -  
e c t  a r e a  and t o  work i r ,  c o o p e r a t i o n  v i t h  t h e  D A H R H  t o  
p r e s e r v e  any s i g n i f i c a n t  s i t e s  w h i c h  may be found. 

The re fo re ,  b a s e d  on t h e  i n f c r s a t i o n  above, and t h e  
commitments  made by t h e  a p p l i c a n t ,  t h e  Depar tmen t  f i n d s  
t h a t  t h i s  p r o j e c t  v i 1 1  n o t  have  a s u b s t a n t i a l  impact on 
r e g i o n a l l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  a r c h a e o l o g i c a l  o r  h i s t o r i c a l  
r e s o u r c e s .  

B e  T r a a s w r f o f i o a  
The proposed & a l a  S p r i n g s  p r o j e c t  s i t e  is b o r d e r e d  

o n  t h e  n o r t h  by A n t h o n y  B u r b a n k  Road a n d  on t h e  west by 
t h e  Seaboard Sys tem R a i l r o a d ,  and i r  b i s e c t e d  f rom west 
t o  s o u t h e a s t  by County  Road (C.R.1 326 a n d  from n o r t h  t o  
s o u t h  by Nor theas t  5 8 t h  Avenue. The Depar tmen t  f i n d s  
t h a t  C . R .  326, S.R. 40, a n d  U.S. 3 0 1  a r e  r e g i o n a l l y  
s i g n i f i c a n t  roadways i n  the  v i c i n i t y  of  t h e  e i t e  which  - 
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cou ld  be s u b s t a n t i a l l y  impacted  by t h e  p roposed  p r o j e c t  
t r a f f i c .  These  roads a r e  r e g i o n a l l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  because  
they  a r e  f e d e r a l  o t  s t a t e  roads  o r  paved  roads  t h a t  
c r o s s  county  l i n e s .  

publisnei i n  t h e  i n s t i t u t e  of  T r a n s p o r t a t i o z  E n g i n e e r s '  
T c i a  '$SCe;PfiQGi 24 i o f Q r a a t i Q n a l  B e p ~ r f  (3 rd  E d i t i o n ,  
1 9 8 2 ) .  The t r a f f i c  g e n e r a t i o n  r a t e s  f o r  t h e  Ocala  
Sc r i r . q s  deveiopmen: a r e  summarized i n  T a b l e  1. 

The a p p l i c a n t  u t i l i z e d  a fouc  p e r c e n t  g rowth  r a t e  
f o r  background t r a f f i c  p r o j e c t i o n s .  T h i s  r a t e  was ap- 
p l i e d  t o  t h e  19E: a v e r a g e  d a i l y  t r a f f i c  (ADT) volumes  t o  
d e t e r n i n e  t h e  e s z i n a t e d  background t r a f f i c  volume a t  t h e  
end of  each p r o j e c t  2hase .  The p r o j e c t  b u i l d o u t  d a t e  is 
1993.  

The a p p l i c a r :  u t i l i z e d  t h e  t r i p  g e n e r a t i o n  r a t e s  

The a2p l i can :  u t i l i z e d  t h e  t r i p  d i s t r i b u t i o n  
t e c h n i q i e s  o f  t h e  S a t i o n a l  C o o F e r a t i v e  Highway Resea rch  
Trogram (KEFLP) 'Report  4 1 8 7 :  Q u i c k  Response  Urban 
T r a v e l  E s t i m a t i o n  Techniques  a n d  T r a n s f e r a b l e  Param- 
e t e r s '  t o  e s t i m a t e  t b e  p r o j e c t ' s  t r i p  d i s t r i b u t i o n .  The 
&a12 B L e a  199i TLaUsQQLfafiQo Zlu was u t i l i z e d  a s  t h e  
b a s i s  f o r  n o n - p r o j e c t  t r i p  i n f o r m a t i o n  w i t h i n  Marion 
County . 
v a r i o u s  roadvay  f a c i l i t i e s  from t h e  'OTPS Dai ly  S e r v i c e  
Volumes f o r  L e v e l  of S e r v i c e  'C" p u b l i s h e d  by t h e  
F l o r i d a  Cepa r tmen t  of  T r a n s p o r t a t i o n  (PDOT). Peak hour 
s e r v i c e  volumes  used by t h e  a p p l i c a n t  r e p r e s e n t  108 of 
t h e  ave rage  d a i l y  t r a f f i c  (ADT) LOS 'C. s e r v i c e  volume$. 
T r a f f i c  c o u n t s  were t a k e n  from PDOT and Marion County 
Depar tment  o f  P u b l i c  Works. 
a v a i l a b l e  f o r  s p e c i f i c  l i n k s ,  e s t i m a t e s  were b a s e d  on 
e x t r a p o l a t i o n  f rom a d j a c e n t  l i n k s  and  t h e  g e n e r a l  t r a f -  
f i c  f l o w  p a t t e r n s .  

The  Cepa r tmen t  f i n d s  r e a s o n a b l e ,  a n d  t h e r e f o r e  
a c c e p t s  , the  a p p l  i c a n  t 's met hodolog l e s  u t i  If zed i n  
d e t e r m i n i E g  t r i p  g e n e r a t i o n ,  background t r a f f i c  p r o j e c -  
t i o n ,  t r i p  d i s t r i b u t i o n  and a s s i g n m e n t ,  and c a p a c i t y  
c a l c u l a t i o n e .  

for t h e  p roposed  & a l a  S p r i n g s  p r o j e c t  o n  an a v e r a g e  

The a p p l i c a n t  d e t e r m i n e d  s e r v i c e  volumes  f o r  t h e  

Where counts were n o t  

T a b l e s  I1 and I11 r e p r e s e n t  t h e  t r a f f i c  a n a l y s i s  

-- d a i l y  and peak hour  b a s i s ,  r e s p e c t i v e l y .  AB can  be 
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no ted  from t h e s e  t a b l e s ,  t h e  proposed  p r o j e c t  w i l l  u t i -  
l i z e  more than t e n  p e r c e n t  of  t h e  LCS *C'  s e r v i c e  volume 
on a l l  segments o f  C . R .  326  ( s e e  Table  I V )  , a r e g i o n a l l y  
s i q r i f i c a n t  roadway. Bowever, t h e s e  segments  w i l l  n o t  
be o p e r a t i n 9  below LOS 'C' a t  t h e  p r o j e c t ' s  b u i l d o u t  fo:  
bo th  AD1 and Fcsk hour  t r a f f i c  c o n d i t l o n s .  The Depar t -  
m e n t  cor . s idecs  a s u b s t a n t i a l  reg:or,a: impact  t o  occur  
wker. p r c j e c t  : : a f f ic  u t i l i z e s  ten F e r c e n t  o r  m r e  of  t h e  
LOS " C '  s e r v i c e  volume or. any segmer.: o f  a r e g i o n a l l y  
s i g n i f i c a n t  road t h a t  w i l l  b e  o p e r a t i n g  below LOS 'C" a t  
p r o j e c t  b u i l d o u t .  

s i g n i f i c a n t  roadways w i l l  be  o p e r a t i n g  below U S  * C D  a t  
b u i l d o u t  on any  segment  t h a t  t h e  proposed p r o j e c t  u t i -  
l i z e s  ten p e r c e n t  o r  more of  t h e  LOS 'C' s e r v i c e  volume. 
T h e r e f o r e ,  the  Department  f i n d s  t h a t  the  & a l a  S p r i n g s  
development  w i l l  n o t  have a s u b s t a n t i a l  impact  upon 
r e g i o n a l l y  s i c n i f i c a n t  rcadway f a c i l i t i e s .  

The Department f i n d s  t h a t  none of t h e  r e g i o n a l l y  

7 .  Or; nay 17, 1985, n o t i c e  of t h i s  r e q u e s t  f o r  a Binding  
L e t t e r  o f  I n t e r p r e t a t i o n  was . p u b l i s h e d  i n  t h e  F l o r i d a  Admin i s t r a -  
t i v e  Sveekly. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  Wi th lacoochee  Regional  P l ann ing  
C o u n c i l  and Marion County were n o t i f i e d .  

C Q K L Y  
1. The p o r t i o n  o f  t h e  proposed  O c a l a  S p r i n g s  development  

under  r e v i e v  i n  t h i s  b i n d i n g  l e t t e :  h a v i n g  1,398 s i n g l e  f a m i l y  
d w e l l i n g  u n i t s ,  a 6 6 , 0 0 0  s q u a r e  f o o t  shopp ing  c e n t e r ,  a 1 , 1 0 0 , 0 0 0  
s q u a r e  f o o t / 6 9 - a c r e  i n d u s t r i a l  park  v i t h  1 , 3 7 5  p a r k i n g  s p a c e s ,  
and a g o l f  c o u r s e  is presumed t o  be  a Development of Reg iona l  
I m p a c t ,  p u r s u a n t  t o  Chapter  27F-2, F l o r i d a  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  Code. 

2 .  However, based upon F i n d i n g  o f  F a c t  No. 6 ,  t h e  
Depar tmen t  c o n c l u d e s  t h a t  the  m a l a  S p r i n g s  development  w i l l  n o t  
s u b s t a n t i a l l y  impact  r e g i o n a l l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  r e s o u r c e 8  or 
f a c i l i t i e s .  Thus,  t h e  proposed  & a l a  S p r i n g s  development  v i 1 1  
n o t  have  a s u b s t a n t i a l  e f f e c t  upon t h e  h e a l t h ,  s a f e t y ,  o r  w e l f a r e  - 
of t h e  c i t i z e n s  of  more than  one  coun ty  a n d ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  is  n o t  a 
Development  o f  Reg iona l  Impact .  

Q P P E B  

1. The Ocala  S p r i n g s  d e v e l o p s e n t  a s  d e s c r i b e d  above w i l l  
n o t  b e  r e q u i r e d  t o  comply w i t h  t h e  r e v i e v  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of  S e c t i o n  
380 .06 ,  P l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s .  
.._ 
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Mr. Dennis Getmn 

Page Seven 
August 30: 1985  

2 .  The development evaluated in this binding letter shall 
be considered cumulativeiy with any future additional deveiopment 
in teras of the presumptive suidelines and standards contained ip, 
Chapter 27r'-2, Florida Administrative Code, and its associated 
regional impacts. Should any of the above representations made 
by the apFlicant be substantially changed, further review of the 
prcject may be required. 

sudnt to the procedural requirements of Subsection 120.57(2) , 
Florida Statutes, and constitutes final agency action appealable 
within 3 0  days to a District Court of Appeal pUr8UMt to Section 
1 2 0 . 6 8 ,  Florida Statutes. If you wish to present o r a l  or uritten 
evidence, or a written statement in opposition to this agency 
action, you must file with the Department a written request f o r  
an opportunity to do so within 30 days from this date. Such a 
request for a reconsideration shall be made in accordance with 
Rule 95-2.16, Plorida Administrative Code, and w i l l  be responded 
to by the Department pursuant to Subsection 120.57(2) (a) , Plorida 
Statutes. 

This b:nding letter of interpretation has been issued pur- 

This determination doesnot obviate the need to comply with 
other applicable state or local permitting procedures. Any 
questions regarding this determination may be directed to Alto P. 
Thomas in the Bureau of Resource Management a t  ( 9 0 4 )  4 8 8 - 4 9 2 5 .  

Sincerely, 
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The  proposed zoning is as f o l l o ~ s :  
zonSna Symbol Land Use 

one family dwelling 
one family dwellin9 
one family dwellin9 
Mobile home subdivision 
G o l f  course - utility 

A- 3 
R-L 
R-2 
H- H 

P r es e rve 
Heiqhbothood commercial 
police-fire 
Liqht industtial - -  

Figure 1 
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Table I 

td + 
c 
0 

c ~ l  Land-Use 
RES- r e t SF 
HES-ret sr  
RES-S)' 
IND-gen light 
RES-SF 
Comm-nbrhood 
REC-golf C8 
RES-SP 

* RES-GP 
RES-& 

PAL8 

mala Springe Non-Veeted Parccln Trip Generation Summary 

Phaee 1 Phaee 11 
Trip Rete' I of AWD2 I OK A M )  
&K,UDit Unlta-,,--,-YTE Unit6------YTE 

7 .  5/du3 
7.5/du 8 3  
10 .O/du 253 
3.46/1,000 B f  500 

10.O/du 
66.7/1,000 af 

10 .O/du 
5 - 33/8C 

10.O/du 7 4  
4.8/du 186 

) Source: Trip gene[atiQn# 3rd Edition, PTE 
) Average Week Day Vehicle T r i p  End8 
) See t e x t  f o r  discuesion of thin rste 

623 83 
2 * 530 7 1 2  
2,730 1,100 

172 
66 
883 
147 

740 74 
893 186 

62 3 
7 . 1 2 0  
6,006 
1 , 7 2 0  
4 . 4 0 2  

47 
1 . 4 7 0  

7 4 0  
8 9 3  

7,516 23,021 

2 4  
8 3  

7 1 2 
1,100 

172 
66 
883 
147 
74 
186 

180 
623 

1 120 
6 8 006 
1,720 
4 8 402 

47 
1 470 

740 
893 

23,011 



w 
P 
c 
c. 

____-_-_---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

5 , 978 A 7,678 A 22 14 CR 326--US 301-4 11,800 
CR 326--3-5 11,800 6,690 A 10,990 c 39 36 
CR 326--4-6 
CR 326--5-7 

11 , 800 5 , 409 A 11,099 C 51 48 
11,800 4,982 A 11,792 C 58 58 

CR 326--6-8 11 , 800 3,416 A 9,716 n 65 54 
CR 326--7-SB 11,800 2,135 A 3 , 335 A 35 10 
SR 4Q--PSD-l9 27 , 900 21,919 I\ 23,819 I \  II 7 
SR 40--10-20 27 . 900 19.704 A 20 .3O4 A _I 2 
SR 40--19-21 27 , Y O 0  17,364 A 18 , 864 A M 5 

A 13,667 A 7 5 SR 40--20-EB 20,400 12,667 
B 21 , 950 0 3 2 US 301--NB-49 27,900 21 , 350 

US 301--48-50 27,900 20,780 A 21,780 0 5 4 
US 301--49-51 27 , 900 22,061 I) 23,761 I \  7 6 
U S  301--50-52 27 , 900 18,645 A 19,245 A 3 2 
US 301--51-53 27,900 18,645 A 18,945 A 2 1 
US 301--52-54 27,900 19,215 A 19,715 A 3 2 
US 301--53-55 42,700 27 , 897 A 28 , 397 A 2 1 
US 301--54-56 42,700 28,182 A 28,682 A 2 1 
US 301--55-68 55,200 40,137 A 41 , 937 B 4 3 

(1) Service volume or road capacity for Level of Gervice "C" conditione. 
(2) Projected Average Dally Traffic on the roadway8 at bulldout of the development. 
(3) Level of Service. 



a P 
c 
t4 

CR 326- 301-4 
CR 326-3-5 
CR 326-4-6 
CR 326-57 

3266-8 
CR 326-7-SB 
SR 40--39 
SR 40-18-20 
SR 40-19-21 
SR 40-20-pB 
US 301-M3-49 
US 301-48-50 
Os 301-49-51 
US 301-50-52 
Os 301-51-53 
US 301-52-54 
US 301-53-55 
US 301-54-56 
US 301-55-SB 

1,180 
1,180 
1,180 
1.180 
1,180 
1,180 
2,790 
2,790 
2,790 
2,040 
2,790 
2,790 
2,790 
2,790 
2,790 
2,790 
4,270 
4,270 
5,520 

590 
669 
541 
4 90 
342 
213 

2,192 
1,978 
1,736 
1,267 
2,135 
2,078 
2,206 
1,864 
1,864 
3,921 
2,790 
2,818 
4,014 

A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
I3 
A 
A 
A 
ki 
A 
D 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

76& 
1,099 
1,110 
1,179 
972 
333 

2 , 382 
2,038 
1,086 
1,367 
2,195 
2,178 
2 , 376 
1,924 
1,894 
1,971 
2,840 
2,868 
4,194 

A 
C 
C 
C 
B 
A 
M 
A 
A 
A 
B 
I) 
B 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
B 

22 
39 
51 
58 
65 
35 

8 
3 
tl 
.I 
3 
5 
I 
3 
2 
3 
2 
2 
4 

14 
36 
48 
SB 
54 
10 
7 
2 
5 
5 
2 
4 
6 
2 
1 
2 
1 
1 
3 
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T h e  present z o n i n g  locations a r e  s h o v n  on 6 
belov. 

1 I 
Y . . C *  ' 

- 1 - 1  

!$ 
I 

7 k e  proposed z o n i n g  is a s  follcus: 

Z o n i n q  Svmbol L a n d  Use 

it- 3 
3- 1 
2 - 2  
H- H 
9 - 3  
A - 1 ,  M-2 
A -  1 
3-2 
G - U  
H- 1 
B-1 
B- 1 - 9-1 - n.. 

O n e  f a m i l y  d v e l l i n g  
One f a m i l y  d w e l l i n g  
O n e  f a m i l y  d w e l l i n g  
M o b i l e  h o m e  s u b d i v i s i o n  
M u l t i - f a m i l y  
G o l f  c o u c s e  - u t i l i t y  
P r e s  e r v e  
N e i g h b o r h o o d  c o m m e r c i a l  
P o l i c e - f i r e  
L i g h t  i n d u s t r i a l  
S c h o o l  
R e l i g i o u s  
P r i v a t e  c l u b  - .. 

h e  axhibit 
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Exhibit C 
m e s  o f Wate r Service 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. 
(OSUI) in Marion County 

Potable water service will be provided by OSUI. It is contemplated that reclaimed water will be 
provided for golf course and certain public area irrigation. Detailed information will be submitted 
with the Application for Rates and Charges. 

Exhibit C 



EXHlBIT D 
Land for Wate r and Waste water Facilities 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. 
(OSUI) in Marion County 

The location of water and wastewater facilities has not been determined since planning for these 
facilities has not been completed. However, Avatar Properties Inc., the developer, will convey 
title to OSUI to land for water and wastewater treatment plant facilities and other facilities. See 
Exhlbit E, Attachment 2. 
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EXHIBIT E 
Financial and Technical Ability of Applicant 

I Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. 
I (OSUI) in Marion County 

Ocala Springs Utilities Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avatar Utilities Inc., incorporated on April 
10, 1998 has no assets or employees. It was created for the specific purpose of providing water and 
wastewater service for Ocala Springs, an M I  designed, planned community development. 

It wdl receive technical support from other Avatar Utilities Inc. subsidiaries, primarily Florida Cities 
Water Company and Avatar Utility Services, Inc. as does Poinciana Utilities Inc. and the Divisions 
of Florida Cities Water Company. As Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. becomes operational, a local 
operating and customer service staff will be employed. A profile of Avatar Utilities Inc. is at 
Attachment 1. 

Financing for the early stages of development of Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. will be provided by API, 
the developer of Ocala Springs. The Master Agreement between Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. and API 
is at Attachment 2. 
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ATTACHMENT 1. EXHIB IT E 

AVATAR UTILITIES INC. 
COMPANY PROFILE’ 

Avatar Utilities Inc. (“AUI”), a utility holding company, has provided water and wastewater 
services through its subsidiaries since 1956. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Avatar Holdings 
Inc. (AHI). AHI stock is listed on the NASDAQ-NMS system under the symbol AVTR. 

AUI has assets of $180.7 million including $162.5 million (net of depreciation) in plant. Common 
shareholder equity is $27.6 million and long term debt $35.5 million. Annual operating revenues 
are $32.9 million. 

Am’s operating subsidiaries include Florida Cities Water Company (“FCWC”), Poinciana 
Utilities Inc. (“PUI”) and Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. (OSUI), water and wastewater utilities; 
Avatar Utilities Services, Inc. (“AUSI”), a data processing and contract operations service 
company and Barefoot Bay Propane Gas Company, a distributor of propane gas. 

AUT subsidiaries have a total of 203 employees including 6 1 licensed water or wastewater 
operators, eight professional engineers and three certified public accountants. The The corporate 
ofices for all subsidiaries are co-located in Sarasota. Business offices are located in Golden Gate, 
Ft. Myers, Sarasota, Carrollwood, Poinciana, Barefoot Bay, Sunrise and Miami. 

THE UTILITY OPERATING COMPANIES 

Services and rates applicable to FCWC and PUI are governed by tariffs approved by the Florida 
Public Service Commission (PSC) or county commissions in those counties which have chosen to 
regulate services and rates. OSUI, incorporated in April 1998, currently has no customers; 
however, its services and rates will be regulated by the PSC. 

One measure of success of these companies is the recognition conveyed by awards. FCWC and 
PUI have received a combined total of 88 industry and regulatory agency awards since 1977 in 
recognition of excellence in operations, safety and customer communications 

Florida Cities Water Company 

FCWC owns and operates eight water treatment facilities, six wastewater treatment facilities and 
associated water distribution and wastewater collection systems. Organized into five operating 
divisions, it serves approximately 34,000 water and 26,000 wastewater customers (residential, 
commercial, industrial and public authority) in six Florida communities: Golden Gate (Collier 
County); North Ft. Myers and Ft. Myers (unincorporated areas of Lee County); Sarasota 
(unincorporated areas of Sarasota County); Carrollwood, a suburb of Tampa (Hillsborough 

All statistical and financial information is at December 3 1, 1997. 
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County); and Barefoot Bay (Brevard County). 

The Golden Gate Division is located in Collier County and provides service to this 
residential community located ten miles east of Naples. Water service is provided to 
2,900 customers. The water is supplied from surficial aquifers through 6 wells and 
treatment includes conventional lime softening, filtration and disinfection at one water 
treatment plant. Wastewater service is provided to 2.000 customers. One plant provides 
wastewater treatment and the reclaimed water is used for irrigation or discharged to rapid 
infiltration basins. Rates and service are regulated by Collier County. 

The Ft. Myers Division is located in Lee County, one of Florida's fastest growing 
metropolitan areas, and serves approximately 19,000 water and 9,000 wastewater 
customers. The service area includes North Ft. Myers, Ft. Myers Beach and south 
suburban Ft. Myers. The water source is groundwater from both surficial and deep 
aquifers utilizing over 50 wells. Water treatment is provided by conventional lime 
softening, filtration and disinfection at three water treatment facilities. Two advanced 
wastewater treatment plants produce highly-treated effluent that is reused for irrigation or 
discharged to the Caloosahatchee River. There is significant customer growth potential 
within the south suburban Ft. Myers certificated service area. Rates and service are 
regulated by the Public Service Commission. 

The Sarasota Division is located in Sarasota County and provides water and wastewater 
service to approximately 5,600 water and 8,900 wastewater customers located primarily in 
the Gulf Gate and South Gate communities. Potable water is purchased from the Sarasota 
County Utilities Department and wastewater treatment is provided by two advanced 
wastewater treatment plants. The reclaimed water from these plants is reused for 
irrigation or discharged to surface water bodies. Rates and service are regulated by 
Sarasota County. 

The Carrollwood Division is located in north central Hillsborough (Tampa) County and 
serves a residential community of approximately 1,200 customers. Three welldtreatment 
facilities provide water which is drawn from the Floridan aquifer. Wastewater is collected 
and pumped to the Hillsborough County wastewater system for treatment and disposal. 
Rates and service are regulated by Hillsborough County. 

The Barefoot Bav Division serves Barefoot Bay, a residential community of manufactured, 
modular homes. located on Florida's east coast about forty miles south of the Kennedy 
Space Center in Brevard County. Both water and wastewater service is provided to 
approximately 4,600 customers. Water is withdrawn from the surficial aquifer via seven 
wells. Water treatment consists of softening, filtration and disinfection. An advanced 
wastewater treatment plant produces highly-treated effluent that is reused for irrigation. 

Poinciana Utilities Inc. 

PUI serves Poinciana New Township, a rapidly growing Avatar developed community, located in 
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Osceola and Polk Counties near Disney World. Water and wastewater service are provided to 
6,300 water and 5,900 wastewater customers, The water source is ground water withdrawn 
through nine wells from the Floridan Aquifer, aerated and disinfected at five water treatment 
facilities. Four wastewater treatment plants providing secondary or secondary-plus treatment 
before the reclaimed water is reused for irrigation or discharged to rapid infiltration basins and 
wetlands. There is substantial customer growth potential within the certificated service area. 
Rates and service are regulated by the Public Service Commission. 

Ocala SPrinns Utilities Inc. 

OSUI currently has no customers or utility plant. It will provide water and wastewater services ~ C I  

Ocala Springs, an active adult community, which will be developed by Avatar Properties Inc., an 
AHI subsidiary. Ocala Springs is located in the vicinity of the City of Ocala in Marion County, 
Florida. 

THE 1 JTILITY SERVICE COMPANIES 

Avatar Utility Services. Inc. (AUSI) has been in business since 1971 and provides data processing 
and computer services (e.g., customer billing, accounts receivable, general ledger, payroll, etc.) 
for all AUI operating subsidiaries, Rio Rico Utilities Inc. as well as non-affiliated companies. It 
also provides meter reading services for certain divisions of Florida Cities Water Company. 
AUSI provides one or more of the following services to 28 non-affiliated utility entities 
throughout Florida: water and wastewater systems operation and maintenance, contract meter 
reading, customer billing, bill printing and bill mailing. AUSI currently reads approximately 
190,000 meters (electric, water and gas) and prints and mails almost 100,000 customer bills per 
month. Its subsidiary, Utility Services Group Inc., is engaged primarily in meter reading services. 

OTHER ACTIVITIES 

AUI also provides management, accounting and other services to Rio Rico Utilities Inc, a 
subsidiary of Avatar Holdings Inc., which provides water and wastewater service to the 
community of Rio Rico, Arizona. Approximately 2,900 water and 1,200 wastewater customers 
are served in Rio Rico. 

ADDITIONAL WORMATION 

Additional information is shown at the following exhibits: 

Organizational Chart - Figure 1 
Customer Information - Table 1 
Water Treatment Facilities - Table 3 
Wastewater Treatment Facilities - Table 4 
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-re 1 
AVATAR UTILITIES INC. 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

AVATARHOLDINGS Luc. (AHI) 
(Holding Compan!) , 

AVATAR UTILITIES Luc. (AUI) 
(Holding Company) 

I I 
Pomcrava u m s  INC. (PUI) 

(Utility Operating Company) 

t- BAREFOOT BAY PROPANEGAS Co. (BBPGC) 
(Utility Operating Company) 

AVATAR U-"Y SERVICES, INC. (AUSI) 
(Service Company) 

r I 

U i i m  SERVICES GROUP INC. (USGI) 
(Service Company) 

CONSOLIDATED WATER COMPANY ( c w c )  
(Holding Company) 

FCWC HOLDINGS INC. (FCWCHl) 
(Holding Company) 

m 
FLORIDA CITIES WATER COMPANY (FCWC) 

(Utility Operating Company) 

I 1 
O C U  SPRINGS UTllSIlES h C .  (OSUI) 

(Utility Operating Company) 
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Table 1 
AVATAR UTILITIES LNC. 

WATER AND WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS 

COMPANY DIVISION WATER W A T E R  

Florida Cities Water Co. Golden Gate 2,893 2,002 4,895 
S. Ft. Myers 15,955 6,382 22,337 
N. Ft. Myers 3,298 2,704 6,002 
Sarasota 5,611 8,889 14,500 
Carrollwood 1,193 1,122 2,3 15 
Barefoot Bay* 4.599 4.579 9.178 

TOTAL 

33,549 25,678 59,227 

Poinciana Utilities, Inc. 6.323 5,874 12.197 

Total 39,872 3 1,552 7 1.424 

* Barefoot Bay Propane Gas Company serves approximately 900 gas customers. 
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Table 2 
AVATAR UTILITIES LNC. 

WATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 

NUMBER CAPACITY 
SYSTEM FACILITIES TYPE TREATMENT (MGD) 

Golden Gate 1 Disinfection 1.224 
Filtration 
Lime Softening 

Lee County 3 Disinfection 12.000 
Filtration 
Lime Softening 

S araso t a (Water purchasedfiom Sarasota County) 

Carrollwood 3 Disinfection 1.246 
Iron Sequestering 

Barefoot Bay 1 Disinfection 1,000 
Filtration 
Lime Softening 

Poinciana 5 Disinfection 
Aeration 
Stabilization 

E- 1-6 
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Table 3 
AVATAR UTILITIES INC. 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 

NUMBER CAPACITY 
SYSTEM FACILITIES TREATMENT! 1) 0 DISPOSAL 
Golden Gate 1 Secondary-Plus 0.95 Rapid Infiltration Basins 

Lee County 2 Advanced 

Sarasota 2 Advanced 

3.75 Reuse & Discharge to 
Surface Water Body 

3.16 Reuse & Discharge to 
Surface Water Body 

Carrollwood (Treatment provided by Hillsborough County) 

Barefoot Bay 1 Advanced 0.75 Reuse 

Poinciana 4 Secondary-Plus(2) 1.86 Reuse, Rapid Infiltration 
Secondary(3) Basins, Wetlands Dischg. 

Notes; 

(1) Treatment definitions: 

Secondary - treatment which will remove 90% of the biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) 
and total suspended solids (TSS) or meet specific limits for these pollutants and providing 
basic disinfection. 

Secondary-Plus - meeting Secondary standards and nitrogen limits. 

Advanced - Secondary treatment meeting more stringent limits for BOD than Secondary 
or Secondary-Plus, the same limit for TSS as Secondary-Plus, and limits for nutrients 
(usually nitrogen and phosphorus); and providing filtration and basic disinfection. 

(Those plants providing reclaimed water for reuse meet additional standards.) 

(2) 
(3) Plant No. 2 

Plant Nos. 1, 3 and 5 .  
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ATTACHMENT 2, EXHIBIT E 

Master Agreement 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 4th day of May 1998 between Ocala Springs 

Utilities Inc., a Florida Corporation, (hereinafter called “OSUI”) and Avatar Properties Inc., a 

Florida Corporation, (hereinafter called “API”); 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, API is the owner of certain land in Marion County, Florida which API intends 

to develop as a subdivision known as Ocala Springs (hereinafter called “Ocala Springs”); 

WHEREAS, central water and wastewater services are essential for the development of Ocala 

Springs and API desires that OSUI provide same; 

WHEREAS, API and OSUI contemplate that the facilities required for said water and 

wastewater service will include, but will not necessarily be limited to, water supply, water and 

wastewater treatment, pumping, storage, water distribution, wastewater collection, and wastewater 

disposal facilities (hereinafter collectively called “Facilities”). 

WHEREAS, OSUI intends to file an application before the Florida Public Service Commission 

(hereinafter called “FPSC”) for an Original Certificate for Water and Wastewater for Ocala Springs; 

and 

WHEREAS, at this time, OSUI does not have the financial capability to design and construct 

Facilities. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter 

set forth, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
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1. API agrees to: 

a. Design and construct Facilities in strict accordance with plans and specifications 

meeting the approval of OSUI and governmental agencies having jurisdiction and 

convey same to OSUI as advances-in-aid-of-construction (hereinafter called “AIAC”) 

or contributions-in-aid-of-construction (hereinafter called “CIAC”) until such time as 

OSUI has the financial capability to perform same. All such work shall be governed 

by service, extension and other agreements entered into between the parties hereto 

from time to time. 

Grant title to Facilities and all land required for same to OSUI in a form satisfactory 

to OSUI including title to utility treatment facilities as required by Rule 25- 

30.433( lo), Florida Administrative Code. 

Finance the initial operations of OSUI through guaranteed revenues or as otherwise 

mutually agreed until OSUI’s operating revenues are adequate to cover operating 

costs. 

b. 

c. 

2. OSUI agrees to: 

a. Provide water and wastewater service to Ocala Springs conditioned upon the granting 

of the Original Certificate for Water and Wastewater by the FPSC. 

Operate and maintain Facilities in accordance with applicable permits, rules and 

regulations. 

b. 

3 ,  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and 

their respective successors and assigns and constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 
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between the parties relevant to the matters referred to herein. No additions, deletions, 

modifications or other changes of this Agreement shall have force or effect, or be of any 

validity unless made in writing and executed by and between the parties with the same 

formality as this Agreement. 

4. Any notice or payments shall be addressed as follows: 

To OSUI: 

Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. 
4837 Swift Road, Suite 100 
Sarasota, Florida 3423 1 

To API: 

Avatar Properties Inc. 
255 Alhambra Circle 
Coral Gables, Florida 33 134 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement in three (3) 

counterparts each which shall be deemed an original on the day and year first above written. 

AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC OCALA SPRINGS UTILITIES WC. 

Dennis J. GetMan Gerald S. Allen / 
Executive Vice President President 
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EXHIBIT F 
Applicant Financial State ments 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. 
(OSUI) in Marion County 

Ocala Springs Utilities Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avatar Utilities Inc., was incorporated 
recently and has no financial statements. The Avatar Utilities Inc. financial statements are attached 
hereto at Attachment 1. 
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Avatar Utilities Lnc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Years ended December 3 1, 1997 and 1996 
Unaudited 
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Avatar Uthties hc. and Subsidaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31 
1997 1996 

Assets 
P Ian t pro pert? 

Ltility plant 
Construction LFork in progress 
Excess of  Cost over equity in net assets acquired 
Other propeny 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Current assets: 
Cash and equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of alloLvance for doubthi accounts 

Unbilled revenue 
Due from affiliates 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

($61,139 in 1997 and 556,399 in 1996) 

Deferred charges. 
Unamortized debt expense 
Unamortized rate case expense 
.Allowance for finds prudently invested 
Deferred tax asset 
Other 

Total Assets 
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5115.184,039 S2 18,588,659 
2,857,033 2,017,394 
886,516 949,843 
738,242 933,867 

233,065,830 222,489,763 
70,607,734 63,648,3 68 
162,458,096 15834 1,395 

285,861 637,911 

2.049,430 2,210,27? 
1 ,4 15,377 1,586,422 

263,487 252,181 
848,494 947,083 

5,258,367 6,069,321 

395,718 43 5,444 

642,078 697,078 
607,085 690,692 

5,775,037 6,797,225 
3,275,000 4,509,000 
2,701,164 2,702,280 
13,000,364 15,396,275 

S180.716,827 S180,306,991 
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December 31  
1997 1996 

Capitalization and Liabilities 
Capitalization: 

Common stockholder’s equity 
Common stock-staled vaiuz. 510,000 per share; 1,000 shares 

authorized; 905 shares issued and outstanding S 9,050,000 $ 9,050,000 
Paid-in cauital 7,233,680 7,233,630 
Retained earnings 11,351,558 9,252,119 

27,635,238 25,535,799 
bhnority interest: 

Redeemable creferred stock of  subsidiary company 7,200,000 9,000,000 
Other 

Lon,o-term debt 

Current liabilities: 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Xotes payable-bank 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
Due to parent company and afiliates 
.Accrued property and other tay=.s 
.Accrued interest 

67.632 63,952 
7,267,631 9,063,952 

35.150.000 
70,352,870 

2,334,167 
1,432,261 
4,369,732 

37,430 
1,059,144 

353,421 
9,586,155 

34,534.166 
69,133,917 

3,267,565 
4,3 50,000 
3,330,496 

783,587 
1,051,125 

328,430 
13,611,353 

Deferred credits: 
Investment tau credits 1,578,079 1,704,691 
Regulatory liability 869,259 912,810 
Other 3,480,872 2,946,729 

5,928,210 5,564,230 
Advances for construction and contributions in aid of construction: 

Advances for contruction, net of accumulated 

Contributions in aid of  construction, net of accumulated 
amortization (39,977,870 in 1997 and $9,133,893 in 1996) 23,975,599 24,379,938 

amortization (330,883,477 in 1997 and $27,768,738 in 1996) 70,873,993 67,117,553 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities S180,716,827 S 180,306,991 

See uccompnnJ,irrg notes. 
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Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Operation and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Property and other taxes 

Avatar Utilities Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of h o m e  

k’enr ended December 31 
1997 1996 1995 

Operatiny income 

Other income (expense): 
Allowance for funds used during construction 
Litigation expense 
Other 

Income before interest and income taxes 

Interest charges. 
Interest 
Amortization of debt expense 
htinority interest and preferred dividends 

requirements of subsidiary 

Income before income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 
Net income 

See accompanying notes. 
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%32,860.223 $3 1,445.153 329.061.313 

17,607.487 17,100,879 16,569,693 
4,003,256 3,824,3 17 3,520,991 
3,016,129 2,855,194 2,621,906 
24,626.872 23,780,690 22.715.589 
8,233,351 7,667.573 6,316.759 

30.058 264.5 24 542,952 
(850,000) (1.250.000) 

207.479 205.644 (37.518) 
237,537 (3 79,s 3 2) (711,566) 

8,470,888 7,287,711 5,602,193 

3,335.658 3,415.613 3.462.970 
129,668 12 6,470 1 1  1.253 

680,723 813,536 81 1.208 
4,146,049 4,365,669 4.3 85,466 
4,324,839 2,922,072 1.216,727 
1.625.400 1.225.000 626.000 

S 2,699,439 S 1,697,072 $ 590,727 
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Avatar Utilities hc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statemsats of Common Stockholder's Equity 

Common 
Common Paid-In Retained Stockholder's 

Stock Capital Earnings Equity 

Balance at January 1, 1995 S?.950,000 S7.233.680 S7.5 14,320 S23.'98,000 
Net income - - 590,727 530,727 

- - 300,000 300,000 Less: Dividends on common stock 
Balance at December 3 1, 1995 9,050,000 7 ,23  3,680 7, 805,047 24.088,727 

1,697,072 1,697,072 Net income - - 
Less: Dividends on common stock - - 250,000 250,000 

Balance at December 3 1, 1996 3.050,OOO 7,233,680 9,252,119 25.535,799 
2,699,439 t.699,439 Net income - - 

Less: Dividends on  common stock - - 6 0 0,O 0 0 600,000 
Balance at December 3 1 .  ! 33- S9.050,OOO S7.233,680 S11,351,558 S2'.635,238 

See accompmying notes. 
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Avatar Utilities hc. and Subsidmies 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31 
1997 1996 1995 

Operating activities 
Net mcome 
.kllustments to reunciie net Lncome IO :.e! sash provided 

by operatmg xLiq;ltxs: 
Depreciation lnci moruzauon 
Deferred income taxes 
.~llowance for funds prudenrly invested 
Taxes receiwd on contributions in ud ofconstruction 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Receivables and unbilled revenues 
Other currant assets 
Current liabtlikes, excluding huncmg acuvitics 
Other 

Yet Lash provided 51. Jcerating activ:tits 

Investing activities 
Addiuons to plant ?rcFem/ 
Net cash used in mscjung 3ctivitles 

Financing activities 
Proceeds from issuancc of long-term debt 
Increase (decrease 1 Ln notes payable-hik 
Repa>ment of long-:em debt 
.klvmces and conL.5ut:ons in aid oixrdiuc: ion.  net 
Common dividenb 
3iv;dends paid to wont!  interest 
Preferred stock redemption 
Net cash provided I used) by 1-mancing acrivitics 

Net mcrease ( d e c r a c )  in cash and equivalenu 
Cash and equivalenu at beginrung of>= 
Cash and equivalenu at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information 
Cash paid during L!C )ear for: 

Interest (net ofanounts capitallzed, 
Income taxes. mcludmg amounts paid on taxable 

advances and xnmbutions 

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing 
activities 
Property contributed 

See nccompaii>'itig riotes. 
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. .. . 4,003,256 3,324,3 1 - ~ .>-b .391  

1,022,188 918,505 3GS:j56 
677,900 (879,000) (2.1 I ' . O O O )  

366,422 1,361,Wl 

33 1,893 (1 33,466) (453,364) 
54 1,074 (-175.2 7) ! 3249 

(588,113) 59 1.686 5.~::.588 
218,525 (U2.ZUj) ...0.148 

5,906,152 5.464.966 4.533.436 

.-. 

(6,348.874) (6,222,432) i 1  I .'O4.009) 
(6,348,874) (6.222.432) ( (1 1.3?4.009) 

3,250,000 1 3.GCO.I)OO 
(2,9 17,739) 1,375.000 i: 3.-5O.i)CO) 
(3,267,564) (2,3 86,843 j 19.151'1.634) 
2,427,178 2,017: I l l  1.5<5.355 
(600,000) (2S0:OOO) I ? I : ~ > . # J G O )  

(1,503) 
( 1,800,000) 
(2,909,328) 75 5.27 1 6.564.351 

(352,050) (2,195) 1349.222) 
637,9 1 1  640,106 989.328 

S 285,861 S 637.91 1 S €40.106 

S 3,227,845 S 3,110.9'2 s 2.3-3.588 

S 1,980,916 S 1,406.162 5 1.3':.159 

S 5.173.798 S 3,765,341 S 3.91lj.393 
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Avatar Utilities hc. and Subsidiaries 

Notss to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 3 1, 1997 

1. Summar?; of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies 

Avatar Utilitics Inc (the Company) is a subsidiary of Avatar Holdings Inc. (.Avatar). The 
consolidated financial statements include the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. 
Consolidated Water Company (Consolidated), Poinciana Utilities Inc. (Poinciana). Barefoot Bav 
Propane Gas Company and .\vatu Utility Services, Inc. (AUSI). Consolidated has a subsidiary. 
FCWC Holdings Inc. (Holdings) which has a subsidiary, Florida Cities Water Company (Florida 
Cities). The principle utility operating companies, Florida Cities and Poinciana are engaged in the 
regulated business of water and wastewater services in Central and Southwest Florida. XUSI 
provides data processing senices  (customer billing, bill printindmailing, accounts receivable, 
- general ledger. and payroll) for all .AL? operating subsidiaries as well as non-affiliated companies 
AL'SI provides meter reading senices for certain divisions of Florida Cities and non-affiliated 
utility entities. AUSI also provides water and wastewater systems operation and maintenance to 
non-affiliated utility entities. .UI significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

The accounting and reporting policies of Florida Cities and Poinciana are subject to regulation by 
the Florida Public Sen ice  Commission (FPSC) and various county regulatory authorities. 
.Accounting records are maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accaunts prescribed 
by  the National Association o f  Regulatory Utility Commissioners. 

Utility Plant 

Ltility plant is stated at orizinal cost when first constructed or purchased for public utility 
purposes. Indirect costs capitalized durinz construction include an allowance for funds used 
during construction ( .VLDC)  and various labor-related expenditures. AFUDC represents the 
estimated Costs of f h d s  used to finance the construction of utility plant. AFUDC is applied to 
construction projects requiring more than three months to complete and where the estimated cost 
of the project exceeds $50,1300. 

The cost o f  additions to utiliry plant and replacements of retirement units are capitalized. The COS; 

of depreciable property retired or replaced, plus removal cost, less salvage, is charged to 
accumulated depreciation. hlaintenance and repairs O f  property is charged to operating expenses. 

Depreciation of utility plant for financial statement purposes is computed o n  the straight-line 
method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of  the assets as directed by the various 
regulatory authorities. 

F- 1-7 Attachment  1, E h b i t  F 



1. S u m m a r y  of Significant Accounting and  Reporting Policies (continued) 

Excess of Cost  over  Equi ty  in Yet Assets Acquired 

~ 

The excess of cost is amoritzed on a straisht-line basis over forty years 

I Cash and  Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of  three months or iess to 
be cash equivalents. 

Unamortized Debt Expense 

Debt expense is amortized over the terms of the related debt and preferred stock issues 

Unamortized Rate  Case Expense 

Rate case expenses are deferred until the regulatory authority rules upon the application for a rate 
increase at w h c h  time they are amortized over the period approved by the regulatory authority. 

Advances for Construction 

Advances for the construction of main extensions are refundable to real estate developers within the 
terms of the contracts in w h c h  the advances are accepted. Balances which are not refundable at the end 
of the contract period are credited to contributions in aid of construction. Advances for contruction are 
amonized to the extent permitted by the FPSC. 

Contr ibut ions in Aid of Construction 

Contributions in aid of construction (C1.X) include contributions from customers, real estate developers 
or home builders to h n d  construction (primarily main extensions) and the portion of  advances for 
construction which becomes non-refundable. CIAC is amortized to the extent permitted by the 
appropriate regulatory authorities. 

Revenue 

Revenue consists of billinss to customers for water and wastewater service. Billings are included in 
revenue as meters are read on a cycle basis throughout each month. Unbilled revenues are 
accrued based on estimated consumption since the last billing. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies (continued) 

Income Taxes 

The Company is a member o f a  consolidated group for federal income tax purposes. I n c c r e  taxes are 
calculated on a separate return basis. Current taxes are paid to the parent iompany. The Company 
follows the practice o f  defemng investmerx t u  credits for financial reporring purposes acd amortizing 
them over thrty-five years 

The liability method is used in accounting for inconie t a y f j  Cnder thj mchod. deferred x o m e  tax 
assets and liabilities are deterrrined based an  differences between finans:.. reporting and :LY bases of 
assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and 1an.j that will be in S e c t  when the 
differences are expected to reverse. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temaorary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for income tax purposes. 

. .  

Related Party Transactions 

The Company's parent and artiliates c h q e  the Company for certain geed and adminkri t ive expenses 
representing managerial, financial, legal. and other s e n i c s  Total expenses allocated a m d l y  to the 
Company during the years ended December 3 1, 1997, 1996 and 1995 nas  approximately 3 100,000, 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of  financial statements in conformity uith generally accepted accountin,o ;r;4ciples 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the moun t s  reported Ln the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could direr from thcje estimates. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments  

The estimated fair value of  the Company's long-term debt is determined using discounted :ash flow 
analysis based on the Company's current incremental financing rate for similar types of secLrities. The 
carrying amount of long-term debt was S37,784,167 and S37,801,73 1 at December 3 1,  1597 and 1996, 
respectively; and the fair value \vas $38,507,650 and S38.695,OOO at December 3 1,  199" u d  1996, 
respectively 

The carrying amounts of  cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, notes 3ayable-bank a:.? redeemable 
preferred stock, approximate fair value. 

Reclassification 

Certain prior year amounts hai,e been reclassified to conform to current year's presentatic: 
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2. Allowance for Funds Prudently Invested 

The FPSC authorized Florida Cities’ Fort Myers water and wastewater divisions to recogize an 
allowance for h n d s  prudently invested (.UPI) related to excess plant capacity. Facilities were planned 
and constructed so as to absorb future population grourh in the senice area. The FPSC’s orders specifL 
that the AFPI (whch  is designed to proLide for the hll cost of carrying the excess plant including rate of 
return, depreciation, income taxes, property taxes and regulatory assessment fees) be passed on to new 
customers in the form of a one-time fee At December 3 1, 1997, AFPI totaled $6,147,000, of which 
$372,000 was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and S5,775,000 was included in 
deferred charges. At December 3 1, 1996. .IFPI totaled S7.169,OOO of which $372,000 ivas included in 
prepaid expenses and other current assets and S6,797.000 ivas included in deferred charges. Management 
believes that all recognized amounts attributable to f inds  prudently invested will be recoverable in the 
normal course of operations 

3. Preferred Stock 

Holdings has 72,000 outstanding shares of 9% Cumulative Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, non-voting, 
with a liquidation value of SlOO per share. Pursuant to the annual redemption requirements of the 
preferred stock, 18,000 shares per year nil1 be retired, at the liquidation value. in the years 1997 through 
200 1. Holdinns - has the option to redeem an additional 15.000 shares, at the liquidation value, in the year 
2000. 

4. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt at December 3 1 is as follorvs: 

1997 1996 
First mortgage bonds 
8 500°,’o Series I, due 2002 
9.190?/0 Series J, due 2006 
7 790% Series K. due 2007 

Senior notes 7.27%, due 2010 
8.65% note, due 2002 
Bank mortgage note, due 2004 

Less current maturities 

S 2,730,000 S 3,275,031 
5,666,667 6,333,252 
5,54 5,s  0 0 6,000,OO 0 
18,000,000 18,000,OOO 
2,592,000 3,110,000 
3,250,000 1,083,398 
37,784,167 37,801,73 1 
2,334,167 3,267,565 

$35,450,000 $34,534,166 

The first mortgage bonds and bank mortgage note are collateralized by substantially all plant property. 
Sinking h n d  requirements and installments of long-term debt are as follows: 1998-S2,534,167; 1999- 
-52,484,167; 2000-$4,120,167; 200 l-S4,120,467; 2002--54,120,467; 2003-2007-S15,687,832; 
2008-20 10--54,909,600, 

Under the Company’s debt arrangements, the payment of cash dividends and certain other distributions 
are restricted. 
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5. Lines of Credit 

At December 3 1, 1997, the Company had available a lines of credit arrangements with a bank expiring 
June 30, 2000, at the bank's prime rate or lower rate quoted by the bank, which provides for maximum 
borrowings of S 15,000,000 Lrnder the terms of the line of credit, no compensating balances are required 
A commitment fee is required equal to an mud rate of 1/4 of 1?/0 of the unused line. At December 3 1, 
1997, borrowings were S 1 ,43 2.26 1 at 6 9790 .At December 3 I ,  1996, borrowings were S 1,500,000 at an 
average interest rate of 6 75% 

6. Income Taxes 

The provision (credit) for income taxes consists of th? following components: 

1997 1996 1995 

Federal income taxes: 
Current 
Deferred 

S809,OOO $1,797,000 $ 2,426,000 
557,900 (773,000) (1,909,000) 

State income taxes' 
138,500 307,000 -1 17,000 Current 

Deferred 120,000 (106,000) (3 0 8,000) 

S1.625.400 $1.225.000 $ 626.000 

Deferred income taxes consist of the following components: 

1997 1996 1995 

Depreciation S 612,000 $ 435,000 $ 664,000 
CIAC 149,000 (1,474,000) (2,740,000) 
Investment tax credits ( 8 6,OO 0) (8 8,000) (8 8,000) 
.@PI (3 8 5,0 0 0) (3 4 6,OO 0) (3 09,000) 
Amortization of company paid 

339,000 32 1,000 248,000 
Post-retirement benefits (180,000) (194,000) (22 1,000) 

228,900 467,000 229,000 Other 

CIAC tax 

S 677,900 $ (879,000) $(2,217,000) 
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6. Income Taxes (continued) 

Federal income taxes computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate are recoaBciled to the 
provision for income taxes as follows: 

1997 1996 1995 

Computed taxes at the stamtory 

Tax effect of: 
rate of34Yo S1,470,000 S 394.000 S 414,000 

h o r t i z a t i o n  of custzmer funded 
CL4C tax (300.000) 1352.000) ( 1S9,OOO) 

Preferred dividends 230,000 275,000 275,000 
Amortization of investment tax 

credits (86,000) (88,000) (88,000) 
State income taxes 171,000 133,000 55,000 

140,400 193,000 159,000 Miscellaneous - 

Provision for income t axes S1.625.400 Si.725.000 S 626.000 

The components of deferred rcome tax assets and liabilities as JiDecember 5 1 are as follows: 

1997 1996 

Deferred income tau assets: 
Advances and contributions 
Unamortized ITC 
Other 

Deferred income tax lizbilities: 
Utility plant 
Allowance for hnds prudently invested 
Other 

S 14,559,000 S 15,627,000 
951,000 1,004,000 
58 1.000 524.000 

16,09 1,000 17,15 5,000 

10.224000 9,677,000 
2,186,000 2,549,000 

406.000 420.000 
12,816,000 12,646,000 

S 3,275,000 S 4,509,000 

As indicated in Note I ,  the Company is a member of a consolidated group for federal and state iocome 
tax purposes, and accordingly. current taxes are paid to the parent company. At December 3 1,  1997 and 
1996, approximately ($2SS.OS!) and 9796,595, respectively, oftaxes due to (from) the parent are 
included in due to parent company and affiliates. 
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7. Pension Plan 

The Company has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employes of 
the Company. The benefits are based on years of senice and the employee’s average compensation 
during the last five hghest years of earnings. The hnding policy is to contribute amounts to the PIE 
sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement Lncome 
Security .Act of 1974. The actuarial present value ofbenefit obligations and knded status as of 
December 3 1 are as follows. 

1997 1996 

Actuarial present value of accumulated benefit 
obligation, including vested benefits of 
$3,832,000 in 1997 and $3,255,000 in 1996 S 3,942,000 5 3,367,000 

Projected benefit obligation S 4,574,000 $ 3,885,000 
Plan assets at fair value 4,604,000 (4,060,000) 
Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan 

assets (30,000) (175.000) 
Unrecognized net %ah 271.000 5 15,000 
L‘nrecognized prior service Cost (3 15.000) ( 3  63.000) 
Unrecognized net asset at January 1,  1986. 

net of amortization 43.000 58,000 

Accrued pension cost S (31.000) $ 36,000 

Accrued pension cost is included in accounts payable and other current liabilities. 

Net periodic pension cost consists of the following components: 

1997 1996 1995 

Service cost-benefits earned 

Interest cost on projected benefit 

.Actual return on plan assets (423,000) (406,000) (49 5,000) 
Yet amortization and deferral and 

other 122,000 139,000 245,000 
s 210,000 s 221,000 S 190,000 

during the period $ 204,000 $ 204,000 $ 190,000 

obligation 307,000 284,000 250,000 

The actuarial assumptions used in determining the present value of the projected benefit obligation ‘.i ere. 
discount rate, 7-1/2% in 1997, 1996 and 1995, salary increase, 5% in 1997, 1996 and 1995, and asjet rate 
of return, 8% in 1997, 1996 and 1995. Plan assets are invested with a major insurance company in :ts 

general asset fund, which is comprised primarily of fixed income securities, and a separate account. 7.bhich 
is comprised of equity securities, public bonds and cash equivalents. 
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8. Postretirement Benefits 

The Company provides medical and life insurance benefits to retired employees. Participants contribute 
portion of such benefits. The Company records the cost of post-retirement benefits during the employee’s 
years of actiye service. The Company’s finding policy for this cost is on  a pay-as-you-go basis. 

The plan’s finded status and the related accrual of December 3 1 are as follows: 

1997 1996 
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation: 

Retirees 
Fully eligible active pian participants 
Other active plan parricipants 

Plan a s e t s  
Accumulated benefit obligation in excess of 

Unrecognized net gain 
Unrecognized transition obligation 
Accrued postretirement benefit cost 

plan assets 

S 729,000 S 882,000 
593,000 496,000 

t ,586,000 1,360,000 
2,908,000 2,838,000 

2,908,000 2,838,000 
2,320,000 2,28 1,000 

( 2.48 9,000) (2,64 5,000) 
S 2,739,000 3 2,474,000 

Accrued postretirement beneh cost is included in other deferred credits. 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost consists of the following components: 

1997 1996 1995 

Service cost S170,OOO S241,OOO $273,000 

h o r t i z a t i o n  of transition obligation 
Interest cost on benefit obli,oation 205,000 277,000 233,000 

and gains and lossej (62,000) 67,000 120,000 
S313,OOO S j 8 8 , O O O  $676,000 

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation is calculated utilizing the following assumptions: 
discount rate of 7.5% for 1997. 1996, and 1995; medical inflation rates of 10% for 1997 reducing to 6% 
by 2000; termination rates calculations used the Crocker-Sarason Straisht T-8 tables for the Decenber 
3 1, 1997 and 1996 calculations. the T-6 table was used for the December 3 1, 1995 calculation. This 
change in termination rates decreased the net periodic benefit cost beginning in 1997. The effect o f a  1% 
increase in the assumed medical inflation rate would be to increase the accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation and the senice and interest cost components of 1997 net periodic postretiremec: 
benefit cost by SJ83,OOO and S74,000, respectively. 
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9. Commitments 

The Company and its subsidiaries accounts for leases on the same basis as that used by the respective 
regulatory authorities in the rate-making process, which determines the revenues utilized to recover the 
lease costs. The Company and its subsidiaries leases certain office space and transportation equipment 
under leases expiring through 2000. Totd rent expense was S362,OOO for 1997, S309,OOO for 1996 a d  
$3 lj.000 for 1995 Minimum rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases in effect at 
December 3 1,  1997 are as follons, 1998-52 18,000 1999--% 180,000, 2000--S58,000; Total- 
$456,000. At December 3 1,  1397, the Company had outstanding commitments of approximately 
$1,219,000 for the construction ofutility plant. 

10. Contingencies 

On October 1, 1993, the United States, on behalf of the C.S. Environmental Protection Xsency, tiled a 
civil action against the Company in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of Florida, United 
states v. Florida Cities Water Compa?!v, Civil Action No. 93-28 1-CIV-FTM-2 1, alleging that the 
Company’s wastewater treatment plant in North Ft. Myers operated in violation of the Federal Clean 
Water .Act (”Act”), 3 3  V.S.C. 1 3  1 etsea. On May 5 and June 26, 1995, the United States amended 
its complaint to include allegations against the Company for violations of the Act at two other 
wastewater treatment plants located in Brevard County and in Kllsborough County. A trial was held in 
XIarch and April, 1996. On August 1 0 ,  1396, the Court issued its final judgment, incorporatin_e earlier 
mlingj. The Court found the Company nct !iable on certain of the government’s claims, but liable on 
other claims, and awarded the government 3309,710 in civil penalties against the Company. On October 
18, 1996, the government tiled a notice of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit. 
In June of 1997, the parties filed a joint motion to dismiss all related appeals with prejudice. On .August 
6, 1997 this motion was granted by the appeals court. The civil penalties have been paid by the 
Company, and, accordingly, t h s  case is now concluded. 

In hla;. 1995, a \\astetvat=r rate increase L i a s  filed for the Worth Ft. Myers Division. In Sovember 1995, 
the FPSC issued an Order authorizing a ra:e increase of approximately IS% (an annualized revenue 
increase of approximately S 3  7 S . O O O )  That Order was challenged by the Florida Ofice of Public Counsel 
(the customer advocate) and certain customers. 

Following the challenge. the Company requested implementation of the rates in that Order which was 
granted by the FPSC in January 1996. The FPSC held a rate hearins in April 1996. In September 1996, 
the FPSC issued a new Order authorizing final rates which are approximately 5% lower than rates in 
effect prior to the rate increase filing. The Company filed an appeal with the District Court of Appeal of 
Florida. First District ( DC.4) rezardins the FPSC final rates. On, January 12, 1998, the DCX reversed 
and remanded to the FPSC the September Order. The DC.A ruled that the FPSC had departed from the 
essential requirements of the law. The rates implemented in January 1996 are reflected in the financial 
statements and will remain in effect! subject to refind plus interest, pending the ultimate outcome of this 
matter. The Company believes that there is a reasonable basis to prevail. 
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EXHIBIT G 
Funding Sou rces 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities Inc 
(OSUI) in Marion County 

Funding during the early stages of development of Ocala Springs Utilities Inc. will be provided b!. 
API, the developer of Ocala Springs. See Exhlbit E. 

Separate financial statements for API, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avatar Holdings Inc., are not 
available. However, the audited financial statements for Avatar Holdings Inc. are at Attachment 1 
hereto. 

6- 1 Exhibit G 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAM3 

Stockholders and Board of Directors 
Avatar Holdings Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avatar Holdings h c .  and subsidiaries 
a s  of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the related consolidated statements of opmtons, stockhold-' 
equity, and cash flows for each of the thne years in the period ended December 3 1, 1997. Our audits ala 
included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 14. These finaccial statements and 
schedule arc the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinicn 
on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance With g e n d l y  accepted auditing standards. Those standarb 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiai 
statements and related schedule arc frte of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a res: 
basis, evidence supporting the amounfs and disclosurrs in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refemd to h v e  pment  fakIy, in all matc+,d 
respects, the consolidated financial position of Avatar Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries at December 3 1, 199' 
and 1996, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each oithe three years in 
the period ended December 3 1, 1997, in conformity with generalty accepted accounting principles. Also, 
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considend in relation to the basic hanciai 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the informahon set forth therein. 

ERIVST & YOLNG ELP 

Miami, Florida 
March 13,1998 
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AVATAR HOLDINGS INC. AM) SUBSIDIARIES 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(Dollan in thousands) 

December 3 1 
1997 

PLsSefS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Investments - trading 
C o n w t s  and mortgage notes receivables, net 
Other receivables, net 
Land and other inventories 
Propmy, plant and equipment, net 
Other assets 
Regulatory a ~ s e t s  
Assets of discontinued operations 

Total Assets 

Llabllines 
Notes, mortgage notes and other debt: 

Corporate 
Notes, collateralized by contracts and mortgage notes receivable 
Real estate 
Utilities 

Estimated development liability for sold land 
Accounts payable 
Accrued and other liabilities 
Deferred customer betterment fees 
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries 
Liabilities of discontinued operations 

%OS5 
4,690 

243 19 
6,186 

161,161 
188,602 
19,448 
3,318 
27,559 

$439,368 

$44,506 
23,566 
39,163 
39,216 
8,697 
6,08 1 
36,918 
18,667 
7,268 
18,662 

Total Liabilities 242,744 

Commitments and contingent liabilities 
Contributions in aid of construction 6 1,582 

Common Stock, par value S 1 per share 

9,170 
Additional paid-in capital 151,422 
(Deficit) retained earnings (2 5,5 5 0) 

135,042 
Treasurj stock, at cost: 0 sham in 1997; 3,620,346 shares in 1996 

Authorized: 15,500,000 shares 
Issued: 9,170,102 sham in 1997; 12,7 15,448 shares in 1996 

Total Stockholders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

135,042 

3439,368 

December 3 1 
1396 

5143,lSS 

S33,113 
36,030 
27,4662 
42,152 
8,153 
7,116 
30,8C 
18,13Ij 
9,OG 
11,735 

224,488 

59,245 

12,715 
207,2- 1 
1,433 

22 1,425 
6 1,9'3 

159,452 

$443,185 

G-1-2 Attachment 1. Exhibit G 



Revenues 
Real estate sales 
Defemd gross profit on homesite sales 
Utilities revenues 
l n t m t  income 
Trading account profit net 
other 

Total revenues 

ExwlS€s 
Real estate expenses 
Real estate inventory write-down 
Utilities expenses 
General and administrative expenses 

other 
Interest expense 

Totai expenses 

(Loss) income h m  continuing operations 

Discontinued operations: 
(Loss) income from operations, less 

income tax expense of SO 

Net (loss) income 

Basic and Diluted EPS: 
(Loss) income h m  continuing operations 
(Loss) income h m  discontinued operations 
Net (loss) income 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

For the year ended December 3 1 
I997 1996 1995 

sa4, 85 5 
3,998 

34,293 
5,200 

71 
667 

129,084 

93,559 
14,667 
25,627 

8,756 
12,668 

68 1 

155,958 

(26,874) 

(1 15) 

(S26,9 891 

($2.95) 
(SO.01) 
(S2.96) 

S93.5 10 wa,2 I 7 
2.639 (720) 

32,049 29,669 
7,346 9,427 
23!0 6,9 12 
2.105 663 

141,353 94,168 

90,475 58,626 
1 ,;Ms 

25,505 24,923 
8,734 9,2 10 

12,053 11,518 
814 811 

139.095 105,088 

2,264 (10,920) 

S1,W (S10,339) 

s0.25 (S 1.20) 
($0.14) $0.06 

$0.11 ’ (S1.14) 
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AVATAR HOLDMCS INC. AND SUBSIDlARIES 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Additional (Deficit) 
Common Paid-in Retained Treasw 

Stock Capital Eamings Stock 

Balance at January 1,1995 S12,715 S20727 1 
Net loss 

Balance at December 3 1, 1995 12,715 207,271 
Net income 

Balance at December 3 1, 1996 12,715 20727 1 
Issuance of c ~ m m o n  stock 75 2,503 
Retirement of trcamy stock (3,620) (5 8,3 5 2) 
Net loss 

Balance at December 3 1,1997 $9,170 S 15 1,422 

510,738 
(10,XY) 

: 99 
1 .cJo 

1,439 

(26,989) 

625.550) 

Thm an 5,000,000 authorized shares of pnfemd stock, none of which are issued. 

See nota  to consolidated financial statements. 

56 1,972 

6 1,9'1 

6 1,973 

(6 1,973) 

S 
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AVATAR H0LDMC;S (NC. AND SUBSIDIARDES 
consolidated statanenu of cash Flows 

@ouan in thousands) - 
Net (loss) income 
Adjusfments to reconcile net (loss) income to 

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred gross profit 
Cost of homesite sales not requiring cash 
hventory writedown 
Trading account profit, net 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Restricted cash 
Lrlvestments - trading 
Principal payments on contracts receivable 
Receivables 
Other receivables 
Inventories 
Other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities 
.%sets/liabilities of discontinued operations 

?ET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING A C f M T l E S  - 
Investment in property, plant and equipment 

3ZT CASH USED IN W S T N G  A C I M T I E S  

For the year ended Decembe: 3 1 
1997 I996 1995 

11,520 10,278 9,654 
(3,998 ) (2,63 9) 720 
3,004 3,956 3,590 
14,667 1,464 
(71) (292 10) (69 12) 

420 
45,554. 
14,391 
1,616 
(362) 

(27,291) 
a84 

(2,766) 
(1,974) 

(73 1) 
11,000 
17,571 
(6,560) 
(1,174) 
(3471 I )  
2,591 
4,228 

(3,6221 

3,166 42,36 1 ( 14,695) 

( 1 1,407) ( 1  1,465) ( 13,473) 

EpirLY- 

Principal payments on revolving lines of credit and 
Net proceeds &om revolving lines of credit and long-tenn borrowings 62,183 73,93 1 68,348 

long-term bonowings 
Redemption of preferred stock of subsidiary 
Purchase of 9% debentures 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTlVITlES 

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

(54,520) (100,800) (42,122) 

1387) 
(1,8001 

.. 

5,863 (26,8 6 9) 25,839 

(2,378) 4,027 ( Z,3 29) 

6.463 2.436 4,765 

54,085 $6.463 92,436 
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AVATAR HOLDLNCS LNC. AND S U B S I D U S  
comlidated statmats of cash Rows - continued 

(Dollars in thousands) 

For the year ended December 3 1 
19971996L995 

$5,250 55.584 55,000 Contributions in aid of construction 

OF R.OW INF- 

Cash paid during the period for: 

Interest - Continuing operations (net of amount capitalized of 
$2,927, $3,573 and $3,234 in 1997, 1996 
and 1995, respectively) 

Lntmst - Discontinued operations (net of amount capitalized of 
S272, $430 and SO in 1997, 1996 
and 1995, respectively) 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

G-1-6 

S9,756 $9,336 , S 10,899 --- 
$1.041 s473 s22 I 

Attachment 1, Exhibit G 



AVATAR HOLDINGS [NC. AhD S L B S I D W S  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FWAYCLAL STATEMENTS 

Dccember31,1997 
@ollan in thousands except p e r - s h  data) 

NOTE A - SLUMARY OF SIGMFICX\iT .ACCOLhTI?;G POLICIES 

The consolidated financial statements include Avatar Holdings Inc. and its subsidiaries ("AvataP'). 
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Avatar is principally engaged in the business of developing and selling single and multifarniIy 
residential housing, active adult communities, improved and Unimproved nal estate, and providmg watti  
and wastewater utilities services. 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents. Due to the shon maturity period of the cash equivalents, the carrying amount of 
these itmuments approximates their fair values. Restricted cash includes deposits of S4,69O and 51,583 as 
of December 3 1, 1997 and 1996, respectively. These balances are comprised of housing deposits that will 
become available to the Company when the housing conmcts close and utilities deposits f h m  water 
utilities customers. 

Land inventories are stated at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Cost includes 
expenditures for acquisition, construction, development and carrying charges. Interest costs incurred 
during the period of  land development, when applicable, are capitalized as part of the cost of such projects. 
Land acquisition costs are allocated to individual land parcels based upon the relationship that the 
estimated sales prices of specific parcels bear to the total sales price of the entire community. Construction 
and development costs an added to the value of the specific parcels for which the costs an incurred. 

In March 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement No. 121, 
"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived &ets to Be Disposed Of," 
which requires impairment losses to be recorded on long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of 
impairment are prtsent and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less 
than the assets' carrying amount. Statement 121 also addresses the accounting for long-lived assets that are 
expected to be disposed of. The Company adopted Statement I21 in the first quarter of 1996, and there 
was no material impact on the Company's operations or financial position. Reference is made ro Note E 
for a discussion regarding impairment of real estate inventory. 
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NOTE A - S W Y  OF S I G M F I C M  A C C O L " G  POLICES -- continued 

Revenues: 

Sales of housing units arc recognized in hll upon the "fer of title to a purchaser. Revenus 
h m  commercial land and bulk land sales are recognized in full at closing, provided the purchasefs in it:^, 
investment is adequate, all financing is considered collectible and Avatar is not obligated :o p e r f o r  
sigmficant future a c t i b i t i e s .  

The Company ws the installment method of profit recognition for sales of homesites. ~ i e  accru:  
method of profit recopt ion  for sales of completed vacation o m m h i p  intmals, and the percentage c i  
completion method for sales of those vacation ownmhip intervals that are under constriction. Cnder Lye 

installment method, the goss profit on recorded sales is defemd and recopized in incoce s f  hug 
periods as principal payments on related contracts arc received and deferred profit IS incicded in L!C 
balance sheet, as a reduction of contracts receivable, until recognued. Under the percentage of completlc:: 
method, the p s s  profit on recorded sales is recopized based upon the percentage of sonstructioc 
completed. 

Utilities revenues are recorded as the service is provided. 

Property, plant and equipment an stated at cost and depreciation is computed principally by the 
straight-line method over the estimated usell  lives of the assets. Depreciation, maintenance and operating 
expenses of equipment utilized in the development of land arc capitalized as land inventory cost. 

Income taxes have been provided using the liability nethcd in accordance with FASB Statemm: 
No. 109, "Accounting for lncome Taxes." Under Statement No. 109, the liability method is used iz 
accounting for income taxes where deferred income tax assets and liabiliries are determined based or. 
differences beweem financial reporring and tax basis of assets and liabilities and arc measured !using the 
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences reverse. 

The cumulative effect of adopting Statement No. 109 for Avatar's utilities subsidiaries was nor 
credited or charged to net income, but was recorded as a regulatory liability or regulatory asset in 
accordance with aaounring proccduns applicable to regulated enterprises. The regulatory liabilities and 
regulatory assets will generally bc amortized to income or expense over the useful lives of the utilities 
systems and reflect probable hturc revenue reductions or increases h m  ratepayers. 

Amounts collected h m  customers for utilities improvements are classified as "Deferred Curtome: 
Betterment Fees." These fees will be reclassified to "Conmbutions in Aid of Construcrion" wkm service 
to the customer begins. 
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NOTE A - SLiMMpLRY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMDU’G POLICIES -- continued 

Advances &om real estate developers and other direct contributions to utilities subsidiaries fcr 
TO the extent required b) plant construction are recorded as “Conmbutions in A d  o f  Construction.” 

regulatory agencies, the account balance is amortized over the depreciable life of the utilities plant as 
offset to depreciation expense. 

The Company classified its entire i n v e s t ”  portfolio as trading. This category is defined bs 
including debt and marketable equity securities held for d e  in anticipation of earning profits f” shot- 
term movements in market prices. Trading account securities were carried at fair value that was SO a: 
December 31, 1997 and 54,535 at December 31, 1996. 

Ln October 1995, the FASB issued Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation.” Statement No. 123 allows companies to measure c o m p d o n  cost in connection wi& 
employee stock compensarion plans using a fair value based method or to use an intinsic value based 
method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees” (APB 25). The Company has elected to follow APB 25 and related in tqnta t ions  in 
accounting for its employee s o c k  options and has added the expanded disclosure in Note N to comply 
with Statement No. 123. 

The Company accrues postretirement benefits (such as health care benefits) during the years an 
employee provides services. These benefits for rc t ims are cumntly provided only to the employees of the 
Companfs utilities subsidiaries. 

Advertising costs arc expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 
1995, advertising costs totaled 53,749, $3,758 and $3,265, respectively. 

Eamings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding of  
9,113,595 for 1997 and 9,095,102 for both 1996 and 1995. In computing eamings per sharc for 1997, the 
conversion of the employee stock options was not assumed, as the effect would be antidilutive. There is no 
difference between basic and diluted earnings per share for 1997, 1996 and 1995. 
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NOTE A - SLMMARY OF SIGMFICAV A C C O U " G  POLICES -- continued 

The preparation of  b e  hanc id  statements in conformity with generally accepted ~countir ._;  
principles quh management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reponed in th: 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual d t s ,  however, could differ h m  those estimates. 

Ln June 1997, the FXSB issued Statement NO. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income." Statemer.: 
No. 130 establishes standards for rtporting and display of comprehensive income and its compnens 
(revenues, expenses, guns, and losses) 111 a full set of general-purpose financial statements. Statement $0 

130 requires that all items that are r e q u d  to be recognized under accounting standards as components 0: 
comprehensive income be reported in a thancia.! statement that is displayed with the same prominence bs 

other financial statements. Statement No. 130 requires that an enterprise (a) classify items of other 
comprehensive income by their MW in a financial statement and (b) display the accumulated balance of 
other comprehensive income separately h m  retained earnings and additional paid-in capital in the equity 
section of a statement of financial position. Statement No. 130, which is effective for fiscal yean 
beginning after December 15, 1997, wll have no impact on the Company's consolidated mults of 
operations, financial position or cash flows. 

In June 1997, the F.UB issued Statement No. 131, "Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise 
and Related Information." Statement No. 131 establishes standards for the reporting of financial 
information from the opcnhng segments in annual and interim financial statements issued to shareholders. 
Statement No. 131 also establishes standards for related  disclosure^ With respect to prcducts and services, 
geographic areas of operations, and major customen. Statement No. 13 1, which is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 1997, will have no impact on the Company's consolidated results of 
operations, financial position or cash flows. However, Statement No. 131 may a f k t  reported segments 
and the Company is reviewing dzis matter. 

In accordance with the Company's plan to develop active adult communities at various properties, 
the Company acquired, on October 3, 1997, key executives, systems and software from Hilcoast 
Development Corp. (Hilcoast), the developers of Century Village, in exchange for 75,000 sham of Avatar 
common stock. This acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. Additionally, Avatar acquired an option 
to purchase h m  a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Hilcoast, all rights to use the name "Century 
Village", together with any mdemarks or other intellectual propmy rights. The option is exercisable by 
the Company until October 3, 1998, and upon closing the purchase, the Company would be obligated to 
issue a number of sham of Avatar common stock having a fair market value on the day immediately 
preceding the closing equal to S1,719. The excess purchase price over the estimated fair value of the 
acquired assets is being amortized using the straight-line method over 10 years. 

Ln order to expand its upscale homebuilding business, the Company, on December 4, 1997, entered 
into an asset purchase agrement to acquire certain assets of Brookman-Fels, Jeff Ian, h c .   rookm man- 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF S I G M F I C M  A C C O C N I I "  POLfCIES - continued 

Fels), for an aggregate of $3,899 payable in installments ~ommencbg February 1, 199% ad en&$ 
November 1,2002. This acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. The excess purchase price Over the 
estimated fair value of the acquired assets is being amortized using the straight-line method ove: 5 yeus. 
B m h a n - F e l s  is a well-known regional developer of custom and semi-custom homes and siq!e-famliy 
residential communities in South Florida 

Certain 1996 and 1995 financial statement items have been reclassified to conform to h e  199' 
presentations. 

NOTE B - REAL EST.4TE SALES 

The components of real estate sales are as follows: 

er 31 - 1996 1995 

Revenues h m  homebuilding activities S57,912 99 ,672  S13J60 
Resort revenues 13,787 16,087 14,151 
Gross homesite sales 2,552 12,387 12,561 
Proceeds h m  sale of recreation facility 
Rental, leasing, cableandother 

rcal eStafe operations 5,163 5,362 5,621 

Total d estate sales S84,855 S93,5 10 S482 17 

8,300 

CommcrciaYindustrial land sales -1.702 2.624 -- 
1996 includes S3,714 of land sales generated by the Homebuilding Division and 9 ,276  for bulk land 

sales. 

NOTE C - Ih'VES"l3EhTS 

As of December 3 1, 1996, the Company classified its entire investment portfolio as trading. ms 
category is defined as including debt and marketable equity securities held for resale in anticipation o i  
eaming profits h m  short-term movements in market prices. Trading account securities are carried at fair 
market value and both naked and unrdized gains and losses arc included in net trading account profit. 
Fair values for actively traded debt securities and equity securities arc based on quoted market prices on 
national markets. Fair values for thinly traded investment securities are generally based on prices quoted 
by investment brokerage companies. As of December 31, 1997, the Company had liquidated its trading 
account and used such funds, net of related debt, as working capital. 

Avatar's investment portfolio as D U X "  31, 1996 included corporate bonds and other bonds 
rated B- or above by Moody's and/or Standard and Poor's, non-rated bonds of companies which are m 
bankmptcy and have defaulted as to payments of principal and interest on such bonds, equity securities. 
money market accounts and U.S. Govcnunent and Agency securities. 
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NOTE C - hVESTMEhTS - ~ n t i n u e d  

The following table sets forth the fair values of investments: 

Non-rated bonds 
Equity securities 
Other rated bonds 
,Money market accounts 

Total market value 

1997 1996 
s -  s 77 

81 
2,172 
2.205 s ,64,535! - s -  s3,975 Aggregate cost 

NOTE D - CONTRACTS AND MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLES 

Contracts and mortgage notes receivables arc summarized as follows: 

December 3 1 
1997 1996 

Contracts and mongage notes receivable wO.478 S6 1,534 

Less: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Market valuation w e  
Deferred gross profit 
other 

179 
43 

15,659 
133 

2 1.878 
45 7 11144 

S24.119 s38.200 
16.159 2 3 a  

Contracts and mortgage notes receivable w m  generated through the sale of homesites at various 
sales offices located thruughout the northeast, midwest and west coast of the United States. A significanr 
portion of the contracts and mongage notes receivable at December 3 1, 1997 resulted from sales m d e  to 
customers in the northeast. 

Contracts receivable an collectible primarily over a ten year period and bear intms; at rates 
primarily ranging from 7 1/2% to 12% per annum (weighted average rate 9.9%). The Company gmerally 
requires that customers pledge the homesites as collateral for contracts and mortgages receivable and such 
collateral can be repossessed by the Company in the event of default. A contract receivable is considered 
delinquent if the scheduled i"ent payment remains unpaid 30 days after its due date. Delinquent 
principal amounts of contracts and mortgage notes receivable at December 31, 1997 and 1996 w m  95,286 
or 13.1% and S7,099 or 9.6%, mpctively.  Estimated maturities for the five years subsequent to !997 are 
1998 - 912,038; 1999 - S8,318; 2000 - $5,326; 2001 - $3,945; and 2002 - $3,173. 
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NOTE E - LAND AW OTHER 

Inventories consist of the following: 
December 3 1 

1997 1996 
Land developed and in p c e s s  of development S98.407 S105,617 

Dwelling mts completed or under COnssfNChOn 30,334 22,270 

s161.161 S 162.204 

Land held for future development or sale 31,552 33,544 

other 868 773 

During 1997, there w e n  indicators of impairment present in accordance wit? Statement 121 L-: 
the Company recorded an tmpamnent loss of $14,667 to the carrying value of .LS Harbor Is laxs  
community. This i m p m e n t  !oss was due to a remion to the existing developmait ?Ian in connec:::: 
w th  the Company’s new busmess strategy during 1997. The potion of the Harbor Islands commuruty ti:: 
the Company does not plan to develop has been valued based on an independent appraisal less tl: 
estimated cost of sale. Certain land held for future development by the Company has been valued at t:: 
estimated discounted cash flows in accordance With Statemat 121 as the undiscounred cash flows w e  
less than the carrying amount of the assets. 

In 1996, the Company recorded an impairment loss of S1,W on a certain a t  of land located 2 
the Company’s Banyan Bay site. Fair value was determined based on a purchase o?er received for tl: 
land. 

NOTE F - ESTIMATED DEVELOPMENT L M I L I T Y  FOR SOLD L A M )  

The estimated cost to complete consists of requirui land and utilities improvements in all arts 
designated for homesite sales and are summarized as follows: 

December 3 1 
19971996 

Gross unexpended costs (net of recoveries 
ofSll ,359 in 1997 and S11,941 in 19%) S 12,030 $11,685 

Less costs relating to unsold homesites 3.333 3226 

Estimated development Liability for sold land S8,697 93,459 

These estimates are based on engineering studies of quantities of work to be performed based c: 
current estimated costs. These estimates are reevaluated annually and adjusted accordingly. 

A major podon of the estimated development liability for sold land relates to utilities extensiorz 
for homesites at Avatais Arizona community (RIO Rim) which were sold prior to 1980. 

At Rio Rico, Avatar entered into various service and construction agreements with Citizezs 
Utilities Company (Citizens), a non-related company, g e n d l y  providing for Avatar to construct certaz 
utilities facilities and deed them to Citizens. Avatar‘s expmditures, related to the consmction of some :f 
these facilities, are expected to be reimbursed h m  Citizens’ present and future customm. Some of the= 
reimbursable amounts arc determined by specific formulas. The recovery of these expendiues is 
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NOTE F - ESTZMATED DEVELOPMENT LIABILITY FOR SOLD LAND - continued 

dependent upon the community aftahhg an occupancy and/or usage level sufiicient to allow 
reimbursement prior to the expiration of the agreements. M g  1993, Avatar purchased Citizens' water 
and wastewater treaunent division, thereby voiding the portion Of the existing agmment fdating to water 
and wastewater extensions, leaving only the electrical potion. 

Avatar may be obligated to expend approximately $7,357 (current costs) to complete water and 
wastewater utilities facilities at its Poinciana subdivision. rhesc possible future obligations c based on 
internal engmeering studies and arc not included in the estimated development liability discwed above. 
As such, past and h m  expenditures are expected to be recovered from customers' fees and future 
revenues. 

Expenditures, net of recoveries, for homesite improvement costs totaling 512,030 are esmated b~ 
follows: 1998-32,ooO and thcreafter-S10,030. Because the timing of the expenditures after 1998 is 
dependent upon certain f h r t  occunrnces beyond AvaWs conml, projection by year aita 1998 is not 
presently practicable. 

NOTE G - P R O P E R R ,  P L A V  AND EQUrPMEW 

Property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation consist of the following: - 
1997 1996 

Utilities land, plant and equipment $242,428 $230,600 
Land and improvements 12,160 12,395 
Buildings and improvements 17,82 1 17,94 1 
Machinery, equipment and fixtures 13,695 13,513 
other 386639 

286.490 275.088 
Less accumulated depreciation -88.710 

$188,602 S 186,378 

Depreciation charged to oprmtions during 1997, 1996 and 1995 was $6,961, $5,989 and S5,603, 
respectively, net of amortization of contributions and advances in aid of construction of $4,559, S4,289 
and S4,05 1 during 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. 
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NOTE H - NOTES, MORTGAGE NOTES AND OTHER DEBT 

Notes, mortgage nota and other debt an summarized as follows: 
December 3 1 

Corporate: 
Bank credit lines 

1997 1996 

8% senior debentures, due 2000, net of unamortized 
discount of S697 and 6899, respectively 6,930 6,728 

9% senior d e b e n w ,  due 2000, net of unamortired 
23,576 23,070 
W,506 933,148 

discount of S 1,763 and S2,275, mpectively - 
Notes, collateralized by contracts and mortgage notes receivable: 

Bank credit lines S23,566 S36,030 - 
Real estate: 

Mortgage note obligarions, interest rates ranging h m  
8.875% to 9.25%, due h m  1999 - 2002 55,865 54,969 

Note payable, non-interwt bearing, due 1998-2002 3,899 

Development and construction loans, due 1998-2002 
intenst rata rangng h m  8.75% to 10.0% 29,399 22,493 

S39,163 S27,462 

Bank credit lines S1,432 54,350 

- 
Utili ties: 

L'tilities first mortgage bonds due serially h m  
1998-2007, intercst rates ranging h m  7.79% to 9.19% 13,942 15,608 

Utilities senior notes, 7.27%. due 2000 - 2010 18,ooo 18,000 

Utilities promissory notes, due 1998 - 2002 5,842 4,194 
S39.216 W2,152 

At December 3 I ,  1997, Avatar had secured bank credit lines of $43,566 and unsecured bank credit 
lines of S15,OOO. The unused portions of secured and unsecured credit lines were 56,000 and 513,568. 
respectively, at December 31, 1997. The weighted average interest rate on shon term borrowing at 
December 3 1, 1997 was 9.8%. Lnterest rates for borrowings range f h m  6.97% to 9.19% on the unsecured 
bank credit lines and h m  8.75% to 10.0% on the secured bank credit lines at December 31, 1997. 
Additionally, certain credit lines provide for fixed rate bonowings pursuant to Eurodollar interest rates. 
Under the terms of these agreements, Avatar is restricted &om paying dividends and is required to 
maintain a minimum net wortb, as defined. Certain real propmy and contracts and mortgage notes 
receivable of S32,565 at December 31, 1997 collateralize the secured lines. 
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SOTE H - NOTES, MORTGAGE NOTES A i  OTKER DEBT -continued 

During 1996, an Avatar subsidiary and Stanco P a "  Ltd. entered into a joint vmturc a m a t  
(the Joint Venture) and acquired Casa Del Mar (CDM), an Ormoad Beach, Florida b e a c h h n t  hotel. ~n 
connection with the acquisition of C a s  Dei Mar, the Joint Venture entered into a loan agrement ~7th 
35,139 and S5,674 ouutanding at December 3 1, 1997 and 1996, rrspectively. The debt is guarYlt& b i  3 

subsidiary of Avatar as well as the Jomt Venture Partners. This Jomt V e n m  is included in the timeshi-: 
opmtions, w h c h  has been classified as a disconunued operation as discussed in Note T. 

Maturities of notes, mongage n o t a  and other debt at December 3 1, 1997, an as follows: 

Notes, collateralized 
by contracts and 
mortgage notes 

Corwrate receivable Real Estate Utilities Total 
1998 s -  S S 13,509 S2,334 3 15,843 
1999 14,ooo 18,340 2,255 2,484 37,079 
2000 30,506 14,503 5,553 50,562 

12,172 200 1 5,226 2,825 4,121 
2002 5,03 3 4,127 9,160 
Thereafter 1.038 20,597 21.635 

S 116.45 1 S23.566 S39,163 S39.2 16 s44.506 

During the h t  quarter of 1998, the Company repaid S33,OOO aggregate amount of 3% Senior 
Debentures due 2000 and 9% Senior Debentures due 2000 from the net pmeeds fiom the issuance cn 
February 2, 1998 of S115,OOO principal amount of 7% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2005 
(reference is made to Note U). 

During the first quarter of 1998, the Company repaid S5,226 from a real estate line secured by 
contracts and mortgage receivables. 

Interest cap idked  during 1997, 196 and 1995 amounted to S3,199, S4,003 a d  S3,234, 
respectively. 

Property, plant and equipment and inventory pledged as collateral for notes, mortgage notes and 
other indebtedness had a net book value ofapproximately S163,000 at December 31, 1997. 

Included in notes, mortgage notes and other debt at December 31, 1997 is a related party S3,899 
note payable to Brookman-Fels in installments commencing F e b w  1, 1998 and ending November 1 ,  
2002. In connection with the acquisition of Brwlrman-Fels (as discussed in Note A), the Company 
entered into employment contracts with its three principals. In addition, pursuant to a Joint Venture 
Agreement in place at the time of the acquisition, the Company paid Brookman-Fels approximately S 4 0  
and 3240 in fees and reimbursed expenses, rspectively, during 1997. 

NOTE I - MINORITY INTEREST IN CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDLARIES 

As of December 3 1, 1997 and 1996, preferred stock outstanding is as follows: 

9% cumulative prefemd stock 
other 
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December 3 1 
19971996 

67.200 s9,000 
68 & 

s7&& s9.064 
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Avatar's utilities subsidiary's 9% cumulative p n f d  stock issue provides for redemption of a 
minimum of f1,800 of the pnfemd stock to bc rrdeemcd a h  YCU b e g h h g  in 1997. During 1997 
S1,800 of pr r fmed stock was ndeemed. Redemption of all outstanding shares shall occur no later than 
March 1 ,  200 1. Charges to operations recorded as "Other Expenses" relating to preferred stock dividends 
ofsubsidiaries amounted to S681 in 1997, S814 in 1996, and Sa11 in 1995. 

NOTE J - REmMEm PLANS 

Avatar has two defined contribution savings plans that cover substantially all employees. Under 
one of the savings plans, Avatar contributes to the plan based upon specified percentages of  employees' 
voluntary conmbutions. The other savings plan does not provide for conmbutions by Avatar. 

Avatar's non-conmbutory defined benefit pension plan C O V ~  substantially ail employees of its 
subsidiary, Avatar Utilities Lnc. The benefits are based on years of SerYice and the employees' 
compensation during the five highest years of earnings. A v W s  finding policy is to contribute amounts 
to the plan sufficient to meet the minimum funding rtqUirrments set forth in the Employee Retirement 
lncome Security Act of 1974. 

The following table sets forth the defined benefit plan's funded status as of December 31, 1997, 
1996 and 1995 and the relirement expensc recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the 
years then ended. 

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations: 
1997 1996 1995 

Accumulated benefit obligaaon, including vested 
benefits of $3,832, S3,288, and 62,924, 
respectively $3,942 $3,367 S3.025 -- 

Projected benefit obligation for SeTyices 

Plan assets at fair value 
Projected benefit obligation less than 

rendered to date (54,574) (53,885) (53,646) 
4,604 4,060 3,642 

(in excess 00 plan &sets 30 175 (4) 
Unrecognized net gain (271) (515) (413) 
Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic 

Unrecognized net assets a! January 1,1986, 

Accrued pension cost included in accrued and other 

Net retirement cost included the following components: 

pension cost 315 362 409 

net of amottization (43) (58) (73) 

Liabilities $31 (S36) (S8 1) 

Defined benefit plan: 
Service Cost - benefits -4 during the period s204 s204 s190 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 3 07 284 250 
Actual r e m  on plan assets (423) (406) (495) 

Net pension cost 210 22 1 190 
Net amortization and deferral 122 139 245 

Defined contribution plan 
Total retirement expense 

125 
s335 

122 
s343 

117 
$307 
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The actuarial ammptiorw uscd in dctamhhg the pnseat value of &e projectd benefit obligatian 
wen: weighted average discount rate of 7.5% in 1997, 1996 and 1995, rate of i n c m e  in h m  
compensation levels of 5% in 1997, 1996 and 1995, and expected long-tem! fate of r e m  on plan assets 2 .  

8% in 1997, 19% and 1995. 

Plan wets arc invested in the general asset fund of a major insurance company, which i s  composei 
primarily of 6x4 income sacdties, and a separate accouns which is composed of equity securities, pubii: 
bonds or cash equivalents. 

NOTE K - POSTF!€TIRELM€~T BENEFITS OTHER THrtV PENSIONS 

A utilities subsidiary oiAvatar sponson a defined non-conoibutory benefit posaetirment plan tha: 
provides m d c a l  and life insurance benefits to both salaried and n o d a r i d  employees aiter tetiremer.:. 
Participants conmbute a portion of such benefits. The utilities' funding policy for its postretirement pia.: 
is to fund on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

The following table sets forth the plan's status as of December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995: 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation: 1997 1996 1995 
Retims (S729) ($882) (5948) 
Fully eligible active plan participants (593) (496) (768) 
Other active plan participants (1I5861 (1;460! (2:299i 

(2.908) (2.838) (4.0 1 9  , . - - -  
Plan w e t s  at fair value ' .  0 '-I 0 6 
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation in e x c w  of 

plan assets (2,908) (2,838) (4,015) 
Unrecognized net gain h m  past experience different h m  that 

assumed and from changes in assumptions (2,320) (2,281) (715) 
Unrecognized transition obligation 2.489 2.645 2.798 
Accrued postretirement bmefit cost 

included in accrued and other liabilities (S2,739) (S2,474) ($1,932) --- 
Net periodic posmtircment benefit cost 
included the following components: 

service cost S170 s244 5273 
Lntmt cost on accumulated posatinment 

benefit obligation 205 277 283 
Amortization d transition obligation over 20 years 155 155 155 - 
0th- (2172 (88) (351 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost S313 5588 S676 

For measurement purposes, the annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care 
benefits assumed for 1997, 1996 and 1995 was lo%, 10% and 1 I%, mpcctively; the rate of increase was 
assumed to decrease to 6% by the year 2000 and main at that level t h d e r .  The health care cost trend 
rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported. To illustrate, increasing the assumed 
health care cost trend rates by one percentage point each year would increase the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligarion as of December 31, 1997 by S484 and the aggregate of the service and 
interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit for the year then enc 
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NOTE K - POSTEkElTREMEW BENEFTTS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - continued 

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benef.: 
obligation was 7.5% for 1997, 1996 and 1995. 

NOTE L - LEASE CO.!&fITWE . M S  

Avatar leases the majority of its sdminisuation and sales offices under operating leases that exp:: 
at varying times through 2001 Rental expenses for the years 1997, 1996 and 1995 were $2,049, S 1,763. 
and $1,469, respectively. Minimum rental cornmitmcnts under noncancelable operating leases as : I  
December 3 1, 1997 WCR as follows: 1998 - $2,169; 1999 - S 1,750; 2000-$772; 200 1 - S 107; 2002 -f5. 
NOTE M - ACCRUED iL\n OTHER LLUILITIES 

Accrued and other liabilities arc ,u"arized as follows: 

December 3 1 
19971996 

taxes 
Customer deposits and advances 
Interest 
other 

54,658 $5,788 
10,595 5,225 

1,048 1,027 
20.6 17 18.802 

s36.918s30.842 
As of December 31,1997, the Company had certain incentive compensation agreements providiq 

for a cash payment (to the extent vestaid), within ten days following the respective fifth anniversary dat: 
(payment terms are subject to renewal a p e " & )  of the v t i v e  a g r e e "  (or the termination date, :f 
earlier), in an amount equal to the excess of a formula amount based upon the closing prices of Avatt- 
common stock during a specified period prior to the mpective fifth anniversary date (or termination date. 
if earlier) over the closing price of Avatar common stock on the date of the respective agnement. Ex:. 
eligible employee will vest  in the rights to this incentive compensation with mpcct to one-fifth thereof L: 

each of the first through fifth anniversaries, subject to certain terms and conditions of the contracts shou:: 
their employment statu change prior to the fifth annivmary. For the years ended December 3 1, 199', 
1996 and 1995, the Company recorded incentive compensation of ($471), ($213) and $39, respectivel). 
associated with these agreements. The liability for incentive compensation included in other liabilities a: 
December 3 1, 1997 and 1996 is $35 1 and S822, rrsptctively. 

NOTE N - STOCK OPTTONS 

The Company's 1997 Incentive and Capital Accumulation Plan (the "Incentive Plan") was adoptcc 
by the Incentive Plan Committee, ratified by the Board of Directors on February 13, 1997 and approved by 
the stockholders at the Annual Meeting on May 29, 1997. The Incentive Plan makes available 425,001 
shares of Avatar cornmon stock subject to certain adjustments. On February 13, 1997 Avatar entered into a 
Nonqualified Stock Oprion Agreement (the Options) with the Company's President and granted him a: 
option to purchase 225,000 shares of Avatar common stock at S34 per share (such price being in the 
judgment of the lncentive Plan Committee not less than 100% of the Fair Market Value as defined in the 
Incentive Plan). The Options will become exercisable with respect to 45,000 shares on February 13, 1993 
and on each February 13 thereafter through 2002, and any unexercised portion of the Options will expire 
on FebNary 13,2007. 
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NOTE N - STOCK OPTIONS - ~nrinued 

Options Weighted-hvtrage 
(OOO's) Exercise Pnce 

Outstanding at beginning of year 
225 Granted 

Exercised 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at end of year 

Exercisable at end of year 

Weighted-average per sharc 

granted during the year 
fair value of options 

225 

$16.59 

s -  
34 

$34 

ations in accounting for the Incentive Pian. The Company applies APB 25 and related interprc JO 
compensation expense was recogizcd in 1997 because all stock options granted have an exercise price 
greater than the average market value of the Company's stock on the date of grant. If the Company elected 
to account for the lnceative Plan under Statement No. 123, compensation cost for the Incentive Plan would 
be d e t c " d  bared on the fair value at the grant dates. The weighted average fair value of options p t e d  
during 1997 was S16.59. The fair value of each option granted in 1997 was estimated oa the date of grant 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model With the following assumptions: risk-& interest rate of 
6.38%; expected volatility of 17.6%; dividend yields of 0.0% and expected life of 10 years. 

The following table summarizes the Company's pro forma income h m  continuing operations, net 
(loss) income and Wnings  per share in accordance with Statement Fo. 123 for the year ended December 
31. 1997: 

.& Rmrted Pro forma 

Loss h m  continuing operations ($26,874) (S27,534) 
Net loss (S26,989) (S27,649) 

Basic and Diluted Per Share Data. 
Loss h m  continuing operations ($2.95) (S3.02) 
Net loss ($2.96) (S3.03) 
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NOTE 0 - IXCOME TAXES 

Under the installment method of tax reporting for homesite and vacation ownenhip sales, avatar 
anticipates that its 1997 consolidated f e d d  ha" tax return will reflect a net opeating 10s 
carryforward of approximately S52.000, which e x p k  2003 through 2012. In addition. 
investment tax credits and alternative mini" tax credit carryforwards of approxhately S5,ooO are 
available, a portion of which expires in yean 19% to 2001. The Internal Revenue Service has not 
examined these carryforuards. 

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance of S5 1 ,OOO with mpect to the def tmd income 
tax assets that remain after offset by the d e f d  income tax liabilities. Included in the valuation 
allowance for deferred income tax assets is approximately S9,OOO which, if utilized, will be credited to 
additional paid-in capital. 

Defmed income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences beween the canyiny 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax 
purposes. Significant components of the Company's defemd income tax assets and liabilities as of 
December 3 1 , 1997 and 1996 arc as follows: 

1997 1996 
Deferred income tax assets 

Net operating loss carryover s20,Ooo 5 15,000 
Tax over book basis of land inventory 31,000 24,000 
Unrecoverable land development costs 3,000 3,000 
Tax over book basis of depreciable assets 5,000 7,000 

other 2,000 2,000 
Total defemd income taxes 66,000 56,000 

Alternative minimum tax and investment tax credit carryforward 5,m 5,000 

Valuation allowance for d e f d  income tax assets 
Defemd income tax assets after valuation allowance 

( 5  1 .OOOl (1 1 ,0001 
15,000 15,000 

Defemd income tax Liabilities 
Book over tax income ncogniztd on homesite sales (2,c.w i 3 ,ooo> 
Book over tax income rcco&td on vacation ownership sales (4,000) (3,000) 
Deferrtd carrying charges on utilities plants (2lO00) (2,000) 
Other (7,000) . 17,000) 

lLL!XQl ( l j . o001  
so so 

Total deferred income tax liabilities 

Net defemd income taxes -- 
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XOTE 0 - N C O M E  TAKES - continued 

A reconciliation of income tax expense (credit) to the expected income tax expense ( e d i t )  at he 
f e d d  statutory rate of 34% for the year ended December 3 1 is as follows: 

1997 1996 1995 
h o m e  tax expense (credit) computed 

Income tax effect of nondeductible dividends at statutory rate (59,137) S770 (s3.:: 3) 

State income tax expense (credit), net of federal effect (1,032) 147 (33 I) 
other (63) ( 194) (132) 
Change in valuation allowance on d e f d  tax assets 1o.Ooo ~1,oOoy 4.920 
Provision for income taxes S , L $ -  

on prefemd stock of subsidiary 23 2 277 206 

In years 1988 through 1996, the Company elected the h a l h e n t  method for recording 1 
substantial m o u n t  of its homesite and vacation ownenhip sales in its f e d d  income tax r e m ,  which 
deferred taxable income into future fiscal periods. AS a result of such election, the Company may be 
required to pay compound intmst on c& federal income taxes in future fiscal periods armbutable to 
the taxable income deferred under the installment method. The Company believes that the potentia! 
interest amount, if any, will not be material to its financial position and results of operations of the affected 
future periods. 

NOTE P - CONTINGENCES 
Avatar is involved in various pending litigation mattm primarily arising in the normal c o m e  of its 

business. Although the outcome of these manm cannot be determined., management believes that the 
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on Avatar's business or financial position. 

On October 1,  1993, the United States, on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
filed a civil action against Florida Cities Water Company ("Florida Cities"), a utilities subsidiary o f  Avata: 

w, Civil Action No. 93-281-CIV-FTM-21, alleging that Florida Cities' 
Waterway Estates treatment plans located in Lee County, Florida operated in violation of the Federal 
Clean Water Act ("Act"), 33 U.S.C. $1251 On May 5 and June 26, 1995, the United States 
amended its complaint to include allegations against Florida Cities for violations of the Act at wo other 
Florida wastewater treatment plants, Barefoot Bay, located in Brrvard County, and Carmilwood, located in 
Hillsborough County. In addition, the government amended the complaint to include Avatar, the parent 
corporation, as a defendant. A trial was held in March and April 1996. On .4ugust 20, 1996, the Cow. 
issued its final judgment, incorporating earlier rulings. The Court found Avatar not liable on any of the 
govemment's claims and entered judgment in Avatar's favor. The Court found Florida Cities not liable OR 
certain of the government's claims, but liable on other claims, and awarded the government 93 10 in civil 
penalties against Florida Cities. On October 18, 1996, the government filed a notice of appeal to the US. 
Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit. During June 1997, the parties filed ajoint motion to dismiss ail 
related appeals with prejudice. The US. Court of Appeals dismissed all appeals with prejudice on August 
6, 1997, and the civil penalties have been paid by Florida Cities. 

Holdings h c .  ("Avatar'), in the US. District Court for the Middle District of Florida, -s V* . .  
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NOTE Q - FINANCWL NORMATION RELATNG TO NDUSTRY SEGMENTS 

Rc!uzux 
Real estate 
Unaffiliated customers 
Intersepent 

Utilities 
U 4 l i a t e d  customers 

Elimination of intersegment revenua 
Total Revenues 

Real estate 
Utilities 
Total operating profit 
htmt expense 

(Loss) income h m  continuing operations 

(Loss) income from discontinued operations 

Net (loss) income 

Real estate 
Utilities 

Total 

Real estate 
Utilities 
Total 

Identifiable assets: 
Real estate 
Utilities 
Total identifiable assets 

General corporate assets 

Total Assets 

For the year ended December 3 1 
1997 1996 1995 

S94,79 1 5 108,610 $64,499 
100 100 100 

9439 1 1 08,7 10 64,599 

34,293 32,749 29,669 
34293 32,749 29,669 
(loo1 (loo) (loo) 

$94168 - S 129,084 S141,359 

(S22.09 1) $7,987 ($3,237) 
7,885 6,330 . 3,835 

[ 14206) 14.317 598 
(12I668i (12,053) (11,518) 

(326,874) 62,264 (3 10,920) 

(115) (1,2241 581 

31,040 ($10,339) ($26,989) 

S2,955 S2,180 $2,117 
4,006 3,809 3,486 

$6,961 $5,989 $5,603 

S2,O 19 63,324 $2,138 
13,947 12,336 17,382 

s 15,966 $15.660 S 19,520 

December 3 1 
1997 1996 1995 

S275,485 $252,273 S239,459 
163,562 186,020 18266 1 
439,047 438,293 422,120 

32 I 4,892 48s  12 

S439,368 $443.185 S470,632 

G- 1-23 Attachment 1, Exhibit G 



NOTE Q - F N A N C W  INFORMATION RELATING TO CNDUSTRY SEGMENTS - continued 
(4 
(b) 
(c) 

A v W s  businesses arc primarily conducted in the United States. 
In computing operating profit, intmst has been reflected separately. 
lntmegment menues contain primarily intercompany interest and manage“ fees charged to 
affiliatU. 
Identifiable assets by segment are those assets that 
General corporate assets are principally cash, receivables and investments. 
No significant part of the business is dependent upon a single customer or p u p  of customers. 
Cable TV, mortgage and hotel and recrcati~nal opefations which primarily serve Avatl- 
communities do not qualify individually as Kparate rrportable segments and arc included in k c  

General corporate expenses an included in the nal estate Kgment. 

(d) 

(e) 
(0 

used ki the opeations of each sepent .  

real estate segment. 
(8) 

NOTE R- F A R  VALLT OF FNANCLU INSTRUMEBTS 

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Companfs h c i a l  b m u ” t s ,  all of whch arc he!t 
for purposes o t h a  than trading except for investments - trading at December 31, 1997 and 1996, are hs 
follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Contracts and mortgage notes receivables 
Other receivables 
Notes, mortgage notes and other debt: 
Corporate: 

hvtstments - aading 

Bank credit lines: 
Long term bank credit lints 
Senior debentures 
Total corporate 

Notes, collateralized by contracts and mortgage 
notes receivable 

1997 
Carr/ina Fair 
AmOuni value 

$4,085 9 , 0 8 5  
4,690 4,690 

24,3 19 23,789 
6,186 6,186 

14,000 13,837 
30.506 30.506 

-kUQ6s44.343 

S23,566 S23,447 

1996 
carrylns Fair 
Amouui Value 
S6,463 S6,463 
1,583 1,583 
4,535 4,535 
38200 39,299 
7,066 7,066 

3,350 3,350 
29.798 30,936 

s33.lj8s34.286 
S36.030 S36,llS 

Real estate: 
Note payable S3,899 $3,118 s -  S 
Short term development and consmction loans 12,344 12,344 12,323 12,371 
Long term development and construction loans 22,920 23,346 15,139 24,117 

Total rral estate m S 3 8 . 8 0 8  527.462- 
Avatar Utilities Inc.: 

Short term bank credit lines S 1,432 S 1,432 
Mortgage obligations, first mortgage bonds, 

and promissory notes 37.784 35,561 
Total Utilities -536.993 

Discontinued Operations: 
Cash and cash equivalents s37 1 $37 1 
Contracts and mortgage notes receivables $15,197 S14,787 
Other receivables S69 1 S69 1 
Notes, collateralized by contracts and mortgage 

notes receivable S12,952 S13,683 
54,568 S477 1 Real estate 

94,350 S4,350 

37.802 35.6 18 
s42.Isz539.968 

S25 I 525 1 
SI 1,057 S 10,806 

522 1 s22 1 

S7,998 S8,229 
S2,193 52,239 
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NOTE R- F A R  V A L E  OF FINANcM, INSTRUMENI'S - continued 

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash: The Carrying " n t  reported h the bdance sheet for 
cash approximates its fair value. 

hvestments - trading: The carrying amount in the balance sheet for investments is at fair market vdue 
(See Note A). 

Contracts and mortgage notes receivables: The fair value amounts of the Company's contracts, 
mortgage not- and other receivables an estimated based on a discount4 cash flow analysis. 

Other receivables: The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for other receivables 
approximates its fair value. 

Notes, mortgage notes and other debt: The canyhg amounts of the Company's borrowings under its 
short term bank credit Lines and short term development and constmtion loans approximate their fair 
value. The fair values of the Company's mortgage obligations, mortgage bonds and promissory no te  
are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the Company's cumnt inmenta l  
borrowing rates for similar of borrowing arrangements. 

Senior debentures: At December 3 1,1997, the carrying amount in the balance sheet for the Company's 
senior debentures approximates its fair value. At December 31, 1996, the fair values arc estimated 
based on quoted market prices. 
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NOTE S - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

Summarized quarterly financial data for 1997 and 1996 is as follows: 

1997 Quarter 
First k O Q d  Third Fourth 

Net revenues 
Expenses 

S32,O 19 $34,226 S28,167 S34,672 
33,876 34,689 33,132 5426 1 

(Loss) income h m  continuing operations (1,857l (463) (4,965) (19,589) 
(Loss) income h m  discontinued operations (130) 882 (48) (3  19) 

Net (loss) income 

Basic and Diluted EPS: 
Net (loss) income 

Net revenues 
Expenses 

(S 1,987) w19 (S5,013) ($20,408) - 
$0.05 ($0. 5 5) (S2.24) - (J0.22) 

1 9 6  Quarter 
Fim Second Third Founh 

S27,3 15 S36,065 $3 1,378 $46,601 
27,975 36,027 32.169 42.924 

(Lass) income firom continuing operations (660) 38 (79 1) 3,677 
(Loss) income h m  discontinued opcratioas (416) 55 434 (1,297) 

Net (loss) income 

Basic and Diluted EPS: 
Net loss 

(S 1,076) s93 (5357) S2,380 - 
(50.12) so.01 ($0.04) S0.26 - 

1) During December 1997, the Company recorded an impairment loss of S14,667 to the carrying value of 
the Harbor Islands community. 

2) During the fourth quarter of 1997, the Company recorded S2,ooO of consmction costs for houses 
which closed prior to the fourth quarter of 1997. 
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SOTE T - DISCOMWUED OPERATIONS 

During 1997, the Company developed a f o d  plan for the disposition of its timeshan b u i B % ~ .  A 
letta of intent for the sale of the business W ~ S  ex~~uted during the third quartet of 1997; however, 
negotiations w m  discontinued duriag the fmt quarter of 1998. Management is cumntly in discussion 
with various parties to market the sale of this operanon. Accordingly, uet assets and liabilities of the 
timeshare business have been segregated from the continuing operations in the accompanying balance 
sheets, and o p ” g  d t s  an segregated and rrported as d h n t i n u t d  operations iu the accompanying 
c o w  tidated statements of opeiatioas and cash flows. 

Information relating to the discontinued operatioas for the years ended Dcccmba 3 1, 1997, I 996 
and 1995 arc as follows (dollars in thousaads): 

For the year ended December 3 1, 
1997 1996 1995 

Revenues 
Real estate sales 
Lnterrst income 
Other 

Total feve~lues 

S 12,094 s10,011 S7,771 
1,799 972 226 

14,600 1 1,339 7,997 
707 3 56 

Exnenses 
Real estate expenses 13,464 1 1,679 7,269 
G e a d  and administrative  expense^ 38 
Intemt expense 

Total expenses 
1251 884 109 

14,715 12,563 7,116 

Net (loss) income f” discontinued operations (31 15) (S 1 f 2 4 )  S58 1 
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VOTE T - D I S C O ” U E D  OPERATIONS - continued 

The net assets and liabilities of the discoatinued operatioas included in tRe accompanying bdaice 
sheets as of December 3 1, 1997 and 1996 are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

December 3 1, 
1997 

December 3 1, 
1996 

&scts 
Cash and cash equivalents $371 
Contracts and mortgage notes re civables, net 15,197 
Other receivables, net 69 1 
Land and other inventories 8,903 
Property, plant and equipment, net 23 8 
other assets 2,159 

Total Assas $27,559 

$25 1 
11,057 

22 1 
6,007 

23 7 
2,299 

$20,072 

Liabilities 
Notes, mortgage notes and other debt: 
Notes, collateralized by contracts and mortgage notes meivable S 12,952 
Real estate 4,568 

Accounts payable 694 
Accrued and other liabilities 448 

Total Liabilities SI 8,662 

$7,998 
2,193 

349 
1,245 

SI 1,785 

NOTE U - SUBSEQUENT EVEN” 
On February 2, 1998 the Company issued Sll5,OOO principal amount of 7% Convertible 

Subordinated Notes due 2005 (the ‘Notes”). The Notes arc convertible into common stock of Avatar at the 
option of the holder at any time at or before maturity, unless previously redeemed, at a conversion price of 
$31.80 per share. These Notes are designed to enhance the Company’s liquidity resources and to give it 
increased operating and financial flexibility. The Notes an subordinated to all present and hture senior 
indebtedness of Avatar and are effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities of 
subsidiaries of Avatar. The net proceeds of $1 11,550 &er deducting expenses were used to repay S33,OOO 
aggregate amount of 8% Senior Debentures due 2000 and 9% Senior Debentures due 2000. The remaining 
proceeds will be used to implement the development of the Company’s new active adult communities, to 
expand its homebuilding o p d o n s ,  to reduce higher interest rate borrowings, to provide additionai 
working capital and for other corporate purposes. 
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P.S.C. DESCRIPTION 
For 

AVATAR PROPERTIES, Inc. 

THAT PART OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 23 

97TH STREET ROAD), BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
BEGINNING AT THE SW CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7; THENCE 
N 00°00’42 W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 7, 1356.70 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S 45O12’04” E, 194.74 FEET; THENCE 
CONTINUE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, SOUTHEASTERLY, A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S 61O26’52” E, 2506.48 FEET, TO THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 7; THENCE S 89O28’26” W, ALONG 
SAID SOUTH LINE, 2339.66 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

EAST, LYING SOUTH AND WEST OF ANTHONY-BURBANK ROAD (NE 

FEET, TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID ANTHONY-BURBANK ROAD; 

THAT PART OF THE EAST 3/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, 

ROAD (NE 97TH STREET ROAD), BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
BEGINNING AT THE SE CORNER OF SAID SECTION 12, THENCE 
S 89O44’31” W, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 12, 3939.66 
FEET, TO THE SW CORNER OF SAID EAST 314 OF SECTION 12; 
THENCE N 00°04’57” E, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST 314, 
2647.09 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 

BURBANK ROAD; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N 89O00’47” E, 1222.21 FEET; 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, SOUTHEASTERLY, A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S 60O35’41” E, 289.66 FEET; 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, SOUTHEASTERLY, A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S 45O12’04” E, 3660.59 FEET, TO 
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE S 00°00’42” E, ALONG 
SAID EAST LINE, 1356.70 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

RANGE 22 EAST, LYING SOUTH AND WEST OF ANTHONY-BURBANK 

N 00°04’54” E, 1290.63 FEET, TO CENTERLINE OF SAID ANTHONY- 
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SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
LESS AND EXCEPT: 
BEGINNING AT NE CORNER OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE 
S 00°13'02" W, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 18, 464.79 FEET, 

SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF S 65O18'41" W, 378.24 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG 
SAID CENTERLINE, SOUTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF S 76O49'44" W, 298.34 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
N 84O18'56" W, 681.00 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
N 62O07'46" W, 179.86 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
N 84°11'10" W, 769.59 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
N 61O26'52" W, 906.77 FEET, TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 18; 
THENCE N 89O28'26" E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, 3034.81 FEET. TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 
AND ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT: 
BEGINNING AT THE SE CORNER OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE 
N 89O46'58" W, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 18, 380.00 
FEET; THENCE N 19°41'19" E, 1140.00 FEET, TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 18; THENCE S 00°13'02" W, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 1074.80 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

TO THE CENTERLINE OF ANTHONY-BURBANK ROAD; THENCE 

ALL OF SECTIONS 13,24, AND 25, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 
22 EAST. 

THE E 1/2 OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, LESS 
THE NW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 AND ALSO LESS: COMMENCING THE SW 
CORNER OF THE SE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 14; THENCE N 00°31'45" E, 931.68 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE N 86O38'25'' E, 933.25 FEET; 
THENCE N 02O21'35" W, 397.28 FEET; THENCE S 86O38'25'' W, 638.66 FEET; 
THENCE S 02O21'35" E, 373.28 FEET; THENCE S 86O38'25" W, 292.96 FEET; 
THENCE S 00°31'45" W, 24.05 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, LESS: BEGINNING AT 
THE SW CORNER OF SAID SECTION 23, THENCE N 0O0O0'48'' W ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 23, 661.34 FEET; THENCE N 89O57'10" E, 
2314.73 FEET; THENCE S 00°00'26" W, 661.79 FEET, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 
SAID SECTION 23; THENCE S 89O57'50" W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, 2314.66, 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
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B r 
INC. 

THAT PART OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, LYING 
EAST OF THE CSX RAILROAD (FORMERLY KNOWN AS SEABOARD COAST 
RAILROAD), 
LESS AND EXCEPT: 
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26; 
THENCE S 00°06’47” W, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NW 114, 1364.87 
FEET; THENCE S 89O56’52” W, 631.93 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 00°06’47” W, 1072.31 FEET; THENCE S 89O56’52” W, 840.80 FEET, 
TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF NE 40TH AVENUE ROAD; 
THENCE N 00’00’00” E, ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 
429.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO 
THE EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1450.00 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 

AND CURVE, 666.32 FEET; THENCE N 89O56’52” E, 692.50 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

26’19’45”; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

THAT PART OF THE EAST 1/2 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 
22 EAST, LYING EAST OF THE CSX RAILROAD (FORMERLY KNOWN AS 
SEABOARD COAST RAILROAD). 

THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 
EAST, LYING EAST OF THE CSX RAILROAD (FORMERLY KNOWN AS 
SEABOARD COAST RAILROAD)] LESS THE NORTH 7 1/2 CHAINS; THE W 1/2 
OF SAID SE 1/4 OF SECTION 22, LYING EAST OF SAID RAILROAD; THE SOUTH 
13 CHAINS OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 22, LYING EAST 
OF SAID RAILROAD, LESS THE NORTH 3 CHAINS OF THE SOUTH 13 CHAINS 
OF THE E 1/2 OF THE SW 1/4. 

THE NE 1/4; THE N 314 OF THE E 112 OF THE SE 1/4; THE EAST 6 CHAINS OF 
THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 114 OF THE SE 1/4; EXCEPT: EAST 14 FEET OF SOUTH 
210 FEET; THE EAST 60 FEET OF THE WEST 264 FEET OF THE NORTH 105 
FEET OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 114 OF THE SE 114; ALL IN SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST. 
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I SHEET 2 OF 2 

SKETCH OF DECSRlPTlON 
FOR 

AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC. 

NOTE: 
SEE SHEET ONE FOR NOTES, LEGEND AND DESCRIPTION 
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I SHEET I OF 2 LEGEND 
i NTERIOR PARCEL LIMITS 
i OVERALL DESCRIPTION LlMTS 
= SECTIONLNE 
= RIGHT-OF-WAY LNE 

FBlPG = FELD EOCU I PAGE 

LB. = LIENSEDEUWESS 
SEC. = SECTION 
TWP. z TOWNSHP 
R E .  : RANGC 

0 = PARCEL I DESCMPTON CROSS REFERENCE 

~~~~~~ 

PSM. = PROFESSlONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER 

NOTES 
1. BEARINGS AND DIMENSIONS ARE BASED ON NORMATION FOUND IN DEEDS OF RECORD, 

TAX ROLL DESCRIPTIONS, AND VARIOUS RECORD PLATS OF OCALA SPRINGS. 

2. THIS DRAWING (SEE SHEET 2) REPRESENTS A SKETCH OF DESCRPTION AND DOES NO? 
REPRESENT A CURRENT OR COMPLETE BOUNDARY SURVEY BY THIS FIRM. 

3. THIS SKETCH HAS BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A CURRENT TITLE REPORT 
OR ABSTRACT AND MAY NOT INDICATE CURRENT OWNERSHIP, ENCUMBRANCES. DESCRIPTIONS 
OR OTHER MATTERS OF RECORD. 

5. THIS DESCRIPTION AND MAP WERE PREPARED TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION. BOUNDARY DIMENSIONS AND REFERENCES, OTHER THAN SECTION, 
TOWNSHIP AND RANGE NUMBERS ARE NOT SHOWN. 

4. COPIES OF THIS SKETCH ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE ORLINAL SIGNATURE AND RAISED 
SEAL OF THE FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER LISTED HEREON 

DrSCRII'lION I IO I 6~24-1998 I LCR 
.. 

E: I r NONE 

DRAWING DiSKlrlLi. ME881AVTRSOD 

DESCRIPTION: 

JOB NO.: 77712.02 

FILE NO.: 3M1940 

THAT PART OF SECTION 7. TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
@ EAST, LYING SOUTH AND WEST OF ANTHONY-BURBANK ROAD (NE 

97TH STREET ROAD), BENG MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS 
BEGINNING AT THE SW CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7; 
THENCE 
SECTION 7. 1356.70 FEET, TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID 
ANTHONY-BURBANK R0AD;THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG 
SAD CENTERLIK. A CHORD BEARNG AND DISTANCE OF S 
45"1204 E, 194.74 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG 
SAD CENTERLIK, SOUTHEASTERLY, A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF S 61"2652 E, 2506.48 FEET, TO 
THE SOUTH LIFE OF SAID SECTION 7; THENCE S 
8Y28'26 W. ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, 2339.66 
FEET, TO THE PONT OF BEGINNING. 

THAT PART OF THE EAST 314 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 14 
@ RANGE 22 EAST, LYING SOUTH AND WEST OF ANTHONY-BURBANK 

ROAD (NE 97TH STREET ROAD), BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

N OO"00'42 W, ALONG THE WEST LNE OF SAID 

SOUTH, 

SECTION 18. TOWNSHIP I4 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 

BEGINNING AT NE CORNER OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE 
S 009302" W, ALONG THE EAST LNE OF SAID SECTION 
18.464.79 FEET, TO THE CENTERLINE OF ANTHONY-BURBANK 
ROAD THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID CENTERLINE. A 
CHORD BEARW AND DISTANCE OF S 6Y18'41" W. 378.24 
FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE. 
SOUTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARNG AND DISTANCE OF 
S 76"4944' W. 298.34 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID 
CENTERLINE, NORTHWESTERLY. A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE 
OF N 84"18'56" W. 681.00 FEET; THENCE CONTNUE ALONG 
SAID CENTERLW, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF N 62"0746 W. 179.86 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG 
SAID CENTERLME, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF N 84"II'IO W, 769.59 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG 
SAID CENTERLINE, NORTHWESTERLY, A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF N 61"2652" W. 906.77 FEET, TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE N 89"28'26 E. ALONG 
SAID NORTH LNE. 3034.81 FEET. TO THE POINT OF 
AND ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT 
BEGINNING AT THE SE CORNER OF SAID SECTION IS; THENCE 
N 8Y4658 W. ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 
18. 380.00 FEET; THENCE N 1Y41'19' E. 1140 00 FEET, 
TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE 
S Oo"1302' W. ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 1074.80 FEET, TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

@ LESS AND EXCEPT: 

BEGINNING; 

ALL OF SECTIONS 13.24. AND 25. TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 
22 EAST. 

THE E 1/2 OF SECTION 14. TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 
EAST, LESS THE NW 1/4 OF THE NE 114 AND ALSO LESS 
COMMENCING THE SW CORNER OF THE SE 114 OF SAID SECTION 
14; THENCE N 00'31'45' E, 931.68 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
BEGMINING; THENCE N 86"38'25' E, 933.25 FEET; THENCE 
N 02"21'35' W, 397.28 FEET; THENCE S 8633'25' W. 
638.66 FEET; THENCE S OT21'35" E. 373.28 FEET; THENCE 
S E6"38'25" W. 292.96 FEET; THENCE S OO"31'45' W. 
24.05 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, LESS 
BEGINNING A T  THE SW CORNER OF SAID SECTION 23. THENCE 
N Oo"0048" W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 23, 
661.34 FEET: THENCE N 8Y5710' E. 2314.73 FEET; THENCE 
S 00'0026' W. 661.79 FEET, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAD 
SECTION 23; THENCE S 89"5750 W. ALONG SA0 SOUTH 
LINE, 2314.66. FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEWNING. 

THAT PART OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 22 
EAST, LYING EAST OF THE CSX RAILROAD (FORMERLY KNOWN AS 
SEABOARD COAST RAILROAD). 
LESS AND EXCEPT: 
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER OF THE NW 114 OF SAID 
SECTION 26; THENCE S Oo"0647' W, ALONG THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID NW 114,1364.87 FEET; THENCE S 89'5652' W. 
631.93 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
S 00'0647' W. 1072.31 FEET; THENCE S 89'5652' W. 
840.80 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY RIGMT-OF-WAY LINE OF NE 
40TH AVENUE ROAD THENCE N OO"O(~O0' E. ALONG SAID 
EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE. 429 33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE EAST. HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 1450.00 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
267945': THENCE NORTHEASTERLY. ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF- 
WAY LINE AND CURVE, 666.32 FEET THENCE N EY5652 E. 
692.50 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THAT PART OF THE EAST 112 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 14 
SOUTH. RANGE 22 EAST, LYING EAST OF THE CSX RAILROAD 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SEABOARD COAST RAILROAD). 

THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 114 OF SECTION 22. TOWNSHIP 14 
SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, LYING EAST OF THE CSX RAILROAD 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SEABOARD COAST RAILROAD). LESS THE 
NORTH 7 112 CHAINS; THE W 112 OF SAID SE 114 OF SECTION 
22, LYING EAST OF SAID RAILROAD THE SOUTH 13 CHAINS OF 
THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 114 OF SAID SECTION 22, LYING EAST 
OF SAID RAILROAD, LESS THE NORTH 3 CHAINS OF THE SOUTH 13 
CHAINS OF THE E 112 OF THE SW 114. 

THE NE I/% THE N 314 OF THE E I12 OF THE SE 114; THE EAST 6 
CHAINS OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 114 OF THE SE 114; EXCEPT EAST 
14 FEET OF SOUTH 210 FEET; THE EASr 60 FEET OF THE WEST 
264 FEET OF THE NORTH 105 FEET OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 114 
OF THE SE 114; ALL IN SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 
22 EAST. 

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE: 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST 
OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF AND THAT IT CONFORMS TO THE MINIMUM TECHNICAL 
STANDARDS AS SET FORTH BY THE FLORIDA BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYORS AND 
MAPPERS IN CHAPTER 61617.6, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 
427.027. FLORIDA STATUTES. 

DATE SIGNED. 6-24- 98 -~ 
LAWRENCE E. BLAND 
PSY. #4034 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

I 
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION 

AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC. 
FOR 

1 ESI Consultants, hc- Henlgar & Ray, lnc. 
( LE # 6615 ) 

I 1414 S.W. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. AVE. OCALA. FLORIDA 34474-3129 (904) 368-5055 

PROPERTIES IN TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGES 22 a 23 EAST. MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA - _____ 
SCALE I - 2000 l%WN BY leb I DATE OF SKETCH 4 29 1998 

I CHECKED BY: LEE 1 "I DLXIIII'IION. I 6 16.1398 I LEE I F.B.1PG.: M91All 

Exhibit I 



EXHIBITS J & K 
davits of Notices 

Re: Application for Original Water and Wastewater Certificates for Ocala Springs Utilities tnc. 
(OSUI) in Marion County 

Notices and affidavits of notices will be provided as latejled exhibits. 

JK- 1 E h b i t s  JK 


